BEAUMONT CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT (BCVRPD)

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Wednesday, November 10, 2021, 5:45pm
Noble Creek Community Center 390 W. Oak Valley Parkway Beaumont, CA 92223

AGENDA
www.bevparks.com

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION BY TELECONFERENCE ONLY
Due to the spread of COVID-19 and in accordance with the Governor's Executive Order N-29-20, the Beaumont Cherry
Valley Recreation & Park District and the Beaumont Cherry Valley Recreation & Park Improvement Corporation will be
conducting this meeting by teleconference only. Public comments on matters listed on the agenda or on any matter within
the District’s jurisdiction will be received during Public Comments, Agenda Item No. |. There will be no public physical
location for attending this meeting in person. The District's Board meeting room will be closed to the public until further
notice.

The Workshop and Regular Session is available by calling: 1(623) 404-9000. Meeting ID: 471-749-1599
You can also join the meeting from PC, Mac, Linux, iOS or Android: https://meetings.ringcentral.com/j/4717491599

DISTRICT CLOSED SESSION - None
WORKSHOP SESSION: None

REGULAR SESSION: Regular Session to Begin at 5:45pm
Roll Call: Director De La Cruz, Director Ward, Treasurer Flores, Vice-Chair/Secretary Diercks and Chairman Hughes

Invocation:
Pledge of Allegiance:
Presentations: None

Adjustments to Agenda: Government code sec 54954.2 provides “upon a determination by a two-thirds vote of the members of the legislative
body present at the meeting, or if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a unanimous vote of those member present, that there is a need
to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted as specified
in subdivision (a) “

1. PUBLIC COMMENT:

If you are unable to participate by telephone or via RingCentral, you may submit comments and/or questions in writing for the Board's
consideration by sending them to janet@bcvparks.com. Submit your written inquiry prior to the start of the meeting. All public comments
received prior to the start of the meeting will be provided to the Board and may be read into the record or compiled as part of the record.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR: Items are considered routine, non-controversial and generally approved in a single motion. A board
member may request to have an item removed from the consent calendar for discussion or to be deferred. (Includes Minutes, Financials,
Resolutions, and Policy & Procedure matters).

2.1 Minutes of October 13, 2021

2.2 Warrants for October 2021

2.3 Bank Balances for October 2021

2.4 Approve Special Provision Allowing for Teleconference Meetings during a Governor-Declared State of
Emergency Pursuant to AB 361



3. ACTION ITEMS/BIDS & PUBLIC HEARING/REQUESTS: (Includes Committee Reports)
3.1 Approval of 2022 Board Meeting Dates
3.2 Approval of 2022 Holidays
3.3 Approval of Fiscal Year 19/20 Audit
3.4 Approval of Actuarial Study of Retiree health Liabilities Under GASB 74/75
3.5 Authorization to Waive a Portion of Engine 57 Tournament Fees for Contribution to Families of Fallen
First Responders and Law Enforcement.
3.6 Approval of 2022 Parking Fee Dates
3.7 Approval of 2022 Calendar of Events
3.8 Approval of 2022 Facility Use License Agreements
3.8.1 Beaumont Woman’s Club
3.8.2 Beaumont Youth Baseball
3.8.3 Catch a Star Theatrical Players
3.8.4 Church for Family
3.8.5 Thunder Alley Raceway
3.9 Approval of New Water Line, Noble Creek Park

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS:
Human Resources Administrator/Clerk of the Board: Janet Covington
Financial Services Technician/Office Manager: Nancy Law
Activities Coordinator: Kyle Simpson
Maintenance Foreman: Aaron Morris
Athletic Coordinator: Dodie Carlson
General Manager: Duane Burk

5. CALENDAR OF EVENTS:
5.1 Committee Meetings
s Collaborative Agency — First Wednesday Bi-Monthly, 5:00pm at the Beaumont Library.
o Finance — 1t Thursday of Every Month 5:00 pm NCCC.
e Facility Use Ad Hoc- Second & Fourth Tuesday Monthly @ 5:30 pm
¢ BCYRPD Board Meeting Schedule, NCCC
November 10, 2021
December 8, 2021
January 12, 2022
5.2. Upcoming Holidays
Thursday, November 11, 2021 - Veterans Day
Thursday & Friday, November 25 & 26, 2021 — Thanksgiving
Thursday & Friday, December 23 & 24, 2021 - Christmas
5.3. Events
e Beaumont Woman'’s Club COVID-19 Testing has been extended through December 31, 2021.
o December 3-4, 2021 Winterfest
o December 17, 2021 Staff Holiday Party 5:00- 10:00pm

DIRECTORS MATTERS/COMMITTEE REPORTS
6. ADJOURNMENT:

Any person with a disability who requires accommodations in order to participate in the meeting should
telephone Janet Covington at 951-845-9555, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for
a disability-related modification or accommodation

DECLARATION OF POSTING: | declare under penalty of perjury, that | am employed by the Beaumant-Cherry Valley Recreation and
Park District, and the foregoing agenda was posted at the District office and District web site November 5, 2021

Janet D Covingfon, Human Resources Administrator/Clerk of the Board




ont-Chery,
2B Yo,

BEAUMONT CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT (BCVRPD)

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Wednesday, October 13, 2021, 5:45pm

MINUTES
www.bcvparks.com

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION BY TELECONFERENCE ONLY
Due to the spread of COVID-19 and the fact that there is a Governor-declared state of emergency, the
Beaumont Cherry Valley Recreation & Park District conducted this meeting by teleconference.

DISTRICT CLOSED SESSION — None

WORKSHOP SESSION: None

REGULAR SESSION: Regular Session to Begin at 5:45pm

Regular session began at 6:02pm.

Roll Call:

Director De La Cruz: Present, via teleconference

Director Ward: Present, via teleconference

Treasurer Flores: Present

Vice-Chair/Secretary Diercks: Present

Chairman Hughes: Present

General Manager, Duane Burk and Legal Counsel of Best, Best & Krieger Albert Maldonado attended.

Invocation: Chairman Hughes gave the invocation.

Pledge of Allegiance: Duane Burk led the pledge of allegiance.
Presentations: None.

Adjustments to Agenda: None.

1. PUBLIC COMMENT: Chairman Hughes opened public comment at 6:04pm. Hearing none, public
comment closed at 6:04pm.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR:
2.1 Minutes of September 8, 2021
2.2 Warrants for September 2021
2.3 Bank Balance September 2021
2.4 Approve Special Provision Allowing for Teleconference Meetings during a Governor-
Declared State of Emergency Pursuant to AB 361

Duane reported the finance committee met and reviewed items 2.2 and 2.3.



Albert Maldonado reported on item 2.4, He said the Governor has declared a State of Emergency. State or
local officials are recommending social distancing measures. The California department of public health
recommends social distancing to prevent the spread of COVID-19 and the districts Covid-19 prevention policy
still recommends social distancing.

Motion was made to accept items 2.1, 2.2, 2.3 and 2.4.

Initial Motion: Chairman Hughes

Second: Director Ward

Result of Motion: Carried 5-0

Director De La Cruz: Aye

Director Ward: Aye

Treasurer Flores: Aye

Vice Chair/Secretary Diercks: Aye

Chairman Hughes: Aye

3. ACTION ITEMS/BIDS & PUBLIC HEARING/REQUESTS: {Includes Committee Reports)
3.1 Approval of Fiscal Year 19/20 Draft Audit
Duane reported the finance committee met and reviewed the draft audit and will bring back for
approval at the November board meeting.
Chairman Hughes opened public comment at 6:10pm. Hearing none, public comment closed at 6:10
pm.
Motion was made to accept item 3.1.
tnitial Motion: Chairman Hughes
Second: Vice Chair/Secretary Diercks
Result of Motion: Carried 5-0
Director De La Cruz: Aye
Director Ward: Aye
Treasurer Flores: Aye
Vice Chair/Secretary Diercks: Aye
Chairman Hughes: Aye

4, DEPARTMENT REPORTS:
Human Resources Administrator/Clerk of the Board: Janet Covington

¢ The District currently has twenty-four employees. Two casual recreation assistant left

s Workers Compensation Cases/Incidents/Accidents ~ One workers compensation case. (31) Days since
our last employee accident).

» CAPRI rescheduled their District visitation for December 7, 2021.

= Janet attended trainings on Employee Classification in California, Wellness Webinar from Blue Cross
and The Presidents Vaccine Mandates from Unum.

= The September employee of the month was celebrated at Oktoberfest. Sebastian limenez received the
award.

* Open enrollment for Medical was September 20 — October 13, 2021.

» Save the date for our annual holiday party on Friday, December 17, 2021.

= Jjanet will be out of the office October 15-28.

= Please RSVP to me by tomorrow noon if you have not yet if you are able to attend the Boys & Girls Club
fundraiser, Horses and Hattitudes. October 22, 2021 5-9pm in Franco Gardens.

» The Banning State of the City is Thursday, October 14. Seats were sold out but we are on the waiting
list for any cancellations.




The Calimesa Chamber breakfasts are held monthly on the second Tuesday of each month, 8:00am, at
Kafe Royale Restaurant in Calimesa. You do not need to register and there is no charge unless you buy
a breakfast. A date is being set up for Duane to be their guest speaker.

Financial Services Technician/Qffice Manager: Nancy Law
The Finance Committee reviewed September 2021 Financial Reports.
Property Tax Disbursements were received into the Riverside County Fund in the amount of $4,772.99
for August 2021 and the amount of $655.79 for September 2021.
Nancy transferred into the Reserve fund the $5,000.00 monthly contribution for September 2021, and
transferred $36,506.33 to bring our Operating Reserve to $250,000.00 with Board Approval from
September Sﬁ’, 2021 Board Meeting, bringing our Reserve balance to $310,216.77, and transferred into
the Money Market account $7,500.00 monthly contributions for September 2021 for the loan payment
due in November brining our balance to $82,500.00.
Nancy attended CSDA conference breakout sessions that included Building Disaster Resilience through
FEMA Programs, Accessing <California COVID-19 Relief Funds for Special Districts, Crisis
Communications: 5 Ideas, 2 Tips, 20 Questions Answered. She attended Oktoberfest Meeting and
debrief, She Oktoberfest and enjoyed it.
Nancy attended CSDA Special District COVID Fund Application Process Workshop.
Nancy attended Pumpkin Carve and Beers Brats and Bogart Bash Meeting.
Nancy attended GFOA (Government Financial Operating Association) Interpreting and Communicating
the New CalPERS Actuarial Report.
Nancy reviewed the 19/20 Draft Audit.

Activities Coordinator: Kyle Simpson
Facility Rentals have been ongoing
COVID-19 Testing Facility at the Woman’s Club will continue through December 31, 2021.
There are currently 3 different skating groups renting out the hockey rink weekly
The Yoga Connection has been at Noble Creek Community Center since July
Heart and Soutl Line Dancing has moved back to Noble Creek Community Center
Beaumont Library Story Time is at Noble Creek Community Center on Tuesdays
Tennis instruction has started at the Tennis Courts Tuesdays, Wednesdays, Thursdays, and Saturdays.
Kyle is getting quotes to resurface the tennis courts.
Square dancing class started at the Grange
Facility Use License Agreements for 2022 are in progress
Kyle said Oktoberfest was great and thanked all of the Board and staff for their support and hard work.
There were 78 kegs of beer consumed. He received a lot of positive feedback at the event and held the
Oktoberfest debrief meeting. A thank you list has been posted on our social media
Pumpkin Carve is scheduled for October 23rd 11:00am to 2:00pm. Greenthumb will be donating
Pumpkins for the event. Event flyers are completed and advertised on social media, lawn signs, and the
Banning billboard. Pumpkin carving kits and decorating kits hsve been received. A donation letter to
Walmart for candy has been completed and will be taken when the meeting is confirmed with their
manager.BYB donated paint for the event,
Beer, Brats, and Bogart Bash is scheduled for October 30th 12:00pm to 4:00pm at Bogart Day Use
Meadow. Retroblast Band will be performing. Nava Sausage will be providing the food and beer will be
purchased from The Craft Lounge. The event flyer is completed and advertised on social media, lawn
signs, and the Banning billboard. Kyle has received a few calls about the event. Tasting cups have been
ordered and jockey boxes have been reserved for pouring. Kyle hase 2 volunteer pourers from the
Craft Lounge in addition to a couple other volunteers. Kyle has been teaching staff Craft beer styles in




case they can pour at the event. Kyle asked if anyone knows someone who would like to volunteer to
pour at the event, to please let him know. Some peaple have registered to camp at Bogart.

Kyle has reached out to dance spectrum to perform at Winterfest. Vicki Grunewald is not available this
year to play Mrs. Sants. Art Welch has volunteered to be Santa Clause. Parking at the ponds has been
approved.

Kyle attended the Calimesa and Beaumont Chamber breakfasts.

Maintenance Foreman: Aaron Morris
Construction of the new main lines in-between fields 2/3 has continued.
Staff attended a Water Management Seminar hosted by the SoCal STMA.
Aaron attended the Toro Grounds Experience hosted at the Rose Bowil.
The District passed their annual headquarters site inspection conducted by the Riverside County
Agricultural Commissioner which has to do with pesticides, storage, cleanliness and documented.
Staff was trained in handling and applying pesticides.
Third Quarter Safety Committee packet was completed and submitted by HR.
Gathering estimates to purchase material and seed to get the ballfields back into shape after the
construction and Oktoberfest. They will be putting installing rye grass at Bogart and over seeding fields.
Staff is prepping for the Annual Pumpkin Carve and the new Beers & Brats Bogart Bash.
Preparing for engine 57

Athietic Coordinator: Dodie Carison
The fall adult ball season is under way. There are 39 teams again this season. We have 6 Monday
women’s, 7 Tuesday men’s, 14 Thursday Co-Ed, and 12 Sunday Co-Ed teams. Hopefully all goes weill
with the weather and fire season, that way we will be able to have the year wrapped before Christmas.
The Oktoberfest Slow Pitch tournament was held September 10 and 11. There were eight teams with
64 Sports taking the win. It was a great way to start the Holiday tournament season. They enjoyed their
steins and beer tickets. We will be hosting the Spooky Spectacular tournament on October 22, 2021.
The calendar for October is semi full. We have had fields 1-4 closed for water line construction. The
remaining fields are packed. It will soon be finished and we will be able to get them all filled again.
Dodie thanked the Board of Directors, General Manager, and staff for their constant work on this
district. She said she is excited to see the improvements to the fields and facilities at Noble Creek. We
will be looking sharp when we can get back to filling these fields every weekend with tournaments.
BYB started their fali ball season September 7, 2021. It will run thru November 19, 2021. They have 20
teams.
Spring sign-ups will start in the next two weeks.
October 18 to December 5 is the canned food drive.
Dodie said she is thankful for all the construction and improvements.

General Manager: Duane Burk
Duane met with Shopoff regarding water and will bring back to the board later.
The District loaned the stage to the Banning Chamber and in exchange, we get to use their
electronic billboard.
Duane will be meeting with Steven Wagner of BYB next week.
He has been working on the water project at Noble Creek.
The City of Beaumont has an application calendar called Doodle. It is a calendar that we will be looking
into. Armando suggested having training on everything like emails because some people don’t know
how to email. Duane said we might bring in our IT department to do the training.




5. CALENDAR OF EVENTS:
5.1 Committee Meetings
. Collaborative Agency ~ First Wednesday Bi-Monthly, 5:00pm at the Beaumont Library.
e Finance — 1" Thursday of Every Month 5:00 pm NCCC.
* Facility Use Ad Hoc- Second & Fourth Tuesday Monthly @ 5:30 pm
° BCVRPD Board Meeting Schedule, NCCC
November 10, 2021
December 8, 2021
January 12, 2022
5.2. Upcoming Haolidays
Thursday, November 11, 2021 — Veterans Day
Thursday & Friday, November 25 & 26, 2021 - Thanksgiving
Thursday & Friday, December 23 & 24, 2021 — Christmas observed
5.3. Events
* Beaumont Woman’s Club COVID-19 Testing extended through December 31, 2021.
¢ October 23, 2021 Pumpkin Carve
e October 30, 2021 Beer, Brats and Bogart Special Event (if approved)
s December 3-4, 2021 Winterfest
e December 17, 2021 Staff Holiday Party

DIRECTORS MATTERS/COMMITTEE REPORTS

Director De La Cruz:

Armando apologized for the last two to three months when he did not have his cell phone working and
said he should have been proactive regarding an alternate way to reach him. He said a lot of people are
not using their emails or are not tech savvy so he should have given an alternate number. He reported he
has not been attending meetings in person because his wife has been working later and he has been
staying home parenting his children. He apologized to Nancy for not turning in his director fees on time
and said there should be a time limit for those to be turned in. Armando has been attending market nights.
He attended Oktoberfest and poured beer all night. He is glad to be a part of the board and seeing the
future of the District. He enjoys the events and likes taking his children to them. He attended the
Beaumont Chamber breakfast.

Director Ward:

Denise congratulated everybody on a job well done. She said she is glad Aaron’s wife is recovering. Denise
went to Bogart last week. It is nice. She would like to talk about planting maple trees to add to the fall
beauty and the changing of the colors. She attended collaborative agency. Riverside County, Mickey
Valdivia commented on the construction of route 66 from Moreno Valley to Beaumont. He stated it is 65%
complete starting at the Cherry Valley boulevard I-10 interchange. He also gave an update on the
proposed cannabis sites in our area. Beaumont police department added a canine patrol dog to their
police force. The Beaumont-Cherry valley Water District, Dan Jaggers, gave an update on the water
capture and flood reduction project and said the City is cooperating on street improvements and preparing
for future drought situations. Beaumont Unified School District, Shawn Mitchell reported the high school
expansion and summer winds trails school is moving along. There is a video on the schools website
showing the construction. The Beaumont Library was closed for a week while remodeling. Denise said she
gave an update on the Danny Thomas Ranch, fishing derby and Oktoberfest. Cabazon Water District
attended but did not report out. She apologized for nat being in person and will try to do a better job.



Treasurer Flores:

lohn said he is encouraged by DTR and the Hills Racing Group. He would like the board members to try to
attend the foundations Market Nights and the Summer Concert Series. He feels it is really well done. He
feels the time has come to start building field #8 and perhaps #9. The City of Beaumont could care less
about the youth and baseball. They are eliminating fields so it falls on us. Duane said that he met with an
architect to design fields and he will bring the item back at a later date. John said he was looking through
some of his father’s things that he had accumulated from when he was a director with the park district. He
said he will never vote to annex into the City of Beaumont. At one point, the District did not want to be
associated with them. John would like to reach out to former board members who are still alive and honor
them because we cannot forget about our past. He encouraged everyone to be involved and volunteer.
He wouid like to look at having events at DTR and moving some events to DTR. Armando said he would like
to see basketball courts.

Vice Chair/Secretary Diercks:

Chris thanked all staff for a fantastic Oktoberfest. It was wonderful and everyone worked hard and felt it
was one of the best ones ever. Staff is doing great on everything they do. He agrees with John that we
need to get moving on Field # 8. Maybe it could be a multi-purpose field like field #1. Chris said that DTR is
a challenge and agrees that some things can be moved there. He stated staff is doing a wonderful job,
can’t thank them enough and to keep up the good work.

Chairman Hughes:

Dan said he feel Oktoberfest was a great success especially with the amount of people who showed up on
Friday especially with it being homecoming. He asked for the post Oktoberfest meeting minutes. One issue
he had was with the unevenness of the grounds. Kyle said he would get them together and send them out
to everyone. Dan met with the County regarding CDBG grants and funding for DTR as well as funding for
the use of the Woman'’s club for COVID-19 testing. Dan said he and Duane have been talking about re-
visiting some of the District policies. Dan said he and John met with the City and will be having more
meetings on DTR. He attended the Calimesa Chamber breakfast and the topic was the County’s workforce
program. We have been focusing time on water issue at DTR and Noble Creek. He wants Duane to look at
Noble Creek projects this year because this is where we started. Dan spoke with former BBK legal counsel,
Joe Ortiz. He said when Joe left he was assigned to a judge position in San Bernardino and then moved to
Fontana in the Civil and Criminal department and is and is now in Joshua tree.

6. ADICURNMENT:
Meeting adjourned at 7:01pm.



8 4o | abed

BuneiadQ - Hiog

ZE'806- sonddng s010 /eate) updwing/suoleI008q SIHIO Wog uozewy 6202L0042Y  120Z/L0/0L %08y
98'€5- ofupoy ‘oyoBUeY - SaSED SUoYd WO uoZeWy 820ZL00LZY  LE02/L0/0) Rl o)
VAR SUOJIEI0080 BIYO Woo UoZRuY L202L001ZY  LE0Z/L0/01 pisiTHo)
Gb9- shey| eauruauley - sBey sanog den Woo UOZBWY 920220012Y  L20Z/20/01 Hoaud
£1°8e- SUOHEI0Z8Q 83O WD UoZB WY GZOZLO0LZY  1208/L0/01 Ho8uD
82621 yseq pebog pue jeig Jeog - ||jeg layong woo uozewy ¥20ZL00LZY  1208/£0/01 HoaHD
Zlele- fured AepijoH yeig/selddng aao Wo2 uozZeWwy ZZ0ZL0DLZY  120Z/L0/0L HaouD
18- SUCIRICIB DOYO LoD UoZeLWLY 120240012V E208/L0/01 HoeuD
00'081- aadwn ||Eguos NPy Yoi0 [2eLOIN LELPEE  LE08/20/01 $a8UD
00°0G1- aildwn {eqyuos INpy yoepsy slad oglyel  1202/20/01 pecle)
00°081- auldwin jpgyos 1Py O|o|NY PEUSIN GZLPEL  LBOZ/L0/0L #9840
26'el- Jajupd eauBUIl - U] BISU| 810}5 dH L20Z900LIN  L202/90/01 ¥asuo
gL ol- UByoI| DOON - sisklld Joresebuay WoduozEWY €202/00LZY  LE02/A0/01 peClle]
00'096- 0051 ArayD - sauil doysg sau| oleqesd |3 b202500L0H  1202/50/01 Hoayd
90°gS- yseg pefog R 1eig Jeag/ened upidwing - Hwisd ubis uslwyoeciou] ownesg jo Al Z20ZS00LSM  1202/50/01 Hoayn
00°0Gt- yseg uebog @ yeig Jeeg jene) updwing Juswesiiaapy - preogmg rerbig "out Auedwo) ubls Dy LZ0ZSO0LSY  LE0Z/S0/04 pieTHg)
o0°ge- OpuUBLLY ‘ZMiY) B & - Isepies.d juownesg 80IBLLLIOT JO JaguIR) Juownedy LE0ZB00LSY  LE02F0/0L et
00" L~ 00 894 Apuop fed [eqoin 89} |20Tf0/0L 308U
£ /81- BUILOBIN DIED P21 - S99 Xd3 s884  L20BH0/0L #284D
L6501 JounT Jelg - sodel Aeq ooel [euokeN lexreiN sheq / 1202¥001SM  120Z/¥0/0L NosYD
16" b9t 9/5 Plel § BUBSNY 9SI0H ‘SHNOD SIUUSY - DI308|F - S8MIAN (Z06919€65004) 308 ¥6009596  1208/H0/0L #08UY- Jid |19
186291~ Agily Japuntt] @ AHOUISIT [BrBUSD - DIH0BIT - SONIN (GZ9685E65004) F0S 1600956  1202/+0/01 OB Juid |1ig
96'665'e- Med AH - 21H08|T - s8N (£9L2£1816004) 308 8R000SE  L20ZMHF0/0L 384D Wid Jiig
e 6re- {isued/Bunubin dwes eitg) ouoels - sapn (£9806076+002) J30S 98009G6  1202/70/01 3o9UD- Iid 119
16°092- - L# D194 - oui0e[3 - SeRIHN (SE2£6626¥004) DS $800956  1202/40/01 HoauD- IWd g
8L°G¥L- ssitel ], sayBiny sewey - oue(z - saln (026¥65¥61004) 308 £800956  L202/40/01 MoBUD- Juid flig
09'+82" - DOON 7 aniD S,UBLIOA “JUBW ‘feg yoeus ‘ebuein - ou1oa|3 - sam|nn (627001500004} 305 2800956  LE0Z/F0/0L HoeuD~ Jud irg
00'05E- {Aouen ‘we) doysiop se1epdn dyvD [RILBLULISACY) fenuuy YO LZOZLO0LIN  L20B/10/01 }oayg
00°008- 120z sequsideg - saad Jojail(] saydbny ueg BZlbElL  1202/10/0) eV
BunesadQ - yaway jo yueyd - 50001
unowy owayy awep wnp a)eq adAL

L20¢ 1240100

BuyesadQ - 10waH Jo queg

JuUBLEM JO8UH
10LISI(] Yied B uonealday Asjep Ausy) uowneag



910 g abeq rard gupressd( - Hiog

899°g/1'9- 108[01c) BUIT JBIB AR UIBWDENT) 10} [RUSTRNY ‘09 Aiddng syiopm Jejem puB|u| Z51P2L L0l HoSUD- JWid mE
S 002 1eg yorug - auedoid - SBIIN sebyeued LGPl LE0EALIOL HIBUD- g g
05651 L dHON [ou0D 158d Ajyiuop joNus) 1894 HeD 0SLPEL  120BPLIOL Ho8uD- Wud [ig
00°009'L- |ewey sjeg AeH L0g 1seH8qONO Aiddng jod % pasd Asjep Aley) 6v1¥2l LEQE/VPL/OL 30aYD- huud g
00°065"2- o, duing - o doyg soueusjuepy AuedwoD 2 mmgd 8¥1¥el  L202MHL/0L HoeuD- Jud 1Ig
0L'€91'e HH ¢ Bunaep preogyy 1 ( 'seed [ebe 1efauy @ 1seg jseg IPIPEL 1202 MHE/0L oauyD- wid g
61°06- apep shey 200z ereondng L4 ¥ooped 181SEW H907 B jes Wownesg gviFEr  LEDEWEOL #28UD- JWd g
gg'se- sapeg 1obp3 "ou] ‘Juswdinbz Jemod Juotuneag SPIFEL  LE20ZHLI0L %98UD- IWid g
OST21'E e Aot WEILING) 10} 12013 “US 156 PUB 000s o] 158 | 0@ JuoLINeag wolpeL  LeozibhoL %0840~ Jid Mg
Ge Ly {eay) eburiD) - 1818 M - SORIIIN 900-8 41510 Jelem AsjeA Aneyd JuowNesg Eriver  LE0ZFLOL 3oy~ Wid (g
629/ t- ebivels - 1M - sounn 500-8 ASIQ 121eMm Aol Alay) Juownesg ZFIFEL  LE0Ek L0l Ho8uD- ud (g
86°956- Wolog SieA UIM Sleld SWoH punoin-u) (¢1) sona|uly uooeeg LblvElL  L208/b1/01 #oeyg- 1id |18
00'9ge- B0IAIBG wuelY AlUIUop Auedwo)) wie)y feg opivel LEOE/PLI0L HoayD- ud lI1g
L20ee SluanZ 1O} SPIEMY | Z0Z 1SOHaGO0 seenads 3 spremy BELFEL 1020 HoeUD- Jwd g
LUG8v'e WEOOE M/ JOIUOW UDIRY ‘SLIOW ‘201ues 1] Alyluopy seoniag ABojouyoe | wooy BELVEL  LE0EHLOL HoBUD- JWid g
Q0°000'Ee sihg uswaacidw feiden 1o} AQuuny woly paussuel | CFLOESUBIL LZ0S/FLIOL |BLINOP [B18L9Y)
00°000°0t- LE0Z/SL/0L Hd 10} ([osked 0 Jajsuery iplotsuel)  L20Z/ALA0L faunor |emuar)
0o'081- afdwiry (eqyos HNPY L0107 [9BUOIN LELVEL  LE0E/FHOL ABYD
00081~ enduwin |[204os Hnpy uosdiny Auo} Auoyuy gelbel  1208/41/01 HoeyD
00°081- andwin |[eqyos Inpy ojoiny [9BUDIN SELvel  1208/v1/0L sl
00°002- 1202 $2q0100 - $994 40102110 “syIIeiq SUYQ PELFEL L0 LI0L oD
8086T o soueusIE mmEw_wmcM%m,_mﬂm_mmm%mwmmomm_ %ﬂ:m.”wmwmmﬂ”mnmﬁumﬁ% 30} 'SISp|ING UESLBWY PUBIS) EELYEL  L20Z/EHOL ¥08YD- 1Wd 1
£4°651- {Epusy uswdinb3 Apjuciy 8ol Lg022101 L2021 buille]
86°EL- Suisl Jiseqd sequueL) alolg aa1]_se|jog 120ZLL0LSM  L20E/LE/0L ¥asuD
00 ¥~ HIN B uee] *saybny (2) - 1sepesig wowneag S0I8UIWINY JO JBqUEYD Juowneeg ZZOZS00ESY  LE0E/80/01 08U
00°Ze- alAy) ‘uosdws - 1sepiessg Juownesg SIBUIL0D) JO JBGUWEY) Juowneeq L2028001SY  1202/80/01 bt}
00°0%¢- 101u00) 1594 AlUiton-1g9 lonuoD ysad 66ng BBn|g Zelvel LZ02/80/01 308y~ 1uid (119
05°g- SH3deD 03 Buier - ebeisod Sdsn Le02L00i4d  LBOB/LO/0L Hasyy
00°091- Aoue ‘meT - sas4 diysiequisy Y049 YOd49 LZOZZ00LTIN  L20E/L0/01 #oeuo
wnouny oLy awep Wnp aleq adAy
1202 18703100
BuneiadQ - 19WaH Jo jueg
JUBLIEBAN ) O3YD

101ISIQ Hied B uonesisay Asjjep Alay) Juowneag



9 jo ¢ sbeq

(X4

00'00g- L0z 1snBny - sas Jopeng ZMi0 B7 90 opuBwY 2Lpel
£2'5S¢e- (6E6'2E) 9s19nRI] - SBG suogn|og sseulsng QJHY BLBLLPPSL
00°061- [emausy - fousy ‘men YduN LZ08SLOLTIN
00'0e- 17X 0514 - lredey e anflowony Aajea Ausyn LE0ESLOLNY
G’ LG- useq pebog @ sjeig ‘steag - 85Us0 DGV J0} J8pI Asuop SdSn 120er 0L SH
19'952- sfemeann) - yseg vefog ¢ sielg ‘s1sag - sieH ebuno yein eyl L20ek LOLSY
00'see- L20&/E/01 - JUdAZ PB||8ouBR) punjay CuyJele] assa GL1vel
00°005- L2021/ - Bunsyies - ysodeq Aiunosg s|gepuniey SBASN]) ¥ JBISO viivel
00°005- +202/12/8 - Aued Aepuing - usodag Aunoes s|gepunjey Uodje4 9A3IS eLivgl
CO'0SP- 1202/60/01 - Aued Aepuiig - Isodeq) Qunoss s|gepunisy ZaneyJd Uieqezii3 clivdl
20'65G- asea Jedon Algiuop Sa0IIES [BIOURU| XQISX LALPEL
£5°06E't- SUOLEIS sem pUBH/WO0ASEY - LZ0Z 1Sepaqob) $30MIBS BIS pBIUN aLLvel
06'208'}- s1amo} WBIT - 1Z0g 1SoH8qoM0 S[ejuSH papun 88l¥cl
T oD Sy
00'0ve's- L202/0L/0L - LEDZ/0E/6 - SABp G/SIU 190110 Pawleun auQ “ou] jolied Alunoeg oid JB1S 191¥EL
00°Zig- UGClEjelsu| pue [elialely] 19s0]]) JsieaH Jajep U213 SHS 2=l N A
££'595°2- 108foid JSIBM BUIT UIBIN /PEND [elslen oM ‘Mddng adeospue suQelg SoLbEL
00052~ sjoo) Jamod gz# oido) wd| 1202/61/6 Bunss Alsles Auedwog soueyduwiog Alpjes YaLreh
G1°885- IHeH I PIY Isil s6uels) ‘webog *DOON PUB BalAleS 3V sus)sAg puodsey €91zl
000z L~ »0, doys souBLUBUBY S|EUSIBL SAOW O] PASN HIMIC s[ejusy Bdieon A SpURpay 25itel
e ¥56'E- D dOUg S0URBUBIUIERYY 10} 21240U0D XN Apeay oljoury [§e38A44
08'625't- suuojun @ sanddng [euoyuer Apeam Addng feienp renuspnid 091+2l
o0'seh- 1o0g) 9beien) paseday v dous, saueusjuEp Aueduwior) 100g ebeien) asiy-old 65LFEL
62'G96 - 108load Burt Jsle M UR/PRND 10} Sfeusiep Alddng 9 adid-o0id 85LPEL
SL'e6- Aig 4ol R uswydeny Jossaudwon Jy sped oiny edeN ISLYEL
662 dde ggg 11dog Buiddiys suonnjog ABojouyns | HeWwS DY g5Lvel
a0'916'ClL- sotoy jod pue yes Jedey ‘esly peny) Jleday ‘04| "UONONASUOT) UOSULO UlasN SSLPEL
£1°808- Audeibojoyg 1202 1S8pBqOMO siiem foreq Aq pajeal) seuclusiy 4415243
S1'0S¥'e- aoneg [BUONUERT AJUIUOR ou| ‘enwoyleg jo Buty-wer £51+EL
junousy owapy aleN wnp
120¢ 180120

BuizesadQ - 19Way jo yueg

JUBLIBA MO04D
1oUISI Hed B uonealday Aljje) Aliay) Juowneag

L¢02/81/01
Le0e/BEOL
Le0e/SEOL
1e0e/S1/0L
Le0e/r1/oL
L20e/r L0
LE0ziv 0L
Le0e/FLIOL
Le0e/TLIOL
Leae/v Lol
208 LOL
Le0eir1ioL
L20e/r1/aL

LE0S/P L0

KA YO
1202/ Lot
L2020
LeQe/r /0L
L20g/P L0}
L20e/rL/01
FAVALd ¥iVES
Le0e/F L0
Le0e/rLIOL
L20e/v LOL
L1e0e/v LG
1e0e/r /0L
120g/vL/01L
LE0E/1/01
L202/PL/01L

a1eq

duneladp - Hi0g

%0940
%09uD- Jwid 1ig
#0840
ERCTT)
%0040
%0840
%80
Nosuo
08D
SoauD
¥08Uo- Jud g
$a8UD- Juid (g
s08YY- Jud Jiig

HoaYJ- d g

3}38UD- W Hig
Ho2UD- Wd g
328yd- 1ud (g
3}oayg- jud (g
¥8YD- JWd |Ilg
HosUD- wid |Iig
HIBHD- Juid 18
Jqo8yd- id g
No8UD- IWd g
*H28Us- Hd g
#99UD- lud g
/Y- W iig
A08YG- Juid II'g
AI8YT- I 11
08YJ- uid II'g

adA}



9 Jo  abed

[Ard
26'91 |- s1aplo4 |eopapy sedoidwa feluepluo) vewlem 120263014
88'61- oBupoy ‘oyoewe) - sfiu Aay WO LOZBUY 120261044d
£geg- sbeubis ebplg uo sasioH ON/S3IIUSA ON ubig Alejeg Ay FAA 1RO RY]
24'g0e- 1202/0£/0) - useq vefoq @ sjerg 's1eag - wwed WeaH uesy fejuatliiolireg Jo Juswiiedeg 2026L01+8M
00°000°0F s))g wawancidwi fenden Jo Suneiedg o} 1e9jsuer) L1GL0OsuRl L
£1°286- «h GOUS BOUBUBIUIEY SWIRAQ 93]S SA0W O} POSN HipHod] s[elay pajun £0ZFel
00°0et- adIAIeS BUSTE M ALEUORN auesns SBGE6LET
00°LE8'01- PRY 0Z/61 Ad AepljeH 7 »oupeun €810 1202
92996~ uswhegd teidoy Aluuopn BuiseaT [eroueLl ofiie SiEM £LOSH06
o0°'q95 L - sbueir) @ qn|D) SUBWIOA ‘SoUBUBSIUIBK JBE NORUS/IDOIN - USEL] - SaIln J} 3y 0 Juswalbeuryy 81SEAL 29/660BE008
¥8'065- suoUd ssajalm Alyuop SSB|SHM UOZLBA G089181821
82°651- DODN ¥ aBURID 'Gn|D SURLIOA - SED - SORIIIN senienog £9-6000162
BL'B8L- selddng eo1o lodag) 290 PEGGLIEEEL
9,081~ abBuUBID - 1A SUGHEOLIMUALOD JBJUOIH T08FMWYLEd
86°G2l- Q00N - M SUOBOIUNWWOD JBNUOI4 amHBInested
9.1l qnD SUBLIOA - BIAA SUOREBIUNILTY JSRLOIH H1LpMNFLd
86'001- yebog - yim SUOJEIUNWILING SOOI Z8/pMINvLed
0L +51- wawAhed yyeaH papunjun 01810 pUHESOY 12028101
z9'e6e sopag suoydaial Ao BAlIXON 12028101
c9'v8/- asueInst| af - esAodwg i [eluclo) LA¥9G6/S6E Y
95200 {602'c8) ArauD (952°v2) 0514 (681°2H) m%v%wwww&w%w%wmmwwwm HoRHO - cheelotioly
00'52- L5t - @afoldwz siaded LLZGOBL00L
L6'6EE"G- uswainay - sakojdwy siadeD 60£-10/5961
1888 - soueInsu| Wes) - askodwg siedien 50596100}
o0°se- 16% - evfoidwz s19de) 8695961001
54°801'G- juswasmay - ssfodwz s134[eD 96-+695961
9ele 52 100 - #ouBIguon) LEleidag pieog - ADUBN 'MEeT - mmmm_mﬁwwcomm_mmﬁw e Aoue 08Lyel
00°962- F20Z 'UiL2-52 100 - aduslsjuos Aisioeg preoy - UueAY “saiold - weig-iad 3810 uuefy 621121
00"00g- 120g Jequisideg - $084 10j081IQ Zn17) B 8(] opuBlUly 8LLPEL
unouwny owapy aweN wnN
120c¢ 13]0Jo0

BunetadQ - 1oway 10 Yueg

LB YOBYD
1011181 Yied B uonealday AsjjeA Aley) Juocwneag

1e0e/6LIoL
1202e/61/0L
120e/61/01
Fe0c/61/01
Leoeg/eL/0L
Le0e/8L/0}
1202/81/01
120e/81/01
LE0eM L0

Le0e/8 L0l

120g/81L/01
LE0ZBLIOL
LE0E/BHOL
180e/8LI0L
ig0e/8l/0l
120g/81/01
+202/81/01
kc0g/BL/01L
Le0e/et/oL
Le0z/BLOL

LEZ0g/8 /0L

L20g/8 Lok
L202/81L/01
Le0e/gl/ol
+c0c/81/01
Leog/eLiol

Le0e/BLIOL

Le0eT/BLIOL
120e/81L/0L

L]
aieq

duinesadQ - Hiog

%0340

Rt}

i lity)

Pl
[RLINOI [B13UaL)
$08UQD- W g
¥o8UD- ud IIfg
H8UD- uid (19
HoyD- Iud |Ig
HO3UD- Id g
HOBUD- W i
HoRUD- Iwd 51
%08UD- W g
¥08UD- Wd [1ig
398U~ g |lig
FoauD- Jwid g
309y Wwd 111G
¥8yQ- Jud Ig
H0BUD- W i
Ho8YD- d g
¥I8YY- g Mg
39840~ Wid fiig
¥oBYD- JWid (19
$o8UD- 1ud Iig
#0840~ uid |I1g
PeyD- wid g

Ho8UD

H0YD

Hoaun

adA)



g jo g affey rard
e L8 :cmmm .wm._oqn_ 2 >o¢m2 ‘MET] - 8JUsI8JU0T - |9 "snNg SJBI5NE %7 BARQ L20cZe0LIN
.vF.Nmm.F- BUIAA B FBZ)[05 1SeuaqoD h_m_.,:.hm.,\.u mu_m .O__umm WY snitg .w.mm_z wmu%._mwwﬂmh HUEg YNOdINN E9809520HE
! iy ‘ol f leng
08’89/ wawhed 11X 0§14 Aguon WpsID piod G116/02806
veetl- aar) upduwng - Apued PIY BiY 220TET0 LS
26'29- ane) updwng - 1sepesig geig Jaxep sheq usneg 1202E20LSH
00°00%- 8]0 - SSPNHYEH Pue S8SI0H sseg owobion ueg ‘gnd spip %} sfog LE0EZE01SY
L6 $9- aaen Ev_ac.nnn_ Hiem axen - exed s0ig 191BlS £e08ec0LzZY
Z6bL- ane] undung - Apuen $§87 # POOS £20282e0LZY
62+- aaleD upjdwing - syoidyioo], soig JBIElS LE0Z22012ZY
00°000't- suosiad {0z} - uang |gog souebajz uunny 10NSIQ Hied R UOREBEIOZY apIM AS([BA 12022201 N
20'626- AoueN ‘MET - |810H - 120/82/01 - L202/52/01 - 9ousIs|uoy ABeIoes preog s9)Ing Asseque] METOLY
66°¢- epeibdn eberoyg pnojol woo-eddy 12022201 N
04°45- Aued AeplioH yels - swoiD sl Wod UazZeWwyY 120212017V
00°005- LE0g/SHOL - Aled Aepyuig - usodaq Alnoeg siqepunjey S8{[EA BULIOD E6ltgt
00°005- 1202/71/01 - younT jesreaysy Buppem - usodeg Alunoes ejgepunjey s8N0y UoSlly 1N A
00°009- L202/0E/0L - yseq MeBog pue sieig si1eag Jo} UL App3 saa1s L6121
00°005- 1202/2/01 - Buppap - ysodeq Aunosg sigepunjey e AsIn 061¥21
00°081- anduwn feqyog Hnpy Y2107 I9RUDIN 68L12L
00°09- anduwry feqyos Wnpy yaejsy) slad 88LvEL
00°051- auduin ||BHOS WNpY ojoyny [@BUIN 81121
0002 - andwi |[BQYOS HNPY uosd| Auof Auoyuy 98Lvel
00000'L- yseg yebog pue sieig siaag ysken) Bupelg ysed Ajed SBLPEL
6t°€01- ysiugiday ysed Aliad - J01BUIPI00D SBRIARDY useo Aed yaILFEL
00°00¢- yseq Bugiels aare) upiduing used Aed E8L¥EL
00°'005- {vebog) JsueLo] ebeiolg gy JoAeo A MaT Zs8ivel
¥L00L- fured AeplioH peis - sulop sigeL oY LoZBUY 20202012V
89 v62- suad wolsng wepdiswy 1202020144
00°000 % |- L# eBpug - puod pebog j10ge] ‘00 Buisee~) cogey L8LYEL
01 /0L~ asueINsU] UoISIA - askojdwiy UE|d 821G UOISIA-JSA L202020 1
00°186°01- LInjal it ey - 90jm 1 unosoy patireyn Aepiiiei 1 oupeyD 12026101 TN
unowy oway JeN wnj
FC0¢ 12qo0

BunesadQ - 10waH Jo)Hjueyg

JURLIEAA YO09YD
1011810 Yied B uonesiosy As|jep Auay) Juowineag

leoge/ic/ol
L208/SE/0L

RATALETA
Le0e/ee/OL
Lg0e/ee/OL
RAVALAA o]
180g/2e/0l
Le0e/ee/0h
L202/ce/01
RAVALAAN]S

RAVAIAAD] S

1e0e/ec/ol
Le0g/1e/o}
Leog/ie/ol
Le0e/Le/01
(FAVAAL
Lg0e/1g/01
Le0e/1e/ot
Leue/ie/ol
120e/ie/ol
LEQE/1e/01
120g/te/0h
ke0e/ie/ol
t20g/Lefol
FAVAA
L202/0e/01L
120e/Ce/0
Lgog/cc/olL
leoe/og/ol
Leoe/si/ol

s1eq

BuinesadQ - Hy0g

3o8UD
HoRU- Juid |IIg
HOBUD- G Hig
SLLTo)
08U
%0940
ReElite)
%0840
%9940
584D

#29UD

EETT)
084D
H8UD
%0040
pecitlel
NosUD
308D
sHosuD
%08UD
#8UD
840
%9840
BLEINe)
%9840
%0840
3o8YD
$08YD
340840- 1Uid (19
Lahe)

adA),



9 jo g afieg

8uneisdg - Hiog

YE'122'801L

vE'1Z3'C01 TYLOL

02'95¢- shemesnlD - yseg pebog @ sjeig 'sisag - SUIYS abuno yes syl 120262018 L202/82/01 HIRUD
05°9- ag 57 AUILop Bupjueg orREI/SNN 894  1202/62/01 Mo8YD
29°028- 5§88} SUIIBIN PIED IPRID {3OXNE HOHW)I8A0ID) 833400  1202/62/0) Hoayo
05412 120g/08/01 yseg ueboq ¢ sjeig 'sisag - (s1gnoq) xog Aexaor - [eluay Jonelq 810 L2026201SY  1202/6e/01 Ho8uD
00'06- sadwn §BayoS INPY Y2107 |21 I61P2L  1202/62/01 ¥28UD
0o'0g1- sendwrn fleayos Jnpy yoBpeD 819d 96LFEL  1808/B6T/0} #0840
0001z andun (eayos Inpy uosdio Auoy Auoujuy S6LYEL  L20E/6e/0L b el Hg)
00'0Le- anduwin (fequos ynpy ojoyny [RYIIN ¥eLFEL  1208/62/01 Hoeys
00°000'5%- siig 1oy yebog o} Jajsuel S26Z0LSURIL  1202/62/0L [ewinor [eisuan
00°005'Z- Jajsuety AjyiLow 10} 19y 1epy ASUOK O} Jaisuel | SZ6zolLsuRl] 1E20E/6E/01 [euinof [ersuan)
00°000'S- Jajsuelt AUIUOI 10} SAIBSSY O} JofSuel] £Z6Z0LSUBLL  12028/62/01 [euInor fRiauaL)
15'852- siuang - (g} s19[000) ofivianag uojebol 1$9g ) 0Q Juownesg ZE0ZHE01SH  £208/8E/0! pacitie]
89°L¢- yseq uebog  speig 'sioag - 191BM s0ig 19EIS L2028Z0LSYM  L20Z/8E/01 biclbel
A younT yiuoy suj jo aakojdig doyg ooe ] 1YBLEN |3 L202820148  L202/8e/01 %08y
00°09- (2) 181504 me Joge UORRIDDSSY SIOLISIT [RIneds BlIOMED L2028Z0L0Or  1202/82/01 HIBYD
20°66%- . uuehy sayng Assequig SBI0l4608  120Z/8E/0H so0UD

$8.I014 - 19IOH - 120Z/82/01 - L208/SE/01 - 8ousiBuo) Alelesong pieog
00°000'se- LEZ0B/BE/01 Hd 10} Hoihed o} Jejsuel ] ZZHZ0OISURIL  L1Z0E/BTI0L [BLINOP [BI3USY
00'000'05¢ flolhed g sig 104 puny AUNoY BPISIBAlY UI0)) pasajsuel) | k2820L40H  L202/me/ol [eumnor felauan
05°E61L- $87Ud - Yuow eyt jo aafoidwz W0 uozewy L202Leelzy  1202/4T/01 Hasun
unouny ouBP RN wny a1eq adiy
L20¢ 18qo120

BunesadQ - 19w o Hueg

JUBLIEA MO9UD
10181 Yied B uonealaay Asjjep Aueyn Juowneag



t40 L 9bed 7T 1@ e Aduop - Hjog

00'005'£ pL-AReTl
00°005'2 Jajsurl | Aluuop Jo) Bultesedo woly Jeysuel | GZ6E0LsURIL  LE0E/BZI0L [BLINOP fRIBUBD)
— W - 19WsH Jo jueg - 0000+
wnouny oway awey wnp aeq adA}
1202 180100
19e|\ Asuoy - 1oWaH Jo yueg
JUBLIBA YO3Y)D

TMINCEA U ™ BIAITHAlAasmsd "\llﬂ A ‘ ERE i im YAty A=



t4o | abeq YAt anIasaY - Hiog

00°000°'s WLOL
-0()—'0(53'-9__ Jajsuel] Aluluop 1o} aalesay O Joysuel | £Z6Z01SuelL LEQZ/BE/0L [ELLMOr [eIaUaL)
pungy &AI9%3Y - JaWaH Jo jue[ - 2001
junouwy pied owap aweN winn aea adAL
1202 18¢0120
OAJI9SaY - JoWAH JO yueq
JUBLIEAR YI3YD

oS Yied ® uolleataay Asjiep Altays juowneag



L Jo | aBed 't d1a/Aquing - Hiog

00°000'89- VLol
m s|Iig e weaaoidw)| [endes jo Buneradeo oy Jejsuel) LELOLSUBE] LZOT/B LIOL fELINO [BiBUSD)
a0 000'ee- sig juswaaoldwi [eydes Jof Bunerado o Jeysues] epLOLsuUBl] L20EFLIOL felnor [Bisusn
Jia/AquinE - oW Jo yueg - 0Z00L
wnowy owap aweN _Tu?ﬁ_ _?ecrm" adA]
L20¢ 1940100
41g/AquiInp - Jaway jo yueg
JUBLIBAA )39YD

1011S1(] Yled B uoljealaay AsjjeA Alisyn juowneag



1 jo | abieg

pesog - Hjog

[ar

£6°6E6'G1- TVLOL

00°000'S¥ siig Joy Buelad( utol} paysjsue | geB20LSUBIL  LZ0Z/6Z/01 jeumor [elsusn
6L 9EG uysel] - SanIN 31 auy Jo uswalieuep oisem 918660868008  L20Z/BL/0L NIBUD- Jid g
947981~ vefioq yim SUOHEDIUNWIEIOD JBIUOL e18bMNrIed  L202/8L/0L Ha8YD- W Mg
00°504- J0geT] pue [BUBIB - UlBY AL QT 1840 SSE|DXOId U383 SHS FeS  L20e/FLoL 3o8UD- Wid firg
25'696'0- (mopespy) ssern afy absjo) 271 “Aiddng adedspue sugeis oLEZS  L2o2ibLiol Moy~ 1w (g
8°00V'F- L# 8bipug puod [epaleiy diop |ga1g suoled 6085  LE0e/1/0L A28YD- 1ud |Iig
6289166 ‘e JO pus YUOU Je wiEans 8||qr 4o0s Bunsixe aje|IqeYSY “oU| ‘UONINISUOD LOSULOP UIHB 8025  LSO0E/L/OL %o8YQ- ud ||ig
0070 suljuo pied :QIOA SUOHESIUNUILIOS JBNUCIS 2025 1208101 %o3UD- jud ||Ig
00" Loy 108107 1594 AR 10U0Y 1534 HED 9085  LE0Z/FLIOL Hosy- juid (119
e 1818 AN - SORIIIN S00-EaMADG S085  Lg0eMH L0t HoeyD- 3ud g
G/°950'0- leyep - senun 700-€ AMADS v028  L20g/k1/0L HOBUD- Itlid il
gt'gs1- 1afe A - SSNN £00-€ AMADE €025 LB0T/FLOL HoeyD- id g
00216 JoTRAN - SANN Z00-€ AMADE 202S  LE0ELIOL #oBUD- I g
ge' ez 1BYRAR - SBIHEN L00-E€ AMADE L025  L20emLO0L $oRUD- W g
059 88y Aluiop preg BpaIn Bupjueg oisielySINN a4 L20B/ELOL $284D
06°£9- [euey uawdinb3 Alyuoy JBA0ED) 12022L0L  1202/2H0L pieciize}
81°608- - §884 PIBD PRI {AOMNG HOHINMBAOID S39400  1202/+0/01 HoauD
00'891'L- {neBog) aupei3 - sapn {9681 15855004) 305 $3L0956  1202/v0/0L 308t ud [ig

yied pebog - 1eway Jo sueg - 05001
unouy owap aweN winy aeq adfi]
1e0¢ 19q0J20

1ebog - 1away Jo queg

JeLeAn YodY)

101181 Yied B uonealosy As|jep Auays) Juownesyg



Beaumont Cherry Valley Recreation Park District

Bank Account Balances
As of 10/31/2021

Starting Balance Payables Deposits Ending Balance Notes/Comments
1 |Bank of Hemet - Operating $ 31,787.42 | $  450,771.10 | $  490,637.26 | $ 71,653.58
2 |Bank of Hemet - Payroll Account $ 3,529.53 | $§ 76,262.93 | $ 75,000.00 | $ 2,266.60
3 |Bank of Hemet - Project Loan $ 1,588.70 $ 1,588.70
| Eoncoomstsogn s sy wmmm]s smmls remas] |
s |Bank of Hemet MM $  82,500.00 $ . 7503 75|s s e000s T ik e e
6 |Bank of Hemet - Reserve Fund $ 310,216.77 $ 5,016.49 | $ 315,233.26
7 |Bank of Hemet - Quimby/DIF $ 123,284.81 | $ 63,000.00 | $ 26,388.27 | $ 86,673.08
8 |Petty Cash $ 500.00 $ 500.00
9 |Riverside County Fund $ 868,927.87 | $ 550,000.00 $ 318,927.87
10 |s 143683268 | $ 1,200984.36 | $ 658,951.77 [ s  894,800.09 |
11 |Bank of Hemet - Reserve Fund ‘ Balance ~ Payables ~ Deposits 'Ending-B'aianee-  Notes/Comments
12 |Operating Reserve » |s 25000000 i : $ 250,000.00|  NOT to be USED
12 |Capital Reserve e a0 21g77 | ~ |s so01e49|s 6523326 | Min Balance of $50,000
| 1«|[TOTAL RESERVE ACCOUNT [ $310,216.77 | § - |$ 5,016.49 | $ 315,233.26 | : 3l

Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recrecation & Park District Improvement Corporation

Bank Account Balance
As ol 10/31/2021

Staring Balance Payables Deposits Ending Balance Notes/Comments
| 15 |[Bank of Hemet [$ 14611751 |s  2142711]s  a71800]s  120,408.40

23



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY

RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Staff Report

Agenda Item No. 3.1
To: Chairman and Board of Directors

From: Janet Covington, Human Resources Director
Date: November 10, 2021

Subject: 2022 Board Meeting Dates

Background and Analysis:
Each year the District holds it regular scheduled Board meeting on the second Wednesday of

each month. The dates for 2022 are as follows.

January 12, 2022
February 09, 2022
March 09, 2022
April 13, 2022

May 11, 2022
June 08, 2022
July 13, 2022
August 10, 2022
September 14, 2022
October 12, 2022
November 09, 2022
December 14, 2022

Fiscal Impact: None
Recommendations:

Staff recommends approving the 2022 regular scheduled Board meeting dates with
the authority to make changes subject to Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation & Park
District Board of Directors.

Respectfully Submitted,
.’
). Oﬂuf_mé’(én

net Covington, Human Resources Administrator/Clerk of the Board




BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY

RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Staff Report

Agenda Item No. 3.2
To: Chairman and Board of Directors

From: Janet Covington, Human Resources Administrator
Date: November 10, 2021

Subject: Approval of the 2022 Holiday Schedule

Background and Analysis:

As a policy of the District, the District observes an average of twelve holidays per year. Each
year staff reviews for approval the upcoming year’s holidays based on Federal recognized
holidays. The prior 9 years the Board approved 13 days. Below is a list of 2022 holidays for
consideration and approval.

_ onday, Febru 21,2022 _ ie‘ R

Friday, November 25, 2022 | | Day After Tankgiving
| Sunda, Decemr 25, 2022 : ” |
OBSERVED Monday, December 26, 2022 | Clristmas Day Observed |

Fiscal Impact:
Per District policy, Full-Time employees are paid for holidays observed by the District. If

approved, the District will observe thirteen holidays in 2022.

Recommendations:
Staff recommends approving the 2022 holiday schedule.

Respectfully Submitted,

\ ;
&lbmet Covmgton
Human Resources Administrator/Clerk of the Board



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY

RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Staff Report

Agenda Item No. 3.3
To: Board of Directors

From: Nancy Law, Finance Services Technician/Office Manager
Via: Duane Burk, General Manager

Date: November 10th, 2021

Subject: Approval of Final Reading 19/20 Audit

Background and Analysis:

Government Code Section 200.49 Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) specific
accounting standards issued by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) these standards requires that the District have and annual
audit.

Halliday & Company has performed our annual audits for the District, Due to COVID-19
Halliday & Company auditors performed the annual audit for FY 2019-2020 ending June 30th,
2020 remotely.

On September 13th, 2021 the draft audit for FY 2019-2020 was approved by the Board of
Directors.
Fiscal Impact:

District approximated the Audit cost of $29,000 for FY 19/20.

Recommendations:

Staff recommends that the Board review, comment and approve the Audit for FY 2019-2020
ending June 30, 2020.




BEAUMONT - GHERRY VALLEY

RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT

1 Opportunitic f (

9 W

FINANCIAL REPORT
JUNE 30, 2020



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT

CONTENTS
Page
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 1-2
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Net Position 3-4
Statement of Activities 5
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 6-7
Statements of Revenue, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance -
Governmental Funds 8-9
Notes to Financial Statements 10 - 36
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED
Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions - Last 10 Years 37
Schedule of District’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability -
Last 10 Years 38
Schedule of Changes in the District’s Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios -
Last 10 Years 39

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED

Officers, Directors, and Senior Management and [nsurance Coverage 40



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and
each major fund of Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District {the District) as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2020 and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

HALLIDAY
&COMPANY

info@hallidaycpas.com | 9561.5642.3705 [ 1706 Plum Lane, Suite 124, Redlands, CA 92374



Board of Directors

Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
Independent Auditor’s Report

Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund
of the District as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position thereof
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters

Require Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
information related to the pension and other postemployment benefits plans on pages 37
through 39 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence
to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to
suppiement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the
basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Qther Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements. The accompanying schedule of officers, directors, and senior management and
insurance coverage on page 40 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. This schedule has not been subjected to
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly,
we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Hadliciey 8ol

November 3, 2021




BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2020

Governmental
Activities
Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,229,035
Accounts receivable:
Program service fees 7,223
Property taxes 92,775
Capital assets nondepreciable 452,678
Capital assets depreciable, net 3,537,927
Total assets 5,119,638
Deferred outflows of resources
Pension related 230,050
QOPEB related 19,181
Total deferred outflows of resources 249,231
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 5,368,869

See notes to financial statements.
3



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2020

Governmental
Activities
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position
Liabilities
Accounts payable to vendors S 182,642
Accrued payroll 8,193
Program service fee deposits 86,573
Capital lease obligation 36,237
Long~term liabilities 659,098
Total liabilities 972,743
Deferred inflows of resources
Pension related 29,415
QPEB related 200,761
Lease assignment 297,731
Total deferred inflows of resources 527,907
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 3,754,368
Unrestricted 13,851
Total net position 3,868,219
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and net position $§ 5,368,869

See notes to financial statements.
4



"S]USLWAaIR)S |RIDUBUL) 0) $810U 888

G

617°898°¢ $ Jeak jJo pua ‘uonisod 19N
296°CoV’'S Jeah Jo Suluulfaq ‘uoipsod 18N
AT 404 uoiyisod jau ul aguey)
786771687 sanuaAa. |elsuss jejo)
ZGL'641 J8U10
LF8'GL 8WODUI }S8481U|
99.'v0¢C SONUSASI |EIUSLLLIBACT IO
LTel'e soxe} Anadoug
1S9NUBASI [RIOUDE)
(G2L'801°7) ¢89’0¢y $ 80¥'685°C $ lejolL
GoL'g 878762 % FAVXA uoljepunod
(0289112} $ Ge8'¥4T $ G99°LIS'T $ uoneasay
S3IJIAI}OY [EIUSLULLIDAOY)
saIMAlOY $99IAI8G sosuadxg sweagoud/suoiouny
[EJUSWIUIBADY) 10} safieyn
anuaaay sanuanay weioid

(sesuadxy) 3eN

0Z0¢ '0¢ auny papuy .es)
S3ILIAILOY 40 LNIW3ILVILS

1O141S1d M¥Vd ANV NOILVIYOIY AT TIVA AMYIHO-LNOWNY3d



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUND
June 30, 2020

General Foundation
Fund Fund Totals
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,148,322 § 80,713 § 1,229,035
Accounts receivable:
Program service fees 7,223 - 7,223
Property taxes 50,294 - 50,294
Due from other funds - 191,170 191,170
Total assets $1,205,839 § 271,883 § 1,477,722
Liabilities
Accounts payable to vendors 182,642 - 182,642
Accrued payroll 8,193 - 8,193
Program service fee deposits 71,673 15,000 86,573
Due to other funds 191,170 - 191,170
Total liabilities 453,578 15,000 468,578
Fund balances
Unassigned 752,261 256,883 1,009,144
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 1,205,839 $§ 271,883 § 1,477,722

See notes to financial statements.



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUND

June 30, 2020

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the

statement of net position are different because:
Total fund balances - governmental fund S 1,009,144
Accounts receivable in the statement of net position that do

not provide current financial resources are not reported

as receivables in the funds. 42,481
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, used in

governmental activities are not current financial

resources and, therefore, are not reported in the fund. 3,790,605
Capital lease obligations are not reported in the fund. (36,237)
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current

period and, therefore, are not reported in the fund. (659,098)
Deferred inflows related to the lease assignment are

not reported in the fund. (297,731
Deferred inflows and outflows related to the pension are

not reported in the fund. 200,635
Deferred inflows and outflows related to OPEB are

not reported in the fund. (181,580)

Net position of governmental activities

See notes to financial statements.

7

$ 3,868,219



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2020

General Foundation

Fund Fund Totals
Revenues
Program service fees $ 394,835 § 35848 $§ 430,683
Property taxes 2,102,288 - 2,102,288
Intergovernmental revenues 204,766 - 204,766
Interest income 15,847 - 15,847
Other 162,178 4,304 166,482
Total revenues 2,879,914 40,152 2,920,066
Expenditures
Salaries and benefits 1,093,836 - 1,093,836
Service and supplies 1,156,546 27,743 1,184,289
Capital outlay 1,180,187 - 1,180,187
Total expenditures 3,430,569 27,743 3,458,312
Revenues over expenditures (550,655) 12,409 (538,246)
Interfund activity
Transfers in 67,404 - 67,404
Transfers out - (67,404) (67,404)

67,404 (67,404) -

Net change in fund balances (483,251) {54,995) (538,246)

Fund balance _
Beginning of year 1,235,512 311,878 1,547,390

End of year $ 752,261 § 256,883 $1,009,144

See notes to financial statements.
8



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balance - governmental fund S (538,246)

Revenues recorded in the statement of activities
that are not considered current financial resources in
the current year governmental fund statements. 23,599

Changes in long-term liabilities and deferred outflows
and inflows related to pension/OPEB (74,299)

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in the
governmental fund statements; however, in the
statement of activities, capital outlay is not an expense,
rather it is an increase in capital assets. 1,180,187

Depreciation expense allocates the costs of capital assets
over their useful lives. I is not reported as an

expenditure in the governmental statements. (186,984)

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 404,257

See notes to financial statements.
9



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - REPORTING ENTITY

The Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District (the District) was established in
June 1972 under the authority of the Government Code, Section 58132. The District
operates under a board of directors to provide, manage, and maintain recreation and park
facilities and activities for the Beaumont-Cherry Valley area of Riverside County,
California, as a separate governmental entity. The District receives a majority of its income
from the County of Riverside through property taxes. The Board of Directors has the
power to determine fiscal, personnel, and administrative policy subject only to state law.

The District, for financial reporting purposes, includes all of the funds relevant to the
operations of the District and is not included as a component unit in any other primary
government’s financial statements. In determining the entities which comprise the
governmental entity for financial reporting purposes, the criteria of oversight
responsibility over such entities, special financial relationships, and scope of public
service provided by the entities are used. Oversight responsibility is determined by the
extent of financial interdependence, control over the selection of the governing authority
and management, ability to significantly influence operations, and accountability for fiscal
matters.

The District and the Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park Improvement
Corporation (the Corporation) have a financial and operational relationship which meets
the reporting entity definition criteria of the Government Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 14 (GASB 14), The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB
Statement No. 39 (GASB 39), Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component
Units, for inclusion of the Corporation as a component unit of the District. Accordingly,
the financial activities of the Corporation are included in the financial statements of the
District.

The following are those aspects of the relationship between the District and the
Corporation which satisfy the GASB 39 criteria:

A. The Corporation and the District share substantially the same board of directors
and management.

B. The District is able to impose its will upon the Corporation.

The Corporation is a nonprofit, public benefit corporation incorporated under the laws of
the State of California and recorded by the Secretary of State on April 22, 1992, The
Corporation was formed primarily to strengthen the resources of the District, improve the
general public’s knowledge concerning programs sponsored by the District, and distribute
funds or property received by the Corporation to the District for the use and benefit of
the District.

10



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The District’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). GASB is responsible for
establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements
{(Statements and Interpretations). The more significant accounting policies established in
GAAP and used by the District are discussed below.

Basic Financial Statements - Government-Wide Statements

The District’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the
District as a whole) and fund financial statements {reporting on the District’s funds). Both
the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as
governmental. The District’s recreational program activities, development and
maintenance of the District’s various parks and facilities, and general administration are
all classified as governmental activities.

In the government-wide statement of net position, the governmental activities are
reported on a full accrual economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets,
deferred outflows of resources and receivables as well as long-term debt, deferred
inflows of resources and obligations. The District’s net position is reported in two parts:
net investment in capital assets and unrestricted net position.

The government-wide statement of activities reports both the gross and net cost of each
of the District’s functions (recreation and foundation). The functions are also supported
by general government revenues (property taxes, intergovernmental revenue, interest
income, etc.). The statement of activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation)
by related program revenues, operating grants and contributions, which include 1) charges
to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital reguirements of a particular function
or segment.

The net costs (by function) are normally covered by general revenue (property taxes,
intergovernmental revenue, interest income, etc.).

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the District as an entity and
the change in the District’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities.

11



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NQTE 2 ~ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basic Financial Statements - Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the District are reported in individual funds in the fund
financial statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
deferred inflows of resources, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in the governmental
activities category. GASB No. 34 set forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets and
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, revenues or
expenditures/expenses of either fund category or all governmental and enterprise funds
combined) for the determination of major funds. The District only has two funds which
are both considered major funds.

Governmental Funds:

The focus of the governmental fund’s measurement (in the fund statements} is upon
determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and
balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income. The District reports two
major governmental funds:

The general fund is the District’s operating fund used to account for and report all
financial resources for the recreation activity. The activity reported in this fund is reported
as governmental activity in the government-wide financial statements.

The foundation fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenues sources that are restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. The
foundation fund’s primary source of revenue is provided by fundraising events and
donations. The foundation funds resources are intended to be used for park improvement
projects.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus is a term used to describe “which” transactions are recorded within
the various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to “when” transactions are
recorded regardless of the measurement focus applied.

On the government-wide statement of net position and the statement of activities,
governmental activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus
as defined below. In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources”
measurement focus or the “economic resources” measurement focus is used as
appropriate.

12



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued}
All governmental funds utilize a “current financial resources” measurement focus. Only

current financial assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows
of resources are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating statements
present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given period.
These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources
at the end of the period.

The accounting objectives of the “economic resources” measurement focus are the
determination of operating income, changes in net position {or cost of recovery), financial
position, and cash flows. All assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and
deferred inflows of resources (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their
activities are reported.

In the government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities,
governmental activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liability, deferred inflow of resources is incurred or economic asset
used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources resulting from exchange and exchange-like
transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized
as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when "measurable and available.” Measurable means knowing or being able to
reasonably estimate the amount. Available means collectible within the current period or
within sixty days after year end. The District recognizes property taxes when they become
both measurable and available. A sixty-day available period is used for revenue recognition
for all other governmental funds revenues. Expenditures are recorded when the related
fund liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting, except expenditures related to debt
service, compensated absences, claims and judgments, pensions, and other
postemployment benefits, which are recognized when due. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as capital outlay expenditures in governmental funds.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, those
revenues susceptible to accrual are program service fees, property taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, interest income, and grant income. All other revenue items
are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
government.

13



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 ~ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of net position, the District considers cash and all highly
liquid investments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. The District is a voluntary participant in the Riverside County Treasurer’s
Pooled investment Fund (RCTPIF). Due to the high liquidity of this investment, the funds
are classified as cash equivalents. The RCTPIF pools these funds with those of other
entities and invests the cash as prescribed by the California Government Code, The fair
value of the District’s position in the pool approximates the fair value of the District’s pro-
rata share of the entire RCTPIF portfelio. The balance available for withdrawal is based on
the accounting records maintained by RCTPIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost
basis. There are no limitations on the withdrawal of these funds. For credit risk purposes,
the fund is rated AAAF/SI.

Accounts Receivable
The District believes all accounts receivable are fully collectible and therefore no
allowance for doubtful accounts is provided.

Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Activity
Interfund activity is reported as loans, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are reported

as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon
consolidation. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate
benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund
transactions are treated as transfers.

Prepaids
Prepaids are valued at cost, which approximates market. Certain payments to vendors

reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaids in both
the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Capital Assets
Capital assets acquired and/or constructed with an original cost of $5,000 or more and

an estimated useful life greater than one year, are recorded at historical cost. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date of donation.
Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life
of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance that do not
add to the value of the capital assets or materially extend the lives of capital assets are
not capitalized. Upon retirement or other disposition of capital assets, the costs and
related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective balances and any
gains or losses are recognized.

14



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital Assets {Continued)

The cost of capital assets being constructed by the District are accumulated in capital
assets non-depreciable within the government-wide financial statements during the
construction period. Upon completion of construction and being placed into service,
depreciation of the resulting asset is commenced.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Life in
Type of Asset Years
Buildings and infrastructure 25 - 40
Buildings and land improvements 16 - 20
Maintenance equipment and vehicles 5h-15

Capital assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets in question may not be recoverable.
Impairment would be recorded in circumstances where undiscounted cash flows
expected to be generated by an asset are less than the carrying value of the asset. As of
June 30, 2020, no impairment was recognized as management expects to fully utilize the
District’s capital assets,

Deferred Quitflows/Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflow/inflow of resources represents an increase/decrease of net position
that applies to a future period and therefore will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure)/inflow of resources {revenue) until that time.

Pension Accounting
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of

resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the District’s California Public Employee’s Retirement System (CalPERS) plans
(Plans) and additions to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit
payments {including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when currently
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair
value.

16



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the District’s OPEB plan (the OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from the
OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as reported
by the OPEB Plan’s administrator, CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

Compensated Absences
Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation

and sick leave and accrued compensatory time. Employees are entitled to accumulate this
time in accordance with the District’s policies. Upon termination of employment for any
reason, the District shall compensate the employee for their accumulated vacation and
compensatory time at the employee’s rate of pay at the time of termination. Sick time is
not eligible for payout at termination per the District’s policies.

A liability for compensated absences that is attributable to services already rendered and
not contingent on a specific event outside the control of the government and its
employees is accrued in the government-wide financial statements as employees earn the
rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services or that are
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the government and its
employees are accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or such
events take place.

Property Taxes
The County of Riverside Assessor’s Office assesses all real and personal property within

the County each year. The County of Riverside Tax Collector’s Office bills and collects the
District’s share of property taxes and assessments. The County of Riverside Treasurer’s
Office remits current and delinquent property tax collections to the District throughout
the year. Property tax in California is levied in accordance with Article 13A of the State
Constitution at 1.0 percent of countywide assessed valuations.

16



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property Taxes {(Continued)

Property taxes receivable at year-end are related to property taxes collected by the
County of Riverside, which have not been credited to the District’s cash balance as of
June 30. The property tax calendar is as follows: ‘

Lien date: January 1

Levy date: On July 1 for July 1to June 30

Due date: November 1 - 1st installment
February 1~ 2nd installment

Collection date: December 10 - st installment

April 10 - 2nd installment

Net Position

The government-wide statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is
categorized as net investment in capital assets and unrestricted net position. The District
has no restricted net position.

Net investment in capital assets - This category groups all capital assets into one
component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of
debt (if any) that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
these assets reduce the balance in this category.

Unrestricted net position — This category represents the net position of the District not
restricted for any project or other purpose.

The District may fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g. restricted
bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to
report as restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the statement of net
position, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied. It is the District’s policy to consider restricted net position to
have been depleted before unrestricted net position.

Fund Balance

in fund financial statements, the government fund balance may be categorized as
honspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned. As of June 30, 2020, the
District’s governmental fund balance was comprised entirely of unassigned amounts.

Fund balances in governmental funds are reported in classifications that comprise a
hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to honor constraints
on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. The District may
fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted resources {the
total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance).

17



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fund Balance (Continued)

In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and
unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption
must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is
the District’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before
using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components
of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance
is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied
last.

The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints
placed on the purposes for which resources can be used:

Nonspendable Fund Balance - Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in
nonspendable form or are required to be maintained intact.

Restricted Fund Balance - Amounts that are constrained to specific purposes by state or
federal laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors.

Committed Fund Balance - Amounts that may be specified by the Board of Directors by
ordinance or resolution to formally commit part of the fund balance or future revenues
for a specific purpose(s) or program. To change or repeal any such commitment will
require an additional formal Board of Director’s action utilizing the same type of action
that was originally used.

Assigned Fund Balance - Amounts that are constrained by the Board's intent to use
specified financial resources for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor
committed. The District’s fund balance policy delegates the authority to assign amounts
to be used for specific purposes to the General Manager.

Unassigned Fund Balance - These are either residual positive net resources in excess of
what can properly be classified in one of the other four categories, or negative balances.

Budgetary Policies
The District adopts an annual nonappropriated budget for planning, control, and

evaluation purposes for the general fund. A legal budget is neither required nor adopted.
Therefore, these financial statements do not include budget and actual comparisons.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and disclosures
made in the accompanying notes to the financial statements. While management believes
these estimates are adequate, actual results could differ from those estimates.

18



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

New Accounting Pronouncements
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued the below statements

which may affect the District’s financial reporting requirements in the future. The District
is currently evaluating its accounting practices to determine the potential impact that
these statements will have on the District’s the financial statements.

In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases, which addresses new accounting and
financial reporting requirements for leases, improving accounting and financial reporting
for leases for governments. Leases that were previously classified as operating leases and
recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract will be recognized as a tease liability and an intangible right-to-
use lease asset for lessees and a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources for a
lessor. As deferred by GASB Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of
Certain Authoritative Guidance, the requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2021.

In June 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before
the End of a Construction Period, which requires that interest cost incurred before the
end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost
is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement
focus. As deferred by GASB Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of
Certain Authoritative Guidance, the requirements for this statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020.

In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred
Compensation plans, which reqguires that a Section 457 plan be classified as either a
pension plan or an other employee benefit plan depending on whether the plan meets the
definition of a pension plan and clarifies that Statement 84, as amended, should be
applied to all arrangements organized under IRC section 457 to determine whether those
arrangements should be reported as fiduciary activities. The requirements for this
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021.

19



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For purposes of the following discussion, cash and cash equivalents have been classified
as follows as of June 30, 2020:

Petty cash S 500
Deposits in financial institutions 579,440
Riverside County Treasurer’s Pooled Investment Fund 649,095

§ 1,229,035

Investments Authorized by the District’s Investment Policy
The District’s investment policy authorizes investment in the RCTPIF. The District’s

investment policy does not contain specific provisions intended to limit the District’s
exposure to interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Credit Risk and Custodial Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation
to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a
nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The RCTPIF is not rated; however,
investments in the RCTPIF are highly liquid assets and are secured by the full faith and
credit of Riverside County.

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be
able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.
Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party.

The California Government Code and the District’s investment policy do not contain legal
or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits
or investments, other than the following provision for deposits; the California Government
Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local
governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a
depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The
market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent
of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial
institutions to secure District deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having
a value of 150 percent of the secured public deposits.

As of June 30, 2020, $329,440 of the District’s total bank balance was not insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC); however, this amount was collateralized as
described above by securities held by the bank in a public funds collateral pool, not
specifically in the District’s name.

20



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Capital assets nondepreciable:
Land $ 271,450 § 156,500 $ - § 427,950
Construction in progress 143,393 5,268 {123,933) 24,728
Total capital assets nondepreciable 414,843 161,768 {123,933) 452,678
Capital assets depreciable:
Buildings and infrastructure 1,590,809 239,519 - 1,830,328
Building and land improvements 1,431,523 853,468 - 2,284,991
Maintenance equipment and vehicles 391,101 59,916 - 451,017
Total capital assets depreciable 3,413,433 1,152,903 - 4,566,336
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and infrastructure {680,792) (48,977) - {729,76%9)
Building and land improvements {251,863) (93,014) - {344,877)
Maintenance equipment and vehicles (113,782) {39.981) - {(153,763)
Total accurmnulated depreciation {1,046,437) (181,972) - {1,228,409)
Total capital assets depreciable, net 2,366,996 970,931 - 3,337,927
Total capital assets, net $ 2,781,839 § 1,132,699 § (123,933) § 3,790,605

All depreciation expense was charged to recreation activities as the foundation fund does
not have any capital assets.

21



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liabilities activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Compensated absences S 36,951 § 51,992 § (61,075) § 27,868
Net OPEB liability/{asset) 128,239 43,470 (280,141) (108,432)
Net pension liability 683,427 56,235 - 739,662
Total capital assets, net $ 848,617 § 151,697 § (341,218) § 659,098

The only portion of long-term liabilities that is considered due within one year is the
compensated absences amount of $27,868.

NOTE 6 - PENSION PLAN

General Information About the Pension Plan

Plan Description

All qualified District employees are required to participate in the District’s Miscellaneous
Plan (the Plan), a cost-sharing muitiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by CalPERS, unless they specifically opt out. CalPERS acts as a common
investment and administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of
California. A menu of benefit provisions as well as other requirements are established by
State statutes within the Public Employee’s Retirement Law. The District selects optional
benefit provisions from the benefit menu by contract with CalPERS and adopts those
benefits through Board approval. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a
full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions,
membership, and financial information that can be found on the CalPERS website at
www.calpers.ca.gov.

Benefits Provided

CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments,
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on year of
credited service, with one year of credited service being equal to one year of full-time
employment. All members are eligible for standard non-industrial disability benefits after
five years of service. The District has chosen the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit.

22



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 -~ PENSION PLAN (Continued)

General Information About the Pension Plan {Continued)

Contribution Description

Section 20814{c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires that
the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis
by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate.
The total plan contributions are determined through CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation
process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance
any unfunded accrued costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to
contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution
rate of employees. The District’s total employer contributions were $112,783 for the year
ended June 30, 2020.

Active plan members who were hired before January 1, 2013 are referred to as “Classic”
employees. Beginning January 1, 2013, the District established two classes of employees,
as dictated by the newly enacted Public Employees Pension Reform Act (PEPRA).

The plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2020 are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous

Hire date prior Hire date in or

to fanuary 2013 after January 2013*
Benefit formula 2.7% at 55 2.0% at 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years b years
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for fife
Final average compensation period 12 months 34 months
Sick leave credit Yes Yes
Retirement age 50 - 55 & up 52 -67 & up
Monthly benefits as a percent of eligible

compensation 2.0%~-2.7% 1.0% - 2.5%

Cost of living adjustment 2.0% 2.0%
Required employee contribution rates 8.00% 6.75%
Required employer contribution rates 13.182% + $4,129/month  6.985% + $95/month

* For employees that were hired on or after January 1, 2013, were already members of
CalPERS prior to January 1, 2013, and had less than a six month break in service, the
benefit formula is 2.0% at 55, the required employee contribution rate was 7.00%, and
the required employer contribution rate was 9.680% + $49/month. All other plan
provisions and benefits are the same as those for other employees hired on or after
January 1, 2013.

23



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 — PENSION PLAN {Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability

Methods and Assumptions

The actuarial methods and assumptions used are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of
Administration. For the measurement period ending June 30, 2019 {the measurement
date), the total pension liability was determined by rolling forward the total pension
liability determined in the June 30, 2018 actuarial accounting valuation. The June 30, 2019
total pension liability was based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal in accordance with the requirements of
GASB Statement No. 68

Actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate 7.15%
Inflation 2.5%
Salary increases Varies by entry age and service
Mortality rate table* Derived using CalPERS” membership data for all funds
Post-retirement benefit Contract COLA up to 2.50% percent until purchasing
increase power protection allowance floor on purchasing power
applies.

* The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table
includes 15 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of scale
MP 2016. For more details on this table, please refer to the December 2017 CalPERS
experience study report (based on CalPERS demographic data from 1997 to 2015) that can
be found on the CalPERS website.

Long-term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using
a building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset
class.

24



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 - PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability (Continued)

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both
short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension
fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all of the funds’ asset classes, expected
compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and
the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal
returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated
for each fund, The expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded single
equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash
flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected
rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and
adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses.

The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class.

Asset Real Return
Asset Class* Allocation Years 1-10** Years 11+***
Global equity 50% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed income 28% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation assets - T7% 1.81%
Private equity 8% 6.30% 7.23%
Real assets 13% 3.75% 4.93%
Liguidity 1% - (0.92)%
Totai 100%

*In CalPERS’s CAFR, fixed income is included in global debt securities; liquidity is included
in short-term investments; inflation assets are included in both global equity securities
and global debt securities.

** An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period.

*** An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.

25



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE é — PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for PERF C was 7.15%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions
from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially
determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the Plan as of June 30, 2019
measurement date, calculated using the discount rate in effect at year-end. The table
shows what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is 1.0 percentage-point lower or 1.0 percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Discount Current Discount
Rate -1% Rate Rate +1%
6.15% 7.16% 8.15%
Net pension liability $ 1,146,768 § 739,662 § 403,625

26



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 ~ PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued CalPERS financial report.

Amortization of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Under GASB 68, actuarial gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and
fiduciary net position are recognized in pension expense systematically over time.

The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or
loss occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions and are to be recognized in future pension
expense.

The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss:

Difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments 5 year straight-line amortization

All other amounts 3.8 year straight-line amortization

Pension Related |iabilities, Expense, and Deferred Outflows/Deferred Inflows of
Resources

The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of
the net pension liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30,
2019, and the total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018 rolled forward to June 30,
2019 using standard update procedures. The District’s proportion of the net pension
liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the
pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers,
actuarially determined. The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as of
June 30, 2019 measurement date was 0.018%. There was no change in this proportion
since the prior measurement date.

27



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 - PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Pension Related Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred Qutflows/Deferred Inflows of
Resources (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized pension expense of $186,777.
At June 30, 2020, the District deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
pensions as follows:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of  Inflows of
Governmental activities: Resources Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 112,783 § -
Difference between expected and actual experience 51,373 3,980
Changes of assumptions 35,271 12,503
Difference in actual versus projected contributions 11,072 -
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings - 12,932
Difference between employer’s contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 19,5653 -
Total S 230,052 § 29,415

The amounts above are net of outflows and inflows recognized in the pension expense for
the year ended June 30, 2020. The $112,783 reported as deferred outflows of resources
related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in future pension expense as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,
2021 S 72,089
2022 2,208
2023 10,942
2024 2,613
Total S 87,852

28



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

General Information About the OPEB Plan

Plan Description

The District has established a Retiree Healthcare Plan and participates in the California
Employer’s Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT), an agent multiple-employer defined benefit
postemployment healthcare plan administered by CalPERS. The CERBT is an Internal
Revenue Code Section 116 trust and an investment vehicle that can be used by all California
public employers to prefund future retiree healthcare and other postemployment
benefits costs.

Benefits Provided

The OPEB Plan provides postemployment healthcare benefits through a third-party
insurer to employees who retire from the District on or after age 50 and have at least 10
years of service. The District pays a portion of the retiree’s health premiums for eligible
retirees range from 50% at 10 years of service up to 100% at 25 years of service. The
District’s board of directors has the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms.

Employees Covered
As of the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation, the following current and former employees
were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 1
Active employees 14
Total 15
Contributions

The District’s board of directors establishes and amends the contribution requirements
for the OPEB Plan. The District pays a portion of retiree benefit expenses on a pay-as-
you-go basis to third parties, outside of CERBT, and makes additional contributions to
CERBT to prefund benefits as determined by the District’s board of directors annually. For
the year ended June 30, 2020, the District’s contributed $3,551to the OPEB Plan, of which
$3,551 was used for current retiree healthcare premiums and $0 was used to prefund
benefits.

Net OPER Liability
The District’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2019 and the total OPEB

liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
as June 30, 2019,

29



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) {Continued)

Net OPEB Liability (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement,

unless otherwise specified:

Actuarial cost method
Inflation

Salary increases
Investment rate of return
Healthcare cost trend rates
Mortality rates

Retirement rates

Turnover rates

Entry age normal

2.75%

2.75% per year

7.00% net of expenses

4.00% per year

Based on the 2014 CalPERS mortallty rates for
Miscellaneous Employees experience studies.

Based on the 2009 CalPERS retirement rates for
miscellaneous employees experience studies.

Based on the 2009 CalPERS turnover rates for
miscellaneous employees experience studies.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major
asset class are summarized as follows:

Target lL.ong-term Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Equity 59% 7.795%
Fixed income 25% 4.500%
Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities 5% 3.250%
Real Estate Investment Trusts 8% 7.500%
Commodities 3% 7.795%
Total 100%

30



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (Continued)

Net OPEB Liability (Continued)

Rolling periods of time for all asset classes in combination were used to appropriately
reflect correlation between asset classes. This means that the average returns for any
asset class do not necessarily reflect the averages over time individually but reflect the
return for the asset class for the portfolio average. Additionally, the historic 38-year real
rates of return for each asset class along with the assumed long-term inflation assumption
was used to set the discount rate. The investment return was offset by assumed
investment expenses of 25 basis points.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.0 percent. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that the District contributions
will be made at rates sufficient to fully fund the obligation over a period not to exceed 38
years. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected
to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and inactive
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB
liability.

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

Increase (Decrease)

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position  Liability/(Asset)
Balance, beginning of year $ 460,368 § 332,129 $ 128,239
Changes during the year:
Service costs 7,484 - 7,484
Interest 32,309 - 32,309
Employer contributions - 43,567 {43,5667)
Expected investment income - 25,694 (25,694)
Administrative expense - (72) 72
Benefit payments (3,567 (3,567) -
Experience {(gains)/losses (210,952) {210,952)
Investment gains/{losses) - {3,677) 3,677
Net Change (174,726) 61,945 (236,671)
Balance, end of year S 285,642 § 394,074 § (108,432)

31



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) {Continued)

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s
net OPEB liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-
point lower or 1 percentage-point higher than the current discount rate:

Discount Current Discount
Rate -1% Rate Rate +1%
6.00% 7.00% 8.00%
Net OPEB liability/(asset) $ (59,5693) $ (108,432) § {147,275)

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s
net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are
1 percentage-point lower or 1 percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost
trend rates:

Trend Current Trend
Rate -1% Rate Rate +1%
3.00% 4.00% 5.00%
Net OPEB liability/{asset) § {(148,544) § (108,432) § (58,612)

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in CalPERS’
CERBT Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position by Employer which can be found
online at https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/forms-publications.

OPEB Expense and Deferred Qutflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized OPEB Plan expense of $14,607.

At June 30, 2020, the District had a deferred outflow of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to OPEB as follows:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Governmental activities: Resources Resources
OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date S 16,845 § -
Difference between expected and actual experience - 200,761

Net difference between projected and actual

investment earnings 2,336 -
Total S 19,181 § 200,761

52



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (Continued)

QPEB Expense and Deferred Quiflows and Deferred [nflows of Resources Related to QOPER
(Continued)

The amounts above are net of outflows and inflows recognized in OPEB expense for the
year ended June 30, 2020. The $16,845 reported as deferred outflows of resources
related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
reduction of the net OPEB liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB will be recognized in future pension expense as follows:

Year Ending

June 30,
2021 S (9,657}
2022 (9,657)
2023 (9,657)
2024 (9,457)
2025 (10,191}
Thereafter (149,806}
Total S {198,425)

33



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8 - LEASE ASSIGNMENT

The District assigned its rights under a lease agreement to a third-party for a lease under
which a small portion of the District’s land is utilized by a lessor for a communications
antenna facility. The District received a lumpsum in exchange for the lease assignment and
the third-party will collect future rent payments made by the lessor in accordance with
the original lease. The lease assignment agreement commenced in December of 2019 and
has a twenty-five-year term. The lumpsum has been recorded as a deferred inflow of
resources and will be recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease assignment agreement. Future revenue recognition under this agreement will be as
follows:

Year Ending

June 30,
2021 - § 12,669
2022 12,669
2023 12,669
2024 12,669
2025 12,669

Thereafter 234,386
Total $ 297,731

NOTE 9 - JOINT VENTURES

The District participates in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement (JPA) with the
California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity (CAPRI). The relationship
between the District and the JPA is such that the JPA is not a component unit of the
District for financial reporting purposes. Audited financial statements are available by
contacting CAPRI at 1075 Creekside Ridge Drive, Suite 240, Roseville, California 956278.

CAPRI provides insurance coverages, risk management, safety and loss prevention
services to its many member districts through a risk-sharing pool. CAPRI is governed by a
7 member board of directors comprised primarily of representatives of the member
districts. The board controls the operations of the JPA, including selection of management
and approval of operating budgets, independent of any influence by the member districts
beyond their representation on the board.

34



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9 - JOINT VENTURES {Continued)

Condensed audited financial information for CAPRI for the year ended June 30, 2020 is

as follows:

Total assets S 26,089,416
Total deferred outflows of resources 206,029
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources S 26,295,445
Total liabilities S 20,176,368
Total deferred inflows of resources 28,424
Total net position 6,090,653
Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and net position $ 26,295,445
Total operating revenues § 10,554,744
Total operating expenses (10,533,145}
Total nonoperating income 1,193,706
Total change in net position $ 1,215,305

NOTE 10 - INTERFUND ACTIVITY AND BALANCES

The interfund due to and due from balances of $191,170 are the result of a loan from the
special revenue fund to general fund for the general fund to acquire capital assets.
Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2020, are as follows:

Fund Financial Statements - Transfers: in Out
General fund - transfer from special revenue fund
for acquiring capital assets $ 5,328 § -
General fund - transfer from special revenue fund
for repairs and maintenance 62,076 -
Special revenue fund - transfer to general fund
for acquiring capital assets - 5,328
Special revenue fund - transfer to general fund
for repairs and maintenance - 62,076

§ 67,4048 67,404

35



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In December 2020, the District received a donation of approximately 123 acres of land
from a private party. The donated land is located in Cherry Valley of Riverside County and
at the time of donation held an appraised value of $8,325,000. The District is currently
conducting community outreach and discussions to determine future use of this land.

In preparation of these financial statements, the District considered subsequent events
through November 3, 2021, which is the date these financial statements were issued.

36



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DIiSTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED

Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions
Last 10 Years*

Contributions

in Relation to Coentributions

Contractually the Actuarially  Contribution as a % of

Required Determined Deficiency/ Covered Covered

Fiscal Year Contributions Contributions (Excess) Payroll Payroll

2020 $ 12,782 $ (112,782) § - § 651,836 17.50%
2019 106,605 {106,605) - 646,139 16.50%
2018 88,096 (88,096} - 532,139 16.55%
2017 84,684 (84,684} - 585,148 14.47%
2016 48,798 (48,798) - 466,221 10.47%
2015 42,396 (42,396) - 426,566 9.93%

* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore, not all 10 years of
information is available,

57



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Last 10 Years*

Proportionate Plan Fiduciary

Proportion  Proportionate Share of the  Net Position
of the Share of Net Pension  as a % of the
Net Pension Net Pension Covered Liability asa Total Pension
Fiscal Year Liability Liability Payroll % of Payroll Liability

2020 0.01847% $ 739,662 § 651,836 13.47% 73.93%
2019 0.01813% 683,427 646,139 105.77% 76.23%
2018 0.01788% 704,934 532,139 132.47% 75.88%
2017 0.01764% 612,637 586,148 104.70% 76.29%
2016 0.01670% 458,128 466,221 98.26% 81.57%
2015 Not available 313,776 426,566 73.56% Not available

* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore, not all 10 years of
information is available.

Notes to the Pension Schedules

Benefit Changes
None

Changes in Assumptions

Amounts reported in fiscal year 2018 reflect a change in the discount rate from 7.65% to
7.15%. Deferred outflows of resources for changes of assumptions includes the
unamortized portion of this assumption change. Amounts reported in fiscal year 2019
reflect a change in the inflation rate from 2.75% to 2.50%.

38



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED

Schedule of Changes in the District’s Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Last 10 Years*

Balance, beginning of year

Changes during the year:
Service costs

Interest

Employer contributions
Actual investment income
Expected investment income
Administrative expense
Experience (gains)/losses
Investment gains/(losses)

Balance, end of year
Covered employee payroll

OPEB liability/(asset) as a % of covered payroll

OPEB Liability/{Asset) - June 30,

2020 2019 2018
128,239 § 160,735 § 174,642
7,484 7,284 7,089
32,309 30,021 27,858
(43,567) (48,677) {25,587)
- (21,345} (23,494)
(25,694) - -
72 241 197
(210,952) - -
3,677 - -
(108,432) 128,239 160,735
651,836 646,139 532,139
(16.63)% 19.85% 30.21%

* Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation, therefore, not all 10 years of

information is available.

Notes to the OPEB Schedule

Benefit Changes
None

Changes in Assumptions
None

39



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ~ UNAUDITED

Officers, Directors, and Senior Management
As of June 30, 2020, the officers, directors, and senior management of the District were as

follows:

Term Expires

Dan Hughes, Chairman November 2020
John Flores, Vice-Chair/Secretary November 2020
Chris Diercks, Treasurer November 2022
Armando De La Cruz, Director November 2022
Denise Ward, Director November 2020
Duane Burk, General Manager N/A

Insurance Coverage
The District’s insurance provider is the California Association for Park and Recreation

Indemnity (CAPRI). Coverage carried by the District includes bodily injury, personal injury,
advertising injury, property damage, and public official and employee liability which may occur
anywhere in the world. The insurance provides coverage up to $1,000,000 per occurrence for
the following:

Property Damage - The deductible for general property damage is $2,000 per
occurrence. For earthquake damage the deductible is $50,000 per occurrence or 5%
of the value of the building, contents, and/or structure damage, whichever is greater.
For flood damage the deductible is $20,000 per occurrence.

Employment Practices, Bodily Injury, Personal Injury, Public Officials Errors and
Omissions Liability - These items are subject to a $20,000 deductible. The deductible
is reduced to $5,000 if the District follows guidelines set by CAPRI, such as consulting
with the District’s general counsel.

Crime - The deductible for employee theft is $§15,000 per occurrence. The deductibie
for forgery, theft of money, robbery, computer fraud, funds transfer fraud, and
counterfeit money is $5,000 per occurrence.

The District has a worker’'s compensation policy with employer liability coverage per
occurrence that meets the statutory requirements and covers all employees.

40



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY

RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Staff Report

Agenda Item No. 3.4
To: Chairman and Board of Directors

From: Janet Covington, Human Resources Administrator
Date: November 10, 2021

Subject: Approval of the Actuarial Study of Retiree Health Liabilities under
GASB 74/75.

Background and Analysis:

In compliance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the District
obtained an actuarial study of retiree health liabilities from Total Compensation Systems, Inc.
(TCS). The study is required to comply with GASB 74 /75 for the associated costs of our Post-
Retiree Health Benefits.

This was a “Roll-Forward” valuation, which means it relied on census data and benefit
provisions provided by staff from the previous valuation. This coming year the District will
obtain a “Full Valuation” consisting of updated demographic information.

The table at the bottom of Page 1 under “Key Results” reflects the following:

Total OPEB Liability - $307,263.00. This represents the amount the District is expected to
pay (owed) for future retiree medical benefits.

Fiduciary Net Position - $407,805.00. This represents the assets held in our irrevocable trust
that can only be used to provide Other Postemployment Benefits. (OPEB)

Net OPEB Liability — ($100,542.00). This represents the amount that exceeds the projected
liability. The plans assets exceed the liability.

I have attached, for reference, the Districts fund balance as of June 30, 2021. The balance is
now $516,242.89 compared to $407,805.00 (6/30/2020). This amount will be reflected in our
next valuation. This increase of $108,437.89 represents gains in our plan without
contributing.

The typical approach once over funding occurs is to no longer make contributions to the plan
and to pay retiree benefits from the plans assets. We currently pay for, and reimburse retiree
medical monthly from our general fund for the Districts portion of their medical benefit. This
year the District requested and received $3,617.58 from the plan to reimburse our cost.



Fiscal Impact:
The cost for consulting and production of the valuation - $1,530.00 to (TOT) Total
Compensation Systems, Inc.

Recommendations:
Staff recommends approval of the actuarial study dated October 15, 2021.

Respectfully Submitted,

le@j/w@ @, ‘Qmﬂ&“?“‘?

et Covington
Human Resources Administrator/ Clerk of the Board



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park

District
Actuarial Study of
Retiree Health Liabilities Under GASB 74/75
Roll-forward Valuation
Valuation Date: June 30, 2019
Measurement Date: June 30, 2020
For Fiscal Year-End: June 30, 2021

Prepared by:
Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

Date: October 185, 2021



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

Table of Contents

PART I: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ioaasasasssisinssssvisssssss v 1
AL INTRODUCTION ....uttiiitiistie it sebesssssesasssabessbes s besssssaesabssshsssssssssssessnsessensessassomsesanssseseesasessasnesassaesaseessesansessnssasseessessssssesssessssnsess 1
B. KEY RESULTS 1iiiectiiiiniisissseeiiaresssesssresssssssesssssesssss sasasssssss sarsessessessssessesossonsensasansssnsnesannssenssessssessnssssssesnsesssesessneessessessessessessssasesns 1
C. SUMMARY OF GASB 75 ACCOUNTING RESULTS . ...utitiitiititieitiiee et iee e eee e eee e e eee et eee e s e e et esee st eeeeeeesaeseeseatesseassassesseesneereens 2

1. Changes in Net OPEB LIl ...........c.ccccooooiiiiiiiiiie ettt 2

2. Deferred INIOWS GNA QUITOWS .......c.ccooiiiiiiiiiiii ettt ettt ettt ettt 2

3. OPEB EXPENSE. ..ottt ettt ettt e et a ettt e ettt ee ettt 3

Ao AGIUSTI@IIES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt a ettt e ettt ettt ee ettt 3

5. Trend and INterest RAIE SENSIIVITIES ..............cccciiivoeeiiieeieeees ettt e et ee e e e et ree et et 3

D. DESCRIPTION OF RETIREE BENEFITS .......cuiuiuiitiittiietit ettt ettt st ese st ess et ess s eseseas s esesessssases s st ensssasenssensanssssassenaesons 4

E. SUMMARY OF VALUATION DIATA ...ttt et e et e ete s sttt eetaassaseesaseseseesessaesaseesesneesnsassenseeseesnneeesasssersesanseesnsessesnesssnsans 4

B R R Tl L A TN 4w a0 h3+ s adiam anasems e amssss Ao an s mms oS AR RS A s A ARS8 s bt ekt 4 AL st s R A SR PR A R AT 5
PART II: LIABILITIES AND COSTS FOR RETIREE BENEFITS......ouenteereneeesnecsnecseneses iRl
1L B L0 U ) T T T N, 111 LR 7
B A B T Y FOR RE T e B e R S it s i e i (T s e s s nmme s enpan s mns s wn s s S et o e 4 e At e 7
C ACTUARIAT, ACCRUAT oo s i e r i s s sors s i oo i T s e M st s wemameanmmenmem s snsns nensmns Mires e s ensesns sessmmenns 8
B D e o T oT s T O 8
B: ‘TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY soisoieis i oy i i s s 0 000t e iyt b s o e wmsmm e e mn s Ao e n e s nm e e et 9

B VALUATION RESULTS e suseosasss v sy o v s i it e s i i n e e S Pt s e s L A o B 08T e nemn e st 10

1. Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefit Payments (APVPBP) ...........cccccoovcoioiiiieiieseeeeese et 10

2 SOHVICE COST oo v v B0 E o oo T o S T e S L et s mmens s s s g e g s 10

3. Total OFPED Liability and Net OPEB LitBiliti v o oisiasisrsisos siiioss sorssssess vase s soammssamasssssssnsass s onesesasasss 11

4. “Pay As You Go" Projection of Retiree Benefit PAVINERLS............ccccciivviieiiiisiesiesiee e 11

G. ADDITIONAL RECONCILIATION OF GASB 75 RESULTS .iiuiiusisiissiiviae s sisssatiissensissesssiosaissstsressissossss assissasntossssnmasnasenressnsassnas 12
H. PROGEDURES FOR FUTURE VAT ITATIONS o uciunmessmuss o iy taids s st (i e s b e o e s e v s o e e cm 13
PART III: ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND METHODS ...oveeeirrerissreressrsssssssssssnsssnsessane —
A. ACTUARIAL METHODSIAND ASSUINIPTIONS: uiuimiiiiineessssvoissivesissnssnsss s sieesisis s saiin oiii it svosks tiasmmmmmnens 14

B, ECONOMIC ASSUMPTIONS oy v il ironsionsimiasmsmonsiss i st s s s 50 i 050 o0 T S S s 005 FH 00 b e 15
C. NON-ECONOMIC ASSUNPRIOINS At tissnnssssssorsssivsssas covessisesionsssssros s s ts st s o sy i 0 S 00 ve 15 s e mmrann 16
PART IV: APPENDICES R sl B
APPENDEX A7 DEMOGRAPHIC DATA BN AGE ..oy s v b i e o i e s s 18
APPENDIX B: ADMINISTRATIVE BEST PRACTICES w....occvuivisvisiivossimsivssiossiviinssssssisssima e nnssits i it 19
APPENDIX C: GASB 74/75 ACCOUNTING ENTRIES AND DISCLOSURES ........coiiieteeiec et sre s e 20
APPENDIX D: DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES.................. 24



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
Actuarial Study of Retiree Health Liabilities

PART I: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
A. Introduction

This report was produced by Total Compensation Systems, Inc. for Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation
and Park District to determine the liabilities associated with its current retiree health program as of a June 30, 2020
measurement date and to provide the necessary information to determine accounting entries for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2021. This report may not be suitable for other purposes such as determining employer contributions
or assessing the potential impact of changes in plan design.

Different users of this report will likely be interested in different sections of information contained within.
We anticipate that the following portions may be of most interest depending on the reader:

> A high level comparison of key results from the current year to the prior year is shown on this page.

> The values we anticipate will be disclosed in the June 30, 2021 year-end financials are shown on
pages 2 and 3.

> Additional accounting information is shown on page 12 and Appendices C and D.

> Description and details of measured valuation liabilities can be found beginning on page 10.

> Guidance regarding the next actuarial valuation for the June 30, 2021 measurement date is provided
on page 13.

B. Key Results

Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District uses an Actuarial Measurement Date that is 12
months prior to its Fiscal Year-End. This means that these actuarial results measured as of June 30, 2020 will be
used on a look back basis for the June 30, 2021 Fiscal Year-End.

Key Results Current Year Prior Year
June 30, 2020 Measurement Date June 30, 2019 Measurement Date

Jor June 30, 2021 Fiscal Year-End Jor June 30, 2020 Fiscal Year-End

Total OPEB Liability (TOL) $307,263 $285,642
Fiduciary Net Position (FNP) $407,805 $394,074
Net OPEB Liability (NOL) ($100,542) ($108,432)
Service Cost (for year following) $6,488 $6,314
Estimated Pay-as-you-go Cost (for year following) $5,678 $4,743
GASB 75 OPEB Expense (for year ending) ($7,362) $5,493

Refer to results section beginning on page 10 or the glossary on page 27 for descriptions of the above items.

Key Assumptions Current Year Prior Year
June 30, 2020 Measurement Date June 30, 2019 Measurement Date

Sfor June 30, 2021 Fiscal Year-End Jor June 30, 2020 Fiscal Year-End

Valuation Interest Rate 7.00% 7.00%
Expected Rate of Return on Assets 7.00% 7.00%
Long-Term Medical Trend Rate 4.00% 4.00%

Projected Payroll Growth 2.75% 2.75%




Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

C. Summaryv of GASB 75 Accounting Results

1. Changes in Net OPEB Liability

The following table shows the reconciliation of the June 30, 2019 Net OPEB Liability (NOL) in the prior
valuation to the June 30, 2020 NOL. A more detailed version of this table can be found on page 12.

TOL FNP NOL
Balance at June 30, 2019 Measurement Date $285,042 $394,074 ($108,432)
Service Cost $6,314 $0 $6,314
Interest on TOL / Return on FNP $20,050 $13,924 $6,126
Employer Contributions $0 $16,845 ($16,845)
Benefit Payments ($16,845) ($16,845) $0
Administrative Expenses $0 ($193) $193
Experience (Gains)/Losses $12,102 $0 $12,102
Changes in Assumptions $0 $0 $0
Other $0 $0 $0
Net Change $21,621 $13,731 $7.890
Actual Balance at June 30, 2020 Measurement Date $307,263 $407,805 ($100,542)

2. Deferred Inflows and Qutflows

Changes in the NOL arising from certain sources are recognized on a deferred basis. The following tables
show the balance of each deferral item as of the measurement date and the scheduled future recognition. A
reconciliation of these balances can be found on page 12 while the complete deferral history is shown beginning on

page 24.

Balances at June 30, 2021 Fiscal Year-End Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Differences between expected and actual experience $11,517 ($190,570)
Changes in assumptions $0 $0
Differences between projected and actual return on assets $13,128 ($403)
Total $24,645 ($190,973)
To be recognized fiscal year ending June 30: Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
2022 $4,052 ($10,393)
2023 $4,052 ($10,392)
2024 $4,049 ($10,191)
2025 $3.315 ($10,191)
2026 $585 ($10,191)
Thereafter $8,592 ($139.,615)
Total $24,645 ($190,973)




Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

3. OPEB Expense

Under GASB 74 and 75, OPEB expense includes service cost, interest cost, administrative expenses, and
change in TOL due to plan changes, adjusted for deferred inflows and outflows. OPEB expense can also be derived
as change in net position, adjusted for employer contributions, which can be found on page 12.

To be recognized fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 Expense Component
Service Cost $6,314
Interest Cost $20,050
Expected Return on Assets ($27,578)
Administrative Expenses $193
Recognition of Experience (Gain)/Loss Deferrals ($9.606)
Recognition of Assumption Change Deferrals $0
Recognition of Investment (Gain)/Loss Deferrals $3,265
Employee Contributions $0
Changes in Benefit Terms $0
Net OPEB Expense for fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 ($7,362)

* May include a slight rounding error.

4. Adjustments

The above OPEB expense includes all deferred inflows and outflows except any contributions after the
measurement date. Contributions from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 minus prior contributions after the
measurement date of $16,845 should also be reflected in OPEB expense. June 30, 2021 deferred outflows should
include contributions from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021.

5. Trend and Interest Rate Sensitivities

The following presents what the Net OPEB Liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
assumption or a healthcare trend rate assumption one percent higher or lower than the current assumption.

Net OPEB Liability at June 30, 2020 Measurement Date Discount Rate  Healthcare Trend Rate
1% Decrease in Assumption ($49.431) ($145,519)
Current Assumption ($100,542) ($100,542)
1% Increase in Assumption ($141,274) ($44,206)




Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

D. Description of Retiree Benefits

Following is a description of the current retiree benefit plan that applies to employees hired prior to May 10,
2012. Those hired on or after May 10, 2012 are entitled to statutory minimum benefits under Government Code
Section 22892.

All Emplovees

Benefit types provided Medical only
Duration of Benefits Lifetime
Required Service 10 years
Minimum Age 50
Dependent Coverage No

District Contribution %  Based on years of service ranging from 50% at 10 years to
100% at 25 years of the amount in excess of the statutory
minimum employer contribution
District Cap Net Value Plan

E. Summary of Valuation Data

Because this is a roll-forward valuation, this report is based on census data previously provided to us as of
June, 2019 for the June 30, 2019 full valuation. Distributions of participants by age and service can be found on page
18. The active count below excludes employees for whom it was not possible to receive retiree benefits (e.g.
employees who were already older than the maximum age to which benefits are payable or who will not accrue the
required service prior to reaching the maximum age).

Valuation Year
June 30, 2019 Valuation Date
June 30, 2020 Measurement Date

Active Employees eligible for future benefits

Count 14
Average Age 384
Average Years of Service 6.2

Retirees currently receiving benefits

Count 1
Average Age 69.0

We were not provided with information about any terminated, vested employees.



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

F. Certification

The actuarial information in this report is intended solely to assist Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and
Park District in complying with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Accounting Statement 74 and 75 and,
unless otherwise stated, fully and fairly discloses actuarial information required for compliance. Nothing in this
report should be construed as an accounting opinion, accounting advice or legal advice. TCS recommends that third
parties retain their own actuary or other qualified professionals when reviewing this report. TCS’s work is prepared
solely for the use and benefit of Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District. Release of this report may be
subject to provisions of the Agreement between Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District and TCS. No
third party recipient of this report product should rely on the report for any purpose other than accounting
compliance. Any other use of this report is unauthorized without first consulting with TCS.

This report is for fiscal year July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021, using a measurement date of June 30, 2020. The
calculations in this report have been made based on our understanding of plan provisions and actual practice at the
time we were provided the required information. We relied on information provided by Beaumont-Cherry Valley
Recreation and Park District. Much or all of this information was unaudited at the time of our evaluation. We
reviewed the information provided for reasonableness, but this review should not be viewed as fulfilling any audit
requirements. We relied on the following materials to complete this study:

»  We used paper reports and digital files containing participant demographic data from the
District personnel records.

»  We used relevant sections of collective bargaining agreements provided by the District.

All costs, liabilities, and other estimates are based on actuarial assumptions and methods that comply with
all applicable Actuarial Standards of Practice (ASOPs). Each assumption is deemed to be reasonable by itself, taking
into account plan experience and reasonable future expectations and in combination represent our estimate of
anticipated experience of the Plan.

This report contains estimates of the Plan's financial condition and future results only as of a single date.
Future results can vary dramatically and the accuracy of estimates contained in this report depends on the actuarial
assumptions used. This valuation cannot predict the Plan's future condition nor guarantee its future financial
soundness. Actuarial valuations do not affect the ultimate cost of Plan benefits, only the timing of Plan contributions.
While the valuation is based on individually reasonable assumptions, other assumption sets may also be reasonable
and valuation results based on those assumptions would be different. Determining results using alternative
assumptions (except for the alternate discount and trend rates shown in this report) is outside the scope of our
engagement.

Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from those presented in this report due to factors
such as, but not limited to, the following: plan experience differing from that anticipated by the economic or
demographic assumptions; changes in economic or demographic assumptions; increases or decreases expected as
part of the natural operation of the measurement methodology (such as the end of an amortization period or
additional cost or contribution requirements based on the plan’s funded status); and changes in plan provisions or
applicable law. We were not asked to perform analyses to estimate the potential range of such future measurements.

The signing actuary is independent of Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District and any plan
sponsor. TCS does not intend to benefit from and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receive this
report. TCS is not aware of any relationship that would impair the objectivity of the opinion.

On the basis of the foregoing, I hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, this report is
complete and has been prepared in accordance with generally accepted actuarial principles and practices and all

5



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

applicable Actuarial Standards of Practice. My experience and continuing education are consistent with the
requirements described for actuaries under the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries.

Respectfully submitted,

Geoffrey L. Kischuk

Actuary

Total Compensation Systems, Inc.
(805) 496-1700



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

PART II: LIABILITIES AND COSTS FOR RETIREE BENEFITS
A. Introduction.

We calculated the actuarial present value of projected benefit payments (APVPBP) separately for each
participant. We determined eligibility for retiree benefits based on information supplied by Beaumont-Cherry Valley
Recreation and Park District. We then selected assumptions that, based on plan provisions and our training and
experience, represent our best prediction of future plan experience. For each participant, we applied the appropriate
assumption factors based on the participant's age, sex, length of service, and employee classification.

The actuarial assumptions used for this study are summarized beginning on page 14.

B. Liability for Retiree Benefits.

For each participant, we projected future premium costs using an assumed trend rate (see Appendix C). To
the extent Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District uses contribution caps, the influence of the trend
factor is further reduced. We multiplied each year's benefit payments by the probability that benefits will be paid; i.e.
based on the probability that the participant is living, has not terminated employment, has retired and remains
eligible. The probability that benefit will be paid is zero if the participant is not eligible. The participant is not
eligible if s/he has not met minimum service, minimum age or, if applicable, maximum age requirements.

The product of each year's benefit payments and the probability the benefit will be paid equals the expected
cost for that year. We multiplied the above expected cost figures by the probability that the retiree would elect
coverage. A retiree may not elect to be covered if retiree health coverage is available less expensively from another
source (e.g. Medicare risk contract) or the retiree is covered under a spouse's plan. Finally, we discounted the
expected cost for each year to the measurement date June 30, 2020 at 7.00% interest.

For any current retirees, the approach used was similar. The major difference is that the probability of
payment for current retirees depends only on mortality and age restrictions (i.e. for retired employees the probability
of being retired and of not being terminated are always both 100%).

The value generated from the process described above is called the actuarial present value of projected
benefit payments (APVPBP). We added APVPBP for each participant to get the total APVPBP for all participants
which is the estimated present value of all future retiree health benefits for all current participants. The APVPBP is
the amount on June 30, 2020 that, if all actuarial assumptions are exactly right, would be sufficient to expense all
promised benefits until the last participant dies or reaches the maximum eligibility age. However, for most actuarial
and accounting purposes, the APVPBP is not used directly but is instead apportioned over the lifetime of each
participant as described in the following sections.



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

C. Actuarial Accrual

Accounting principles provide that the cost of retiree benefits should be “accrued” over employees' working
lifetime. For this reason, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued in June of 2015 Accounting
Standards 74 and 75 for retiree health benefits. These standards apply to all public employers that pay any part of the
cost of retiree health benefits for current or future retirees (including early retirees), whether they pay directly or
indirectly (via an “implicit rate subsidy™).

To actuarially accrue retiree health benefits requires determining the amount to expense each year so that the
liability accumulated at retirement is, on average, sufficient (with interest) to cover all retiree health expenditures
without the need for additional expenses. There are many different ways to determine the annual accrual amount.
The calculation method used is called an “actuarial cost method” and uses the APVPBP to develop expense and
liability figures. Furthermore, the APVPBP should be accrued over the working lifetime of employees.

In order to accrue the APVPBP over the working lifetime of employees, actuarial cost methods apportion
the APVPBP into two parts: the portions attributable to service rendered prior to the measurement date (the past
service liability or Total OPEB Liability (TOL) under GASB 74 and 75) and to service after the measurement date
but prior to retirement (the future service liability or present value of future service costs). Of the future service
liability, the portion attributable to the single year immediately following the measurement date is known as the
normal cost or Service Cost under GASB 74 and 75.

The service cost can be thought of as the value of the benefit earned each year if benefits are accrued during
the working lifetime of employees. The actuarial cost method mandated by GASB 75 is the “entry age actuarial cost
method”. Under the entry age actuarial cost method, the actuary determines the service cost as the annual amount
needing to be expensed from hire until retirement to fully accrue the cost of retiree health benefits. Under GASB 75,
the service cost is calculated to be a level percentage of each employee’s projected pay.

D. Actuarial Assumptions

The APVPBP and service cost are determined using several key assumptions:

> The current cost of retiree health benefits (often varying by age, Medicare status and/or dependent
coverage). The higher the current cost of retiree benefits, the higher the service cost.

> The “trend” rate at which retiree health benefits are expected to increase over time. A higher trend
rate increases the service cost. A “cap” on District contributions can reduce trend to zero once the
cap is reached thereby dramatically reducing service costs.

> Mortality rates varying by age and sex (and sometimes retirement or disability status). If employees
die prior to retirement, past contributions are available to fund benefits for employees who live to
retirement. After retirement, death results in benefit termination or reduction. Although higher
mortality rates reduce service costs, the mortality assumption is not likely to vary from employer to
employer. :

> Employment termination rates have the same effect as mortality inasmuch as higher termination
rates reduce service costs. Employment termination can vary considerably between public agencies.

> The service requirement reflects years of service required to earn full or partial retiree benefits.
While a longer service requirement reduces costs, cost reductions are not usually substantial unless
the service period exceeds 20 years of service.



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

> Retirement rates determine what proportion of employees retire at each age (assuming employees
reach the requisite length of service). Retirement rates often vary by employee classification and
implicitly reflect the minimum retirement age required for eligibility. Retirement rates also depend
on the amount of pension benefits available. Higher retirement rates increase service costs but,
except for differences in minimum retirement age, retirement rates tend to be consistent between
public agencies for each employee type.

> Farticipation rates indicate what proportion of retirees are expected to elect retiree health benefits if
a significant retiree contribution is required. Higher participation rates increase costs.

> The discount rate estimates investment earnings for assets earmarked to cover retiree health benefit
liabilities. The discount rate depends on the nature of underlying assets for funded plans. The rate
used for a funded plan is the real rate of return expected for plan assets plus the long term inflation
assumption. For an unfunded plan, the discount rate is based on an index of 20 year General
Obligation municipal bonds rated AA or higher. For partially funded plans, the discount rate is a
blend of the funded and unfunded rates.

E. Total OPEB Liability

The assumptions listed above are not exhaustive, but are the most common assumptions used in actuarial
cost calculations. If all actuarial assumptions are exactly met and an employer expensed the service cost every year
for all past and current employees and retirees, a sizeable liability would have accumulated (after adding interest and
subtracting retiree benefit costs). The liability that would have accumulated is called the Total OPEB Liability
(TOL). The excess of TOL over the value of plan assets is called the Net OPEB Liability (NOL). Under GASB 74
and 75, in order for assets to count toward offsetting the TOL, the assets have to be held in an irrevocable trust that is
safe from creditors and can only be used to provide OPEB benefits to eligible participants.

Changes in the TOL can arise in several ways - e.g., as a result of plan changes or changes in actuarial
assumptions. Change in the TOL can also arise from actuarial gains and losses. Actuarial gains and losses result
from differences between actuarial assumptions and actual plan experience. GASB 75 allows certain changes in the
TOL to be deferred (i.e. deferred inflows and outflows of resources).

Under GASB 74 and 75, a portion of actuarial gains and losses can be deferred as follows:

> Investment gains and losses are deferred five years.

> Experience gains and losses are deferred over the Expected Average Remaining Service Lives

(EARSL) of plan participants. In calculating the EARSL, terminated employees (primarily retirees)

are considered to have a working lifetime of zero. This often makes the EARSL quite short.

> Liability changes resulting from changes in economic and demographic assumptions are also
deferred based on the EARSL.

> Liability changes resulting from plan changes, for example, cannot be deferred.



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

F. Valuation Results

This section details the measured values of the concepts described on the previous pages. Because this is a
roll-forward valuation, the results shown in this section do not match the overall results as of the measurement date.

1. Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefit Payments (APVPBP)

Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefit Payments as of June 30, 2019 Valuation Date

Total

Active: Pre-65 Benefit $93,209
Post-65 Benefit $181,648

Subtotal $274.857

Retiree: Pre-65 Benefit $0
Post-65 Benefit $59.086

Subtotal $59.086

Grand Total $333,943
Subtotal Pre-65 Benefit $93,209
Subtotal Post-65 Benefit $240,734

2. Service Cost

The service cost represents the value of the benefit earned during a single year of employment. It is the
APVPBP spread over the expected working lifetime of the employee and divided into annual segments. We applied
an "entry age" actuarial cost method to determine funding rates for active employees. The table below summarizes
the calculated service cost.

Service Cost Valuation Year Beginning July 1, 2019

Total

# of Eligible Employees 14
First Year Service Cost

Pre-65 Benefit $1,708

Post-65 Benefit $4,606

Total $6,314

Accruing retiree health benefit costs using service costs levels out the cost of retiree health benefits over
time and more fairly reflects the value of benefits "earned" each year by employees. While the service cost for each
employee is targeted to remain level as a percentage of covered payroll, the service cost as a dollar amount would
increase each year based on covered payroll. Additionally, the overall service cost may grow or shrink based on
changes in the demographic makeup of the employees from year to year.

10



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

3. Total OPEB Liability and Net OPEB Liability

If actuarial assumptions are borne out by experience, the District will fully accrue retiree benefits by
expensing an amount each year that equals the service cost. If no accruals had taken place in the past, there would be
a shortfall of many years' accruals, accumulated interest and forfeitures for terminated or deceased employees. This
shortfall is called the Total OPEB Liability. We calculated the Total OPEB Liability (TOL) as the APVPBP minus
the present value of future service costs. To the extent that benefits are funded through a GASB 74 qualifying trust,
the trust’s Fiduciary Net Position (FNP) is subtracted to get the NOL. The FNP is the value of assets adjusted for any
applicable payables and receivables as shown in the table on page 15.

Total OPEB Liability and Net OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2019 Valuation Date

Total
Active: Pre-65 Benefit $80,143
Active: Post-65 Benefit $146,413
Subtotal $226,556
Retiree: Pre-65 Benefit $0
Retiree: Post-65 Benefit $59,086
Subtotal $59,086
Subtotal: Pre-65 Benefit $80,143
Subtotal: Post-65 Benefit $205,499
Total OPEB Liability (TOL) $285,642
Fiduciary Net Position as of
June 30, 2019 $394,074

Net OPEB Liability (NOL) ($108,432)

4. “Pay As You Go" Projection of Retiree Benefit Payvments

We used the actuarial assumptions shown in Appendix C to project the District’s ten year retiree benefit
outlay. Because these cost estimates reflect average assumptions applied to a relatively small number of participants,
estimates for individual years are certain to be inaccurate. However, these estimates show the size of cash outflow.

The following table shows a projection of annual amounts needed to pay the District’s share of retiree health

costs.
Year Beginning
July 1 Total
2019 $4,743
2020 $5,678
2021 $7,663
2022 $9,937
2023 $12,805
2024 $15,252
2025 $17.977
2026 $21,038
2027 $19,573

2028 $21,387

11



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

G. Additional Reconciliation of GASB 75 Results

The following table shows the reconciliation of the June 30, 2019 Net OPEB Liability (NOL) in the prior
valuation to the June 30, 2020 NOL. For some plans, it will provide additional detail and transparency beyond that
shown in the table on Page 2.

TOL FNP NOL
Balance at June 30, 2019 $285,642 $394,074 ($108,432)
Service Cost $6,314 $0 $6,314
Interest on Total OPEB Liability $20,050 $0 $20,050
Expected Investment Income $0 $27,578 ($27,578)
Administrative Expenses $0 ($193) $193
Employee Contributions $0 $0 $0
Employer Contributions to Trust $0 $0 $0
Employer Contributions as Benefit Payments $0 $16,845 ($16,845)
Actual Benefit Payments from Trust $0 $0 $0
Actual Benefit Payments from Employer ($16,845) ($16,845) $0
Expected Minus Actual Benefit Payments** $12,102 $0 $12,102
Expected Balance at June 30, 2020 $307,263 $421,459 ($114,196)
Experience (Gains)/Losses $0 $0 $0
Changes in Assumptions $0 $0 $0
Changes in Benefit Terms $0 $0 $0
Investment Gains/(Losses) $0 ($13,654) $13,654
Other $0 $0 $0
Net Change during 2020 $21,621 $13,731 $7,890
Actual Balance at June 30, 2020* $307,263 $407,805 ($100,542)

* May include a slight rounding error.
*#* Deferrable as an Experience Gain or Loss.

Changes in the NOL arising from certain sources are recognized on a deferred basis. The deferral history for
Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District is shown beginning on page 24. The following table
summarizes the beginning and ending balances for each deferral item. The current year expense reflects the change
in deferral balances for the measurement year.

Deferred Inflow/Outflow Balances Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

Change Due to Change Due to
Beginning Balance New Deferrals Recognition Ending Balance
Experience (Gains)/Losses ($200,761) $12,102 $9.606 ($179,053)
Assumption Changes $0 $0 $0 $0
Investment (Gains)/Losses $2,336 $13,654 ($3,265) $12,725
Deferred Balances ($198.,425) $25,756 $6,341 ($166,328)

The following table shows the reconciliation of Net Position (NOL less the balance of any deferred inflows
or outflows). When adjusted for contributions, the change in Net Position is equal to the OPEB expense shown
previously on page 3.

Preliminary OPEB Expense Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

Beginning Net Position Ending Net Position Change
Net OPEB Liability (NOL) ($108,432) ($100,542) $7,890
Deferred Balances ($198.425) ($166,328) $32,097
Net Position $89,993 $65,786 ($24,207)
Adjust Out Employer Contributions $16.845
OPEB Expense ($7,362)




Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

H. Procedures for Future Valuations

GASB 74/75 require annual measurements of liability with a full actuarial valuation required every two
years. This means that for the measurement date one year following a full actuarial valuation, a streamlined “roll-
forward” valuation may be performed in place of a full valuation. The following outlines the key differences
between full and roll-forward valuations.

Full Actuarial Valuation Roll-Forward Valuation
Collect New Census Data Yes No
Reflect Updates to Plan Design Yes No
Update Actuarial Assumptions Yes Typically Not
Update Valuation Interest Rate Yes Yes
Actual Assets as of Measurement Date Yes Yes
Timing 4-6 weeks after information is received 1-2 weeks after information is received
Fees Full Reduced
Information Needed from Employer Moderate Minimal
Required Frequency At least every two years Each year, unless a full valuation is performed

The majority of employers use an alternating cycle of a full valuation one year followed by a roll-forward
valuation the next year. However, a full valuation may be required or preferred under certain circumstances.
Following are examples of actions that could cause the employer to consider a full valuation instead of a roll-
forward valuation.

> The employer considers or puts in place an early retirement incentive program.

> The employer considers or implements changes to retiree benefit provisions or eligibility
requirements.

» The employer desires the measured liability to incorporate more recent census data or
assumptions.

> The employer forms a qualifying trust or changes its investment policy.

> The employer adds or terminates a group of participants that constitutes a significant part of

the covered group.

We anticipate that the next valuation we perform for Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District will be
a full valuation with a measurement date of June 30, 2021 which will be used for the fiscal year ending June 30,
2022.




Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

PART III: ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND METHODS

Following is a summary of actuarial assumptions and methods used in this study. The District should
carefully review these assumptions and methods to make sure they reflect the District's assessment of its underlying
experience. It is important for Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District to understand that the
appropriateness of all selected actuarial assumptions and methods are Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park
District’s responsibility. Unless otherwise disclosed in this report, TCS believes that all methods and assumptions
are within a reasonable range based on the provisions of GASB 74 and 75, applicable actuarial standards of practice,
Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District’s actual historical experience, and TCS’s judgment based on
experience and training.

A. ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS:

ACTUARIAL COST METHOD: GASB 74 and 75 require use of the entry age actuarial cost method.

Entry age is based on the age at hire for eligible employees. The attribution period is determined as the
difference between the expected retirement age and the age at hire. The APVPBP and present value of
future service costs are determined on a participant by participant basis and then aggregated.

SUBSTANTIVE PLAN: As required under GASB 74 and 75, we based the valuation on the substantive plan.
The formulation of the substantive plan was based on a review of written plan documents as well as
historical information provided by Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District regarding
practices with respect to employer and employee contributions and other relevant factors.

14



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

B. ECONOMIC ASSUMPTIONS:

Economic assumptions are set under the guidance of Actuarial Standard of Practice 27 (ASOP 27). Among other
things, ASOP 27 provides that economic assumptions should reflect a consistent underlying rate of general inflation.
For that reason, we show our assumed long-term inflation rate below.

INFLATION: We assumed 2.75% per year used for pension purposes. Actuarial standards require using the
same rate for OPEB that is used for pension.

INVESTMENT RETURN / DISCOUNT RATE: We assumed 7.00% per year net of expenses. This is based
on assumed long-term return on employer assets.. We used the “Building Block Method™. (See Appendix C,
Paragraph 53 for more information). Our assessment of long-term returns for employer assets is based on
long-term historical returns for surplus funds invested pursuant to California Government Code Sections
53601 et seq.

TREND: We assumed 4.00% per year. Our long-term trend assumption is based on the conclusion that,
while medical trend will continue to be cyclical, the average increase over time cannot continue to outstrip
general inflation by a wide margin. Trend increases in excess of general inflation result in dramatic
increases in unemployment, the number of uninsured and the number of underinsured. These effects are
nearing a tipping point which will inevitably result in fundamental changes in health care finance and/or
delivery which will bring increases in health care costs more closely in line with general inflation. We do
not believe it is reasonable to project historical trend vs. inflation differences several decades into the future.

PAYROLL INCREASE: We assumed 2.75% per year. Since benefits do not depend on salary (as they do for
pensions), using an aggregate payroll assumption for the purpose of calculating the service cost results in a
negligible error.

FIDUCIARY NET POSITION (FNP): The following table shows the beginning and ending FNP numbers
that were provided by Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District.

Fiduciary Net Position as of June 30, 2020

06/30/2019 06/30/2020
Cash and Equivalents $0 $0
Contributions Receivable $0 $0
Total Investments $394.074 $407,805
Capital Assets $0 $0
Total Assets $394,074 $407,805
Benefits Payable $0 $0
Fiduciary Net Position $394,074 $407,805




Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

C. NON-ECONOMIC ASSUMPTIONS:

Economic assumptions are set under the guidance of Actuarial Standard of Practice 35 (ASOP 35). See Appendix C,
Paragraph 52 for more information.

MORTALITY
Participant Type Mortality Tables
Miscellaneous 2014 CalPERS Active Mortality for Miscellaneous Employees
RETIREMENT RATES
Employee Type Retirement Rate Tables
All Participants Hired < 1/1/13: 2009 CalPERS 2.7%@355 Rates for Miscellaneous Employees
Hired > 12/31/2012: 2009 CalPERS 2.0%(@62 Rates for Miscellaneous Employees adjusted to
reflect a minimum retirement age of 52
SERVICE REQUIREMENT
Employee Type Service Requirement Tables
All Participants Hired on or after 5/10/12: 100% of the statutory minimum employer contribution at retirement

Hired prior to 5/10/12 - 50% at 10 years of service increasing to 100% at 25 years

COSTS FOR RETIREE COVERAGE

Actuarial Standard of Practice 6 (ASOP 6) provides that, as a general rule, retiree costs should be based on actual claim
costs or age-adjusted premiums. This is true even for many medical plans that are commonly considered to be
“community-rated.” However, ASOP 6 contains a provision — specifically section 3.7.7(c) — that allows use of
unadjusted premiums in certain circumstances.

It is my opinion that the section 3.7.7(c)(4) exception allows use of unadjusted premium for PEMHCA agencies if
certain conditions are met. Following are the criteria we applied to Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park
District to determine that it is reasonable to assume that Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District’s future
participation in PEMHCA is likely and that the CalPERS medical program as well as its premium structure are
sustainable. (We also have an extensive white paper on this subject that provides a basis for our rationale entirely within
the context of ASOP 6. We will make this white paper available upon request.)

e Plan gqualifies as a “pooled health plan.” ASOP 6 defines a “pooled health plan” as one in which
premiums are based at least in part on the claims experience of groups other than the one being valued.”

Since CalPERS rates are the same for all employers in each region, rates are clearly based on the
experience of many groups.

® Rates not based to any extent on the agency’s claim experience. As mentioned above, rates are the
same for all participating employers regardless of claim experience or size.

e Rates not based to any extent on the agency’s demographics. As mentioned above, rates are the

same for all participating employers regardless of demographics.

® No refunds or charges based on the agency’s claim experience or demographics. The terms of
operation of the CalPERS program are set by statute and there is no provision for any refunds and
charges that vary from employer to employer for any reason. The only charges are uniform

administrative charges.

¢ Plan in existence 20 or more years. Enabling legislation to allow “contracting agencies” to participate
in the CalPERS program was passed in 1967. The CalPERS medical plan has been successfully
operating for almost 50 years. As far back as we can obtain records, the rating structure has been

16



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

consistent, with the only difference having been a move to regional rating which is unrelated to age-
adjusted rating.

No recent large increases or decreases in the number of participating plans or enrollment. The
CalPERS medical plan has shown remarkably stable enrollment. In the past 10 years, there has been
small growth in the number of employers in most years — with the maximum being a little over 2% and
a very small decrease in one year. Average year over year growth in the number of employers over the

last 10 years has been about 0.75% per year. Groups have been consistently leaving the CalPERS
medical plan while other groups have been joining with no disruption to its stability.

Agency is not expecting to leave plan in foreseeable future. The District does not plan to leave
CalPERS at present.

No indication the plan will be discontinued. We are unaware of anything that would cause the
CalPERS medical plan to cease or to significantly change its operation in a way that would affect this
determination.

The agency does not represent a large part of the pool. The District is in the CalPERS Other
Southern California region. Based on the information we have, the District constitutes no more than
0.1% of the Other Southern California pool. In our opinion, this is not enough for the District to have a
measurable effect on the rates or viability of the Other Southern California pool.

Retiree liabilities are based on actual retiree costs. Liabilities for active participants are based on the first year costs
shown below. Subsequent years’ costs are based on first year costs adjusted for trend and limited by any District
contribution caps.

Participant Type Future Retirees Pre-65 Future Retirees Post-65

All Participants

Statutory minimum: $1,650 Statutory minimum: $1,650
Supplemental benefit: $7,789 Supplemental benefit: $2,824

PARTICIPATION RATES
Employee Type <65 Non-Medicare Participation % 65+ Medicare Participation %
Miscellaneous 100% 100%

TURNOVER
Employee Type Turnover Rate Tables

Miscellaneous

2009 CalPERS Turnover for Miscellaneous Employees

SPOUSE PREVALENCE
To the extent not provided and when needed to calculate benefit liabilities, 80% of retirees assumed to be married at
retirement. After retirement, the percentage married is adjusted to reflect mortality.

SPOUSE AGES
To the extent spouse dates of birth are not provided and when needed to calculate benefit liabilities, female spouse
assumed to be three years younger than male.

17



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

PART IV: APPENDICES

APPENDIX A: DEMOGRAPHIC DATA BY AGE

ELIGIBLE ACTIVE EMPLOYEES BY AGE AND SERVICE

Under 5 5-9 10— 14 15-19 20-24 25-29 30-34  Over34
Years of  Years of Years of Yearsof Yearsof Yearsof Yearsof  Yearsof
Service Service Service Service Service Service Service Service

E
=
~

4 1
1 1

Under 25
25-29
30-34
35-39
40 — 44
45—-49
5054
55-59
60— 64

65 and older

hRl——oOoPr,roo—— O WL

—

Total

ELIGIBLE RETIREES BY AGE AND EMPLOYEE CLASS

2
2
T

Age

Under 50
50 - 54
55-59
60 — 64
65 —-69
70 -74
75-79
80 -84
85 -89

90 and older
Total

=IO OO O =000




Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

APPENDIX B: ADMINISTRATIVE BEST PRACTICES

It is outside the scope of this report to make specific recommendations of actions Beaumont-Cherry Valley
Recreation and Park District should take to manage the liability created by the current retiree health program. The
following items are intended only to allow the District to get more information from this and future studies. Because
we have not conducted a comprehensive administrative audit of Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park
District’s practices, it is possible that Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District is already complying
with some or all of these suggestions.

>

Y

We suggest that Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District maintain an inventory of all
benefits and services provided to retirees — whether contractually or not and whether retiree-paid or
not. For each, Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District should determine whether the
benefit is material and subject to GASB 74 and/or 75.

Under GASB 75, it is important to isolate the cost of retiree health benefits. Beaumont-
Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District should have all premiums, claims and expenses
for retirees separated from active employee premiums, claims, expenses, etc. To the extent
any retiree benefits are made available to retirees over the age of 65 — even on a retiree-
pay-all basis — all premiums, claims and expenses for post-65 retiree coverage should be
segregated from those for pre-65 coverage. Furthermore, Beaumont-Cherry Valley
Recreation and Park District should arrange for the rates or prices of all retiree benefits to
be set on what is expected to be a self-sustaining basis.

Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District should establish a way of designating
employees as eligible or ineligible for future OPEB benefits. Ineligible employees can include those
in ineligible job classes; those hired after a designated date restricting eligibility; those who, due to
their age at hire cannot qualify for District-paid OPEB benefits; employees who exceed the
termination age for OPEB benefits, etc.

Several assumptions were made in estimating costs and liabilities under Beaumont-Cherry
Valley Recreation and Park District's retiree health program. Further studies may be desired
to validate any assumptions where there is any doubt that the assumption is appropriate.
(See Part III of this report for a summary of assumptions.) For example, Beaumont-Cherry
Valley Recreation and Park District should maintain a retiree database that includes — in
addition to date of birth, gender and employee classification — retirement date and (if
applicable) dependent date of birth, relationship and gender. It will also be helpful for
Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District to maintain employment termination
information — namely, the number of OPEB-eligible employees in each employee class that
terminate employment each year for reasons other than death, disability or retirement.

19



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

APPENDIX C: GASB 74/75 ACCOUNTING ENTRIES AND DISCLOSURES

This report does not necessarily include the entire accounting values. As mentioned earlier, there are certain
deferred items that are employer-specific. The District should consult with its auditor if there are any questions about
what, if any, adjustments may be appropriate.

GASB 74/75 include a large number of items that should be included in the Note Disclosures and Required
Supplementary Information (RSI) Schedules. Many of these items are outside the scope of the actuarial valuation.
However, following is information to assist the District in complying with GASB 74/75 disclosure requirements:

Paragraph 50: Information about the OPEB Plan

Most of the information about the OPEB plan should be supplied by Beaumont-Cherry
Valley Recreation and Park District. Following is information to help fulfill Paragraph 50
reporting requirements.

50.c: Following is a table of plan participants

Number of
Participants
Inactive Employees Currently Receiving Benefit Payments 1
Inactive Employees Entitled to But Not Yet Receiving Benefit 0
Payments*
Participating Active Employees 14
Total Number of participants 15

*We were not provided with information about any terminated, vested employees

Paragraph 51: Significant Assumptions and Other Inputs

Shown in Part I1I.

Paragraph 52: Information Related to Assumptions and Other Inputs

The following information is intended to assist Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and
Park District in complying with the requirements of Paragraph 52.

52.b: Mortality Assumptions Following are the tables the mortality assumptions are based
upon. Inasmuch as these tables are based on appropriate populations, and that these tables
are used for pension purposes, we believe these tables to be the most appropriate for the
valuation.

Mortality Table | 2014 CalPERS Active Mortality for Miscellaneous Employees
Disclosure | The mortality assumptions are based on the 2014 CalPERS
Active Mortality for Miscellaneous Employees table created by

CalPERS. CalPERS periodically studies mortality for
participating agencies and establishes mortality tables that are
modified versions of commonly used tables. This table
incorporates mortality projection as deemed appropriate based
on CalPERS analysis.

20



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

Paragraph 53:

Mortality Table | 2014 CalPERS Retiree Mortality for Miscellaneous Employees

Disclosure | The mortality assumptions are based on the 2014 CalPERS
Retiree Mortality for Miscellaneous Employees table created by
CalPERS. CalPERS periodically studies mortality for
participating agencies and establishes mortality tables that are
modified versions of commonly used tables. This table
incorporates mortality projection as deemed appropriate based

on CalPERS analysis.

52.c: Experience Studies Following are the tables the retirement and turnover assumptions
are based upon. Inasmuch as these tables are based on appropriate populations, and that
these tables are used for pension purposes, we believe these tables to be the most
appropriate for the valuation.

Retirement Tables

Retirement Table | 2009 CalPERS 2.0%@60 Rates for Miscellaneous Employees

Disclosure | The retirement assumptions are based on the 2009 CalPERS
2.0%@60 Rates for Miscellaneous Employees table created by
CalPERS. CalPERS periodically studies the experience for
participating agencies and establishes tables that are appropriate
for each pool.

Retirement Table | 2009 CalPERS 2.7%@55 Rates for Miscellaneous Employees
Disclosure | The retirement assumptions are based on the 2009 CalPERS
2.7%@55 Rates for Miscellaneous Employees table created by
CalPERS. CalPERS periodically studies the experience for
participating agencies and establishes tables that are appropriate

for each pool.

Turnover Tables

Turnover Table | 2009 CalPERS Turnover for Miscellaneous Employees

Disclosure | The turnover assumptions are based on the 2009 CalPERS
Turnover for Miscellaneous Employees table created by
CalPERS. CalPERS periodically studies the experience for
participating agencies and establishes tables that are appropriate
for each pool.

For other assumptions, we use actual plan provisions and plan data.
52.d: The alternative measurement method was not used in this valuation.
52.e: NOL using alternative trend assumptions The following table shows the Net OPEB

Liability with a healthcare cost trend rate 1% higher and 1% lower than assumed in
the valuation.

Trend 1% Lower Valuation Trend Trend 1% Higher
Net OPEB Liability ($145,519) ($100,542) ($44.206)

Discount Rate

The following information is intended to assist Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and
21



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

Paragraph 55:

Paragraph 56:

Park District to comply with Paragraph 53 requirements.

53.a: A discount rate of 7.00% was used in the valuation. The interest rate used in the prior
valuation was 7.00%.

53.b: We assumed that all contributions are from the employer.

53.c: We used historic 38 year real rates of return for each asset class along with our
assumed long-term inflation assumption to set the discount rate. We offset the expected
investment return by investment expenses of 25 basis points.

53.d: The interest assumption does not reflect a municipal bond rate.

53.e: Not applicable.

53.f: Following is the assumed asset allocation and assumed rate of return for each.
CERBT - Strategy 1

Percentage Assumed
Asset Class of Portfolio | Gross Return
All Equities 59.0000 7.7950
All Fixed Income 25.0000 4.5000
Real Estate Investment Trusts 8.0000 7.5000
All Commodities 3.0000 7.7950
Treasury Inflation Protected Securities (TIPS) 5.0000 3.2500

We looked at rolling periods of time for all asset classes in combination to appropriately
reflect correlation between asset classes. That means that the average returns for any asset
class don’t necessarily reflect the averages over time individually, but reflect the return for
the asset class for the portfolio average. We used geometric means.

53.g: The following table shows the Net OPEB liability with a discount rate 1% higher and
1% lower than assumed in the valuation.

Discount Rate Valuation Discount Rate
1% Lower Discount Rate 1% Higher
Net OPEB Liability ($49.,431) ($100,542) ($141,274)

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

Please see reconciliation on pages 2 or 12.

Additional Net OPEB Liability Information

The following information is intended to assist Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and
Park District to comply with Paragraph 56 requirements.

56.a: The valuation date is June 30, 2019.

The measurement date is June 30, 2020.
56.b: We are not aware of a special funding arrangement.
56.c: There were no assumption changes since the prior measurement date.
56.d: There were no changes in benefit terms since the prior measurement date.
56.e: Not applicable
56.f: To be determined by the employer

22



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

Paragraph 57:

Paragraph 58:

Paragraph 244:

56.g: To be determined by the employer

56.h: Other than contributions after the measurement, all deferred inflow and outflow
balances are shown on page 12 and in Appendix D

56.i: Future recognition of deferred inflows and outflows is shown in Appendix D

Required Supplementary Information

57.a: Please see reconciliation on pages 2 or 12. Please see the notes for Paragraph 244
below for more information.

57.b: These items are provided on pages 2 and 12 for the current valuation, except for
covered payroll, which should be determined based on appropriate methods.

57.c: We have not been asked to calculate an actuarially determined contribution amount.
We assume the District contributes on an ad hoc basis, but in an amount sufficient to
fully fund the obligation over a period not to exceed 38 years.

57.d: We are not aware that there are any statutorily or contractually established
contribution requirements.

Actuarially Determined Contributions

We have not been asked to calculate an actuarially determined contribution amount. We
assume the District contributes on an ad hoc basis, but in an amount sufficient to fully fund
the obligation over a period not to exceed 38 years.

Transition Option

Prior periods were not restated due to the fact that prior valuations were not rerun in
accordance with GASB 75. It was determined that the time and expense necessary to rerun
prior valuations and to restate prior financial statements was not justified.

23



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

APPENDIX D: DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

EXPERIENCE GAINS AND LOSSES

Increase (Decrease) in OPEB Expense Arising from the Recognition of Effects of

Experience Gains and Losses

(Measurement Periods)

Original Amounts Amounts to be

Recognition  Recognized in Recognized in

Measurement  Experience Period OPEB Expense OPEB Expense

Period (Gain)/Loss (Years) through 2019 2020 after 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 Thereafter

2018-19 ($210,952) 207 ($10,191) ($10,191) (§190,570) (810,191) ($10,181) (810,191) ($10,191) ($10,191) ($139,615)
2019-20 $12,102 207 $0 $585 §11,517 $585 $585 $585 §585 $585 §8,592
Net Increase (Decrease) in OPEB Expense ($10,191) ($9,606) ($179,053) ($9,606) ($9,606) ($9,606) ($9,606) ($9,606) ($131,023)

24



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

CHANGES OF ASSUMPTIONS

Increase (Decrease) in OPEB Expense Arising from the Recognition of Effects of

Changes of Assumptions
(Measurement Periods)
Original Amounts Amounts to be
Recognition ~ Recognized in Recognized in
Measurement  Changes of Period OPEB Expense OPEB Expense
Period Assumptions (Years) through 2019 2020 after 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 Thereafter
201920 $0 0 S0 $0 $0
Net Increase (Decrease) in OPEB Expense $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

25



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

INVESTMENT GAINS AND LOSSES

Increase (Decrease) in OPEB Expense Arising from the Recognition of Effects of

Investment Gains and Losses

(Measurement Periods)
Original Amounts Amounts to be
Recognition ~ Recognized in Recognized in
Measurement  Investment Period OPEB Expense OPEB Expense
Period (Gain)/Loss (Years) through 2019 2020 after 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 Thereafter
2017-18 (81,009) 5 (5404) (§202) ($403) (§202) (8201)
2018-19 $3677 5 $736 $736 $2,205 $736 §736 $733
2019-20 §13,654 5 $0 $2,131 $10,923 $2,731 $2,731 $2,731 $2,730
Net Increase (Decrease) in OPEB Expense $332 $3,265 $12,725 $3,265 $3,266 $3,464 $2,730 $0 $0

26



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

APPENDIX E: GLOSSARY OF RETIREE HEALTH VALUATION TERMS

Note: The following definitions are intended to help a non-actuary understand concepts related to retiree health
valuations. Therefore, the definitions may not be actuarially accurate.

Actuarial Cost Method: A mathematical model for allocating OPEB costs by year of service. The only
actuarial cost method allowed under GASB 74/75 is the entry age actuarial cost
method.

Actuarial Present Value of
Projected Benefit Payments: The projected amount of all OPEB benefits to be paid to current and future retirees
discounted back to the valuation or measurement date.

Deferred Inflows/Outflows

of Resources: A portion of certain items that can be deferred to future periods or that weren’t
reflected in the valuation. The former includes investment gains/losses, actuarial
gains/losses, and gains/losses due to changes in actuarial assumptions or methods.
The latter includes contributions made to a trust subsequent to the measurement
date but before the statement date.

Discount Rate: Assumed investment return net of all investment expenses. Generally, a higher
assumed interest rate leads to lower service costs and total OPEB liability.

Fiduciary Net Position: Net assets (liability) of a qualifying OPEB “plan” (i.e. qualifying irrevocable trust
or equivalent arrangement).

Implicit Rate Subsidy: The estimated amount by which retiree rates are understated in situations where,
for rating purposes, retirees are combined with active employees and the employer
is expected, in the long run, to pay the underlying cost of retiree benefits.

Measurement Date: The date at which assets and liabilities are determined in order to estimate TOL and
NOL.
Mortality Rate: Assumed proportion of people who die each year. Mortality rates always vary by

age and often by sex. A mortality table should always be selected that is based on a
similar “population” to the one being studied.

Net OPEB Liability (NOL): The Total OPEB Liability minus the Fiduciary Net Position.

OPEB Benefits: Other Post Employment Benefits. Generally, medical, dental, prescription drug,
life, long-term care or other postemployment benefits that are not pension benefits.

OPEB Expense: This is the amount employers must recognize as an expense each year. The annual
OPEB expense is equal to the Service Cost plus interest on the Total OPEB
Liability (TOL) plus change in TOL due to plan changes minus projected
investment income; all adjusted to reflect deferred inflows and outflows of
resources.

Participation Rate: The proportion of retirees who elect to receive retiree benefits. A lower
participation rate results in lower service cost and a TOL. The participation rate
often is related to retiree contributions.

27



Total Compensation Systems, Inc.

Pav As You Go Cost:

Retirement Rate:

Service Cost:

Service Requirement:

Total OPEB Liability (TOL):

Trend Rate:

Turnover Rate:

Valuation Date:

The projected benefit payments to retirees in a given year as estimated by the
actuarial valuation. Actual benefit payments are likely to differ from these
estimated amounts. For OPEB plans that do not pre-fund through an irrevocable
trust, the Pay As You Go Cost serves as an estimated amount to budget for annual
OPEB payments.

The proportion of active employees who retire each year. Retirement rates are
usually based on age and/or length of service. (Retirement rates can be used in
conjunction with the service requirement to reflect both age and length of service).
The more likely employees are to retire early, the higher service costs and actuarial
accrued liability will be.

The annual dollar value of the “earned” portion of retiree health benefits if retiree
health benefits are to be fully accrued at retirement.

The proportion of retiree benefits payable under the OPEB plan, based on length of
service and, sometimes, age. A shorter service requirement increases service costs
and TOL.

The amount of the actuarial present value of projected benefit payments
attributable to participants’ past service based on the actuarial cost method used.

The rate at which the employer’s share of the cost of retiree benefits is expected to
increase over time. The trend rate usually varies by type of benefit (e.g. medical,
dental, vision, etc.) and may vary over time. A higher trend rate results in higher
service costs and TOL.

The rate at which employees cease employment due to reasons other than death,
disability or retirement. Turnover rates usually vary based on length of service and
may vary by other factors. Higher turnover rates reduce service costs and TOL.

The date as of which the OPEB obligation is determined by means of an actuarial

valuation. Under GASB 74 and 73, the valuation date does not have to coincide
with the statement date, but can’t be more than 30 months prior.

28



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

CERBT Strategy 1
Entity #: SKB0-3841905426
Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

. CalPERS

Market Value Summary: ) Unit Value Summary:
QTD Fiscal QTD Fiscal
Current Period Year to Date Current Period Year to Date
Beginning Balance $487,832.65 $407,964.20 Beginning Units 23,398.235 23,308.235
Contribution 0.00 0.00 Unit Purchases from Contributions 0.000 0.000
Disbursement 0.00 0.00 Unit Sales for Withdrawals 0.000 0.000
Transfer In 0.00 0.00 Unit Transfer In 0.000 0.000
Transfer Out 0.00 0.00 Unit Transfer Out 0.000 0.000
Investment Earnings 32,123.06 112,293.84 Ending Units 23.308.235 33308235
Administrative Expenses (62.25) (229.56)
Investment Expense (32.99) CoE0l) Period Beginning Unit Value 20849118 17.435677
Other 0.00 0.00 Period Ending Unit Value 22217933 22217933
Ending Balance $519,860.47 $519,860.47
FY End Contrib per GASB 74 Para 22 0.00 0.00
FY End Disbursement Accrual (3,617.58) (3,617.58)
Grand Total $516,242.89 $516,242.89
Please note the Grand Total is your actual fund account balance at the end of the period, including all ibutions per GASB 74 paragraph 22 and accrued disbursements. Please review your promply. All infc i ined in your
will be considered true and accurate unless you contact us within 30 days of receipt of this 1f you have q about the validity of this information, please contact CERBT4U@calpers.ca.gov.

Page 1 of 2



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY

RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Staff Report

Agenda Item No. 3.5
To: Chairman and Board of Directors

From: Dodie Carlson, Athletic Coordinator
Date: November 3, 2021

Subject: Donation to the Engine 57 Baseball Tournament

Background and Analysis:

In October of 2006 the Esperanza fire here in the San Jacinto mountains
south of Banning, it took the lives of 5 of our local Forest Service personnel.

The following year on the 1st anniversary of those who perished. The family
of Jess Mclean held the 1st Annual Engine 57 baseball tournament to celebrate
their lives and to raise funds for all 1st responders and law enforcement families
who lose their lives in the line of duty.

We have made a reduction on their bill. In 2018 and 2019 the Board
approved a reduction of $ 1000.00 to the bill for this tournament.

The 14t annual tournament was held on October 16-17-2021 with 72
teams.
Recommendations:

Staff recommends that the Board approve a reduction in their Facility use
bill for the tournament.
Fiscal Impact:

The Fiscal impact to the district is $ 1000.00.

Respectfully Submitted,

Athletic Coordinator



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY

RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Staff Report

Agenda Item No. 3.6
To: Board of Directors:

From: Kyle Simpson, Activities Coordinator
Via: Duane Burk, General Manager

Date: November 10th, 2021

Subject: 2022 Parking Fee Dates

Background and Analysis:

The Board annually approves (3) Parking Fee days for BYB during its regular Baseball/Softball
season and (1) District event as $5.00 admission per car. The $5.00 per car admission fees collected
will go 100% to the Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park Improvement Corporation.
Parking fee days will continue to be manned by security. The $5.00 parking fees are used to offset
the low cost charged to the children of the community for use of Noble Creek Regional Park ball
fields.

Recommendations:

Staff recommends the Board approve the 2022 $5.00 per car Mandatory Parking fee collection days
as follows, (1) BYB Opening Day March 5, 2022, (1) Parking fee day April 9, 2022, and (1) Closing
Ceremonies Parking Fee May 21, 2022 with all of the proceeds to be designated to the
Improvement Corporation, along with the District September 16th-18th, 2022 (3) days for
Oktoberfest, that will go 100% for the Improvement Corporation. All proceeds to be designated to
the Improvement Corporation Bank account.

Fiscal Impact:

There will be an undetermined fiscal impact, at this time, to the Beaumont-Cherry Valley
Improvement Corporation fund balance.

Respectfully Sybmitted:
Kyle Simpson,
Activities Coordinator



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY

RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Staff Report

Agenda Item No. 3.7
To: Board of Directors:

From: Kyle Simpson, Activities Coordinator
Via: Duane Burk, General Manager

Date: November 10th, 2021

Subject: 2022 Calendar of Events

Background and Analysis:

The Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District hosts Special Events throughout the year
to benefit the community. Each year the dates change slightly due to holidays, park availability and
other community events. The District would like to present the following 2022 event dates, all
events are subject to change due to weather or other unforeseen natural disaster and reserve the
right to change any date as necessary.

1k and 5k Run at Bogart March 12th, 2022

Welcome Home Vietnam Veterans March 25t, 2022

Fishing Derby April 2nd - 3, 2022

Spring Fling April 16th, 2022

Arbor Day April 29th, 2022

Cinco De Mayo Festival May 7th, 2022

Memorial Wall *We will be honoring more than one person for the Memorial Wall in 2022 due to not
having candidates for the past few years May 20th, 2022

Beers, Brats, and Bogart Bash June 11th, 2022

Movies Under the Stars (Every Monday) June 20t — July 25t 2022 (No Movie on July 4th)
Oktoberfest September 16th — 18th, 2022

Pumpkin Carve October 29th, 2022

Winterfest December 2nd — December 3rd, 2022
Recommendations:

Staff recommends that the Board approves the 2022 Event dates with possibility of changes as the
General Manager and Staff deem appropriate.

Fiscal Impact:
Each event has its own fiscal impact on the district and has been presented in the FY 21/22 and FY

22 /23 Budget.

Respectfully Submitted:

Kyle Simpson,
Activities Coordinator



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY

RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Staff Report

Agenda Item No. 3.8
To: Board of Directors:

From: Kyle Simpson, Activities Coordinator
Via: Duane Burk, General Manager

Date: November 10, 2021

Subject: Approval of the Facility use License Agreements

Background and Analysis:

The Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District annually renew facility use agreements
for independent operators which benefit our local community. This year there are (5) individuals
license agreements for your consideration.

On January 11, 2017 the Board approved all the Individual license agreements with the suggested
5% increase.

Staff Recommends:

1. No increased rates to Facility use License Agreements for users in 2022.

2. Consider adding an “EMON" meter to Thunder Alley Raceway to monitor the use of
electricity. Staff will bring back the information to the Board next year for a possible
increase to the facility user. Require Thunder Alley facility user to pay their own trash
on events.

Recommendations:

Staff recommends that the Board approve each License Agreement as Submitted with Board
approval to make and allow the General Manager to adjust non substantial changes.

Fiscal Impact:

There will be no fiscal impact to the District.
Respectfully Submitted:

iz

Kyle Simpson,
Activities Coordinator



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.1

FACILITY USE LICENSE AGREEMENT

This Facility Use License Agreement (the “Agreement”), dated January 1, 2022 for
purposes of reference, is entered into by and between the Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation
and Park District (“BCVRPD”) and BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. BCVRPD and
“BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC.” may be referred to herein generically as the “Party”
or collectively as the “Parties”.

RECITALS

1. Whereas, BCVRPD owns and operates the BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB
COMMUNITY CENTER located at 306 E. 6" STREET BEAUMONT, CA, 92223.

2. Whereas, BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. desires to utilize BCVRPD facilities
between January 1, 2022 and December 31, 2022 for MEETINGS AND EVENTS.

3. Whereas, BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. represents that it has the skill, ability
and personnel to operate such MEETINGS AND EVENTS.

Now, therefore, it is agreed by and between the parties as follows:
TERMS

I.  BCVRPD shall authorize BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. rental of the
BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB COMMUNITY CENTER, on January 6"
February 3rd, March 3rd, April 7th, May 14th, September 1*, October 6‘h, November
3rd, and December 1st from 8:00AM-2:00PM for BOARD MEETINGS; February
12", May 14™, October 22nd, November 19", December 29™ 3:00PM-10:00PM for
SPECIAL EVENTS; AND January 27“’, February 24th, March 28th, March 31st,
April 28", May 26", August 4™, September 2", October 27", November 17"
11:00am-1:00pm FOR REGULAR MEETINGS

II.  Building availability and ALL CLUB MEETINGS and EVENTS are subject to
California Governor’s Orders AND THE CALIFORNIA STATE COLORED TIER
SYSTEM.

i.  BUILDING AVAILABILITY, FACILITY USE, AND MEETING DATES
FOR 2022 ARE NOT GUARANTEED.

ii. BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. must get approval for any other
usage of BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB COMMUNITY CENTER or any
other property of the District for any other reason through the District office at
regular rental prices.

Page 1 0of 10



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
3.8.1

iii. BEAUMONT WOMAN'S CLUB, INC. is permitted to host MEETINGS
AND EVENTS. EACH EVENT must be limited to 25% room capacity, OR in
compliance with California Governor’s Orders or the colored tier system, as
they are updated.

1V. In the case there are more than 25% ROOM CAPACITY, BEAUMONT
WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. shall be required to assign time slots to users to
maintain groups AT CAPACITY ALLOWED PER GOVERNOR’S
ORDERS, as they are updated.

III.  This agreement includes access to BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB COMMUNITY
CENTER and surrounding parking (Excluding the Historical Society Museum).
Specialty equipment needed to operate the BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB
COMMUNITY CENTER will not be the responsibility of BCVRPD.

i.  Access to the parking area is by first request of event dates through the
Activities Coordinator or General Manager of the District.

IV.  BCVRPD will give notice to BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. if there is
another event taking place at the BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB COMMUNITY
CENTER that could interfere with any dates in their agreement.

V. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAW, RULES, & REGULATIONS
PER STATE OF CALIFORNIA REGARDING COVID-19 REQUIREMENTS
i.  BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. shall comply with all local, state, and
federal laws and regulations related to the use of the facility and public
gatherings.

ii. BEAUMONT WOMAN'S CLUB, INC agrees to abide by all applicable local,
federal, and state accessibility standards and regulations.

ii1i.  BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. further agrees that it is solely
responsible for reviewing and ensuring compliance with all applicable public
health rules, regulations, orders, and/or guidance in effect at the time of the
use of the facility including, but not limited to, physical distancing, limits on
the size of gatherings, use of appropriate sanitation practices, etc.

iv.  BCVRPD reserves the right to immediately revoke BEAUMONT WOMAN’S
CLUB, INC right to use of the facility under this agreement should
BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. fail to comply with any provision of
this section.

VI. BCVRPD and its employees are not responsible for any misplaced, broken or stolen
items that BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. chooses to store in or around the
facility.

i.  BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. must get prior approval for any
stored items on the district property.

Page 2 of 10



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
3.8.1

ii. BEAUMONT WOMAN'S CLUB, INC. will provide an inventory list of all
items stored in BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB COMMUNITY CENTER
and the square footage needed to store the items. (Received: )

iii.  BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. will provide a set of keys or
combinations to the District to anything stored on the district property.
(Received: )

iv. BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC., Board Members, volunteers, or staff
shall not adjust the Thermostat to below (72) degree for air conditioning. IF
the Thermostat is set outside of these settings by BEAUMONT WOMAN'S
CLUB INC. Board Members, Members, Staff, or Volunteers; BEAUMONT
WOMAN’S CLUB INC. will have to pay for damages for the air
conditioner/heater.

VII. BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC., agrees to abide by their BCVRPD
APPROVED COVID-19 CLEANING AND GATHERING PROTOCOL
PROCEDURE DOCUMENT. The new policy and procedures will be attached at the
back of this Facility Use License Agreement. (Received: )

VIII.  Fees, payable to BCVRPD for the above, shall be as follows:
i.  The following fees are good through the dates of this agreement

ii.  (BCVRPD has waived the fees per the agreement between Beaumont
Woman’s Club, Inc. and BCVRPD dated November 1996.)

iii.  Payable within (10) days after, the Finance Services Technician has invoiced
for the month and emails (tatielaine23 @yahoo.com).

iv. A late fee of $25.00 will be added if not paid within 15 days of payment due
date.

v.  There will be a $35.00 fee payable in cash on all returned checks. This fee is
required in order to restore contract.

IX. BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. shall during scheduled use perform set-up
and take-down of all chairs, tables, equipment, and be responsible for the general
cleanliness of the building after use.

i.  Cleanliness of the halls and bathrooms shall be the responsibility of
BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. during and after all facility use.

ii.  BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. will remove all trash to the outside
trash containers after each use.

iii.  BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. shall not permit gatherings beyond
that of MEETINGS AND EVENTS before or after building use.

Page 3 of 10 —



XL

XI1IL

XIII.

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
3.8.1

iv. BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. shall abide by healthy distancing at a
minimum distance of (6) feet apart for all users for the entirety of use at THE
BEAUMONT WOMAN'S CLUB.

v. BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. members, volunteers, and/or patrons
will be recommended to wear masks while participating in MEETINGS AND
EVENTS

vi.  BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. agrees to CALIFORNIA STATE
GOVERNOR’S ORDERS and shall clean restroom facilities following each
use of the BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB with CDC approved COVID-19
viral cleaning products.

BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. shall during scheduled use perform set-up
and take-down of all chairs, tables, and be responsible for the general cleanliness of
the building after use.

1. Cleanliness of the halls and bathrooms shall be the responsibility of
BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. during and after all facility use.

1i. BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. will remove all trash to the outside
trash containers after each use.

Any building upgrades or permanent fixtures must be approved by BCVRPD prior to
construction. Any licenses, fees, permits will be the responsibility of BEAUMONT
WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. and must meet all City/County/State legal standards.

BCVRPD is routinely doing upgrades to our facilities. During this time BEAUMONT
WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. could have limited or no access during these upgrades.
There will be no reimbursement for loss of anticipated revenue.

All fundraisers are subject to prior approval by the Board of Directors of BCVRPD.

BCVRPD reserves the right to reassign BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. to
another facility if the BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB COMMUNITY CENTER
should become unavailable due to an emergency.

All keys shall be issued by BCVRPD. Keys must be returned to the District Office at
the end of the agreement. BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. shall not duplicate
any keys. If a key is lost or stolen BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. shall
immediately report the loss to BCVRPD. BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC.
will be charged the cost for the re-keying of the building and for manufacture of new
keys.

BEAUMONT WOMAN'S CLUB, INC. will provide the District a list of anyone that
has been issued keys and for what locations. (Received: )

rr— (PagE S R0



XIX.

XX.

XXI.

XXIL

XXIIIL

XXIV.

Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.1

BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. shall not make any changes to lock(s) on
District property.

Alarm codes shall be issued by BCVRPD. Alarm codes should only be shared with
members that are issued keys.

1.  BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. will be responsible for any charges
incurred by a false alarm to the BEAUMONT WOMAN'S CLUB
COMMUNITY CENTER from any BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC.
volunteers or Board members entering the building for business.

BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. will provide the District a list of anyone that
has been issued the assigned alarm code. (Received: )

BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. shall promptly report any maintenance
issues encountered during its use of the buildings in writing to BCVRPD. BCVRPD
will address reported issues.

BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. will be responsible for any damage to the
facility caused by BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. members, volunteers,
and/or patrons. BCVRPD will repair damages and bill the cost to BEAUMONT
WOMAN’S CLUB, INC.

BCVRPD reserves the right to enter and inspect the facility at any time for any
purpose during use of the facility. User shall follow all directives from District
representatives.

BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. members, volunteers, and patrons shall not
interfere with the regular use of the facility by any other group or person. Excessive
noise or other disruptive behavior is prohibited.

i.  BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. members, volunteers, and patrons
agree to cooperate fully with all other facility users and District representative

in a professional and courteous manner at all times.
FORCE MAJEURE

i.  Force Majeure Events: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this
agreement, the BCVRPD shall be excused from its obligations under this agreement
to the extent and whenever it shall be prevented from the performance of such
obligations by any Force Majeure Event. For purposes of this agreement, a “Force
Majeure Event” includes but is not limited to fires, floods, earthquakes, pandemic,
epidemic, civil disturbances, acts of terrorism, regulation of any public
authority, and other causes beyond their control. BEAUMONT WOMAN’S
CLUB, INC. waives any right of recovery against BCVRPD and
BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. shall not charge results of “acts of
God” to BCVRPD, its officers, employees, or agents.

Page 5 0f 10 — U



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
3.8.1

XXV. BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. shall maintain its own liability insurance,
naming BCVRPD as additional insured.

i.  Minimum Requirements: BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. shall, at its
own expense procure and maintain for the duration of the agreement insurance
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise
from or in connection with the performance of the agreement by
BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC.,, its agents, representatives,
employees, or subcontractors. BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. shall
also require all of its subcontractors to procure and maintain the same
insurance for the duration of the agreement. Insurance dates must cover
January 1 through December 31 of each year. Such insurance shall meet at
least the following minimum levels of coverage:

i. Minimum Scope of Insurance: Coverage shall be at least as broad as
the latest version of the following:

1. General Liability: Insurance Services Office Commercial
General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001);

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Business Auto
Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto); and,

3. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’
Compensation insurance as required by the State of California
and Employer’s Liability Insurance.

ii. Minimum Limits of Insurance: BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB
INC. shall maintain limits no less than:

1. General Liability: Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per
occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property
damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other
form with general aggregate limit is used including, but not
limited to form CG 2503, either the general aggregate limit
shall apply separately to this agreement/location or the general
aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit;

2. Automobile Liability: One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per
accident for bodily injury and property damage; and

3. Worker’s Compensation and Employers’ Liability: Workers’
Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State
of California. Employer’s Liability limits of One Million
Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury or
disease.

Page 6 of 10 s



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
3.8.1

iii. Insurance Endorsements: The insurance policies shall contain the
following provisions, or BEAUMONT WOMAN'S CLUB, INC. shall
provide endorsements on forms supplied or approved by the BCVRPD
to add the following provisions to the insurance policies:

iv. General Liability: The general liability policy shall be endorsed to
state that:

1. The DISTRICT, its directors, officials, officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers shall be covered as additional insured
with respect to the activity or operations performed by or on
behalf of the BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC.; and,

2. The insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects
the BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers employees,
agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in a unbroken
chain of coverage excess of the BEAUMONT WOMAN’S
CLUB, INC. scheduled underlying coverage. Any insurance or
self-insurance maintained by the BCVRPD, its directors,
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be
excess of the BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC.
insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in
anyway.

v. Automobile Liability: The automobile liability policy shall be
endorsed to state that:

1. BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents,
and volunteers shall be covered as additional insured’s with
respect to the ownership operation, maintenance, use, loading
or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by
the BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. or for which
BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. is responsible; and

2. The insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects
the BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken
chain of coverage excess of the BEAUMONT WOMAN’S
CLUB, INC. scheduled underlying coverage. Any insurance or
self-insurance maintained by BCVRPD, its directors, officials,
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of
the BEAUMONT WOMAN'S CLUB, INC. insurance and
shall not be called upon to contribute with it in anyway.

vi. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Coverage: The
insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the
BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and

——— Page 7 of 10



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

Vii.

Viii.

iX.

Xi.

Xii.

3.8.1

volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the insurance policy
which arise from work performed by BEAUMONT WOMAN’S
CLUB, INC.

All Coverages: Each insurance policy required by this agreement shall
be endorsed to state that:

1. Coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced or canceled
except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified
mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the BCVRPD;
and,

2. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the
policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect
coverage provided to the BCVRPD, its directors, officials,
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

Separation of Insured’s; No Special Limitations: All insurance
required by this section shall contain standard separation of insured’s
provisions. In addition, such insurance shall not contain any special
limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the BCVRPD, its
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.

Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions: Any deductibles or self-
insured retentions must be declared to and approved by BCVRPD.
BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. shall guarantee that, at the
option of the BCVRPD, either:

1. The insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-
insured retentions as respects the BCVRPD, its directors,
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers; or

2. BEAUMONT WOMAN'S CLUB, INC. shall procure a bond
guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation costs,
claims, and administrative and defense expenses.

Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers
with a current A:M. Best’s rating no less than A:VIIL, licensed to do
business in California, and satisfactory to the DISTRICT.

Verification of Coverage: BEAUMONT WOMAN'S CLUB, INC.
shall furnish DISTRICT with original certificates of insurance and
endorsements effecting coverage required by the agreement on forms.

Satisfactory to the BCVRPD: The certificates and endorsements for
each insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that
insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All certificates and

— Page 80f10



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
3.8.1

endorsements must be received and approved by the BCVRRPD
before the activity commences. The BCVRPD reserves the right to
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at
any time.

xiii. Reporting of Claims: BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. shall
report to the BCVRPD, in addition to the insurer, any and all insurance
claims submitted by BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. in
connection with this agreement.

XXVIL.  BEAUMONT WOMAN'S CLUB, INC. shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless
(BCVRPD), its officers, employees, and agents from any and all losses, costs,
expenses, claims, liabilities, actions, or damages, including liability for injuries to any
person or persons or damage to property arising at any time out of or in any way
related to the BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. use or occupancy of a facility
or property controlled by the (BCVRPD), unless solely caused by the gross
negligence or willful misconduct of (BCVRPD), its officers, employees, or agents.

XXVII. BEAUMONT WOMAN'S CLUB, INC. shall defend, with counsel of its choosing
and at BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. own cost, expense and risk, any and
all claims, suits, actions or other proceedings of every kind covered by the section
that may be brought or instituted against BCVRPD or its directors, officials, officers,
employees, volunteers and agents. BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. shall pay
and satisfy any judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against BCVRPD or
its directors, officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents as part of any such
claim, suit, action or other proceeding. Such reimbursement shall include payment
for BCVRPD’s attorney’s fees and costs, including expert witness fees.
BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC. shall reimburse BCVRPD and its directors,
officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or volunteers, for any and all legal expenses
and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing the
indemnity herein provided. Obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted to
insurance proceeds, if any, received by the BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers,
employees, agents and volunteers.

XXVIIL.  In the event of litigation between parties arising out or connected with this agreement,
the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to recover, in addition to any
other amounts, reasonable attorney’s fees and costs of such litigation.

XXIX.  This agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement of the parties and
supersedes any and all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either
written or oral. This agreement may be amended only by written instrument signed
by both parties.

XXX.  This agreement and any dispute hereunder shall be governed by and interpreted
according to the laws of the State of California. Venue shall be in Riverside County.
XXXI.  All notices pertaining to this agreement shall be in writing and addressed as follows:
i.  Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

Page 9 of 10



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
3.8.1

390 W Oak Valley Parkway
Beaumont CA 92223

ii. BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB, INC.
c/o Eliana G. Conner
34216 Crenshaw St.
Beaumont, CA 92223

XXXII.  This agreement is to be affective on January 1, 2022 and end on December 31, 2022.
It may be extended by mutual agreement. Cancellation by either party will require a
(90) day written notice.

XXXIII.  The Parties acknowledge that each has all requisite power and authority to conduct its
business and to execute, deliver, and perform the agreement. Each party warrants that
the individuals who have signed this agreement have the legal power, right, and
authority to make this agreement and bind each respective party.

Duane Burk, General Manager, BCVRPD Eliana G. Conner, President (Beaumont
Woman’s Club)

Date Date

Page 10 of

10



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.2

FACILITY USE LICENSE AGREEMENT

This Facility Use License Agreement (the “Agreement”), dated January 1, 2022 for
purposes of reference, is entered into by and between the Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation
and Park District (“BCVRPD”) and BEAUMONT YOUTH BASEBALL/SOFTBALL
(“BYB/SB”). BCVRPD and “BYB/SB” may be referred to herein generically as the “Party” or
collectively as the “Parties”.

1. Whereas, BCVRPD owns and operates the NOBLE CREEK REGIONAL PARK located
at 650 W. OAK VALLEY PARKWAY, BEAUMONT, CA, 92223,

2. Whereas, BYB/SB desires to utilize BCVRPD facilities between January 1, 2022 and
December 31, 2022 for BASEBALL/SOFTBALL LEAGUES AND SNACK BAR.

3. Whereas, BYB/SB represents that it has the skill, ability and personnel to operate such
LEAGUES AND SNACK BAR.

Now, therefore, it is agreed by and between the parties as follows:

TERMS

I.  BCVRPD shall authorize BYB/SB rental of NOBLE CREEK REGIONAL PARK,
for SPRING SEASON PRACTICES and GAMES to begin January 1, 2022 through
JULY 31, 2022 FIELDS 1-7 AND MEADOW MONDAY through SATURDAY,
EAST END OF MEADOW TO BE RESERVED FOR T-BALL ONLY DUE TO
FITNESS COURT USER SAFETY. PRACTICES AND GAMES TO RUN
MONDAY THROUGH SATURDAY FIELDS 1-7 for REGULAR SEASON.
BCVRPD shall authorize BYB/SB rental of Regular of NOBLE CREEK REGIONAL
PARK FALL SEASON PRACTICES AND GAMES September 7™ through
NOVEMBER 18" on FIELDS 1-7 and the SOCCER MEADOW MONDAY through
FRIDAY. Season PRACTICES AND GAMES to work around existing practice field
rentals and BCVRPD Softball leagues.

II.  Building availability and ALL CLUB MEETINGS and EVENTS are subject to
California Governor’s Orders AND THE CALIFORNIA STATE COLORED TIER
SYSTEM.

i.  BUILDING AVAILABILITY, FACILITY USE, AND MEETING DATES
FOR 2022 ARE NOT GUARANTEED.

ii. ~ BYB/SB must get approval for any other usage of NOBLE CREEK
REGIONAL PARK BALL FIELDS or any other property of the District for
any other reason through the District office at regular rental prices.

Page 1o0f11



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
3.8.2

iii.  BYB/SB is permitted to host MEETINGS AND EVENTS. EACH EVENT
must be limited to 25% room capacity, OR in compliance with California
Governor’s Orders or the colored tier system, as they are updated.

iv.  In the case there are more than 25% ROOM CAPACITY, BYB/SB shall be
required to assign time slots to users to maintain groups AT CAPACITY
ALLOWED PER GOVERNOR’S ORDERS, as they are updated.

v.  BYB/SB must get approval for any other usage of NOBLE CREEK
REGIONAL PARK or any other property of the District for any other reason
through the District office at regular rental prices.

vi.  BYB/SB shall lease the east and west snack bars all year. BYB/SB will
reimburse BCVRPD for any and all utilities each month, including a yearly
one-time fee for sewer cleaning.

vii.  BYB/SB is provided Noble Creek Community Center Copper Room for (5)
meetings in 2022: (1) manager meeting on January 29th, (2) team parent
meetings February 2™ and February 3", and (2) Scorekeeper clinics February
16™ and February 28"

II.  This agreement includes full access to NOBLE CREEK REGIONAL PARK and
surrounding parking. Specialty equipment needed to operate the NOBLE CREEK
REGIONAL PARK BALL FIELDS will not be the responsibility of BCVRPD.

i.  Access to the parking area is by first request of event dates through the
Activities Coordinator or General Manager of the District.

ii. ~ BYB/SB and BCVRPD agrees to share all mounds and bases as needed by
each party. Both parties mutual agree to share replacement costs of this
equipment.

1. BYB/SB will ensure that NO metal cleats will be used or permitted on
portable mounds.

iii.  BYB/SB agrees to maintain and repair the interior of the snack bars and
equipment keeping both in good repair during the term of this agreement.

i. BYB/SB will pay for the snack bar exhaust hood to be cleaned once
per year due to grease.

IV.  BCVRPD will give notice to BYB/SB if there is another event taking place at the
NOBLE CREEK REGIONAL PARK that could interfere with any dates in their
agreement.

V. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAW, RULES, & REGULATIONS
PER STATE OF CALIFORNIA REGARDING COVID-19 REQUIREMENTS.

Page 2 of 11



1.,

1ii.

1v.

Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.2

BYB/SB shall comply with all local, state, and federal laws and regulations
related to the use of the facility and public gatherings.

BYB/SB agrees to abide by all applicable local, federal, and state accessibility
standards and regulations.

BYB/SB further agrees that it is solely responsible for reviewing and ensuring
compliance with all applicable public health rules, regulations, orders, and/or
guidance in effect at the time of the use of the facility including, but not
limited to, physical distancing, limits on the size of gatherings, use of
appropriate sanitation practices, etc.

BCVRPD reserves the right to immediately revoke BYB/SB right to use of the
facility under this agreement should BYB/SB fail to comply with any
provision of this section.

VL. BCVRPD and its employees are not responsible for any misplaced, broken or stolen
items that BYB/SB chooses to store in or around the facility.

1.

il.

iil.

BYB/SB must get prior approval for any stored items on the district property.

BYB/SB will provide an inventory list of all items stored in NOBLE CREEK
REGIONAL PARK and the square footage needed to store the items.
(Received: )

BYB/SB will provide a set of keys or combinations to the District to anything
stored on the district property. (Received: )

VII. BYB/SB agrees to abide by their BCVRPD APPROVED COVID-19 CLEANING
AND GATHERING PROTOCOL PROCEDURE DOCUMENT. The new policy and
procedures will be attached at the back of this Facility Use License Agreement.
(Received: )

VIII.  Fees, payable to BCVRPD for the above, shall be as follows:

i:

i

1.

iv.

The following fees are good through the dates of this agreement

$10.00 for each registered player for spring and fall baseball/softball leagues,
and will provide a copy of each sign-up form.

SNACK BAR USAGE TO ONLY BE ALLOWED BY GENERAL
MANAGER APPROVAL. $167.00 for West snack bar per month and $1.00
for East snack bar from January 1, 2022 — June 30, 2022.

SNACK BAR USAGE TO ONLY BE ALLOWED BY GENERAL
MANAGER APPROVAL $600.00 per snack bar per month July 1, 2022 —
December 31, 2022

- Page3of11 — e



vi.

Vil.

Viii.

1X.

Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.2

SNACK BAR USAGE TO ONLY BE ALLOWED BY GENERAL
MANAGER APPROVAL Pay for the snack bars propane, electrical, and
alarm service from January 1, 2022 — December 31, 2022.

$300.00 per year for Sewer cleaning.

Payable within (10) days after Finance Services Technician invoices for the
month and emails to swagarch22@yahoo.com and mudbuster @aol.com.

A late fee of $25.00 will be added if not paid within 15 days of payment due
date.

There will be a $35.00 fee payable in cash to all returned checks. This fee is
required in order to restore contract.

IX.  BYB/SB shall during scheduled use perform set-up and take-down of all equipment
used, and be responsible for the general cleanliness of the park after use.

I

ii.

iil.

iv.

V1.

Cleanliness of the fields and bathrooms shall be the responsibility of BYB/SB
during and after all facility use.

BYB/SB will remove all trash to the outside trash containers after each use.

BYB/SB shall not permit gatherings beyond that of MEETINGS,
PRACTICES, AND GAMES before or after building/FACILITY use.

BYB/SB. shall abide by healthy distancing at a minimum distance of (6) feet
apart for all users for the entirety of use at NOBLE CREEK REGIONAL
PARK BALL FIELDS.

BYB/SB. members, volunteers, and/or patrons will be recommended to wear
masks while participating in MEETINGS, PRACTICES, AND GAMES.

BYB/SB agrees to CALIFORNIA STATE GOVERNOR’S ORDERS and
shall clean restroom facilities following each use of the NOBLE CREEK
REGIONAL PARK BALL FIELDS with CDC approved COVID-19 viral
cleaning products.

X.  Any building upgrades or permanent fixtures must be approved by BCVRPD prior to
construction. Any licenses, fees, permits will be the responsibility of BYB/SB and
must meet all City/County/State legal standards.

XI.  BCVRPD is routinely doing upgrades to our facilities. During this time BYB/SB
could have limited or no access during these upgrades. There will be no
reimbursement for loss of anticipated revenue.

XII.  All fundraisers are subject to prior approval by the Board of Directors of BCVRPD.

Page 4 of 11 e



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
3.8.2

BCVRPD reserves the right to reassign BYB/SB to another facility if the NOBLE
CREEK REGIONAL PARK should become unavailable due to an emergency.

XIV.  All keys shall be issued by BCVRPD. Keys must be returned to the District Office at
the end of the agreement. BYB/SB shall not duplicate any keys. If a key is lost or
stolen BYB/SB shall immediately report the loss to BCVRPD. BYB/SB will be
charged the cost for re-keying of the building and for manufacture of new keys.

XV.  BYB/SB will provide the District a list of anyone that has been issued keys and for
what location. (Received: )

XVI.  BYB/SB shall not make any changes to lock(s) on District property.

XVIL.  Alarm codes shall be issued by BCVRPD. Alarm codes should only be shared with
members that are issued keys.

1.  BYB/SB will be responsible for any charges incurred by a false alarm to the
NOBLE CREEK REGIONAL PARK from any BYB/SB volunteers or Board
members entering the building for business.

XVIII.  BYB/SB will provide the District a list of anyone that has been issued the assigned
alarm code. (Received: )

XIX.  BYB/SB shall promptly report any maintenance issues encountered during its use of
the buildings in writing to BCVRPD. BCVRPD will address reported issues.

XX.  BYB/SB will be responsible for any damage to the facility caused by BYB/SB
members, volunteers, and/or patrons. BCVRPD will repair damages and bill the cost
to BYB/SB.

XXI.  BCVRPD reserves the right to enter and inspect the facility at any time for any
purpose during use of the facility. User shall follow all directives from District
representatives.

XXII.  BYB/SB members, volunteers, and patrons shall not interfere with the regular use of
the facility by any other group or person. Excessive noise or other disruptive
behavior is prohibited.

i.  BYB/SB members, volunteers, and patrons agree to cooperate fully with all
other facility users and District representative in a professional and courteous
manner at all times.

XXIII.  BYB/SB agrees to charge parking fees for All-Star Boys Warm up Tournament JUNE
8th, 2022 — JUNE 13th, 2022, Softball All-Stars “C” District June ]7“‘, 2023 1™
2022,

Page 5 of 11



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
3.8.2

i. BYB/SB Board of Directors will decide the amount to distribute to
BCVRPD for fair share costs, the money received will go to the
Improvement Corporation fund balance.
XXIV. FORCE MAJEURE

i.  Force Majeure Events: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this
agreement, the BCVRPD shall be excused from its obligations under this agreement
to the extent and whenever it shall be prevented from the performance of such
obligations by any Force Majeure Event. For purposes of this agreement, a “Force
Majeure Event” includes but is not limited to fires, floods, earthquakes, pandemic,
epidemic, civil disturbances, acts of terrorism, regulation of any public
authority, and other causes beyond their control. BYB/SB waives any right of
recovery against BCVRPD and BYB/SB shall not charge results of “acts of
God” to BCVRPD, its officers, employees, or agents.

XXV.  In the performance of this agreement, BYB/SB shall comply with all applicable
provisions of the California Fair Employment Practices Act, California Government
Code Section 12940-48, and all applicable state and federal laws, including but not
limited to all regulations set forth by Riverside County and the Department of Health.

XXVI.  Any outside vendors utilized for BYB/SB events shall follow all necessary city legal
requirements. Any damage to BCVRPD property by their vendors is responsibility of
BYB/SB to repair and/or clean.

XXVIL.  Any volunteers operating a motorized vehicle must have a valid CA driver’s license
and insurance.

XXVII.  BYB/SB shall not assign or attempt to assign any portion of this agreement.

XXIX.  BYB/SB agrees to turn all field lights off by 10:00pm each night in use unless prior
approval from the General Manager of BCVRPD.

XXX. BYB/SB will have the opportunity to place advertisement banners on the inside ball
field fences from January 31, 2022 — June 30, 2022. Any other locations will require
prior approval of the General Manager. The placement, removal and
maintenance/appearance of the banners will be the sole responsibility of BYB/SB.
Any banner deemed inappropriate by the District standards will require immediate
removal. If the banner is not removed in a timely manner the District will remove the
banner.

XXXI.  Noble Creek Regional Park is one of Riverside County’s Fire Camp Bases and animal
evacuation centers in the event of a natural disaster. The park can be shut down to the
public on very short notice. You will be required to leave the park due to a sudden
park closure. There will be no reimbursement for loss of anticipated revenue.

XXXII.  BYB/SB shall maintain its own liability insurance, naming BCVRPD as additional
insured.

Page 6 of 11



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.2

i.  Minimum Requirements: BYB/SB shall, at its own expense procure and
maintain for the duration of the agreement insurance against claims for
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in
connection with the performance of the agreement by BYB/SB, its agents,
representatives, employees, or subcontractors. BYB/SB shall also require all
of its subcontractors to procure and maintain the same insurance for the
duration of the agreement. Insurance dates must cover January 1 through
December 31 of each year. Such insurance shall meet at least the following
minimum levels of coverage:

i.

il.

1il.

Minimum Scope of Insurance: Coverage shall be at least as broad as
the latest version of the following:

15

2

General Liability: Insurance Services Office Commercial
General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001);

Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Business Auto
Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto); and,

Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’
Compensation insurance as required by the State of California
and Employer’s Liability Insurance.

Minimum Limits of Insurance: BYB/SB shall maintain limits no less

than:

1.

2.

General Liability: Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per
occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property
damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other
form with general aggregate limit is used including, but not
limited to form CG 2503, either the general aggregate limit
shall apply separately to this agreement/location or the general
aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit;

Automobile Liability: One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per
accident for bodily injury and property damage; and

Worker’s Compensation and Employers’ Liability: Workers’
Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State
of California. Employer’s Liability limits of One Million
Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury or
disease.

Insurance Endorsements: The insurance policies shall contain the
following provisions, or BYB/SB shall provide endorsements on forms
supplied or approved by the BCVRPD to add the following provisions
to the insurance policies:

Page 7 of 11



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
3.8.2

iv. General Liability: The general liability policy shall be endorsed to
state that:

1. The DISTRICT, its directors, officials, officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers shall be covered as additional insured

with respect to the activity or operations performed by or on
behalf of the BYB/SB; and,

2. The insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects
the BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in a unbroken
chain of coverage excess of the BYB/SB scheduled underlying
coverage. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the
BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents,
and volunteers shall be excess of the BYB/SB insurance and
shall not be called upon to contribute with it in anyway.

v. Automobile Liability: The automobile liability policy shall be
endorsed to state that:

1. BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents,
and volunteers shall be covered as additional insured’s with
respect to the ownership operation, maintenance, use, loading
or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by
the BYB/SB or for which BYB/SB is responsible; and

2. The insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects
the BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken
chain of coverage excess of the BYB/SB scheduled underlying
coverage. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents,
and volunteers shall be excess of the BYB/SB insurance and
shall not be called upon to contribute with it in anyway.

vi. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Coverage: The
insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the
BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and
volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the insurance policy
which arise from work performed by BYB/SB.

vii. All Coverages: Each insurance policy required by this agreement shall
be endorsed to state that:

1. Coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced or canceled
except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified

— Page 8 of 11



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

Viii.

iX.

X1.

X11.

Xiil.

3.8.2

mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the BCVRPD;
and,

2. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the
policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect
coverage provided to the BCVRPD, its directors, officials,
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

Separation of Insured’s; No Special Limitations: All insurance
required by this section shall contain standard separation of insured’s
provisions. In addition, such insurance shall not contain any special
limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the BCVRPD, its
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.

Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions: Any deductibles or self-
insured retentions must be declared to and approved by BCVRPD.
BYB/SB shall guarantee that, at the option of the BCVRPD, either:

1. The insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-
insured retentions as respects the BCVRPD, its directors,
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers; or

2. BYB/SB shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses
and related investigation costs, claims, and administrative and
defense expenses.

Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers
with a current A:M. Best’s rating no less than A:VIII, licensed to do
business in California, and satisfactory to the DISTRICT.

Verification of Coverage: BYB/SB shall furnish DISTRICT with
original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage
required by the agreement on forms.

Satisfactory to the BCVRPD: The certificates and endorsements for
each insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that
insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All certificates and
endorsements must be received and approved by the BCVRRPD
before the activity commences. The BCVRPD reserves the right to
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at
any time.

Reporting of Claims: BYB/SB shall report to the BCVRPD, in
addition to the insurer, any and all insurance claims submitted by
BYB/SB in connection with this agreement.

_— Page 9 of 11



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
3.8.2

XXXIII.  BYB/SB shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless (BCVRPD), its officers,
employees, and agents from any and all losses, costs, expenses, claims, liabilities,
actions, or damages, including liability for injuries to any person or persons or
damage to property arising at any time out of or in any way related to the BYB/SB
use or occupancy of a facility or property controlled by the (BCVRPD), unless solely
caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of (BCVRPD), its officers,
employees, or agents.

XXXIV.  BYB/SB shall defend, with counsel of its choosing and at BYB/SB own cost, expense
and risk, any and all claims, suits, actions or other proceedings of every kind covered
by the section that may be brought or instituted against BCVRPD or its directors,
officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents. BYB/SB shall pay and satisfy
any judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against BCVRPD or its
directors, officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents as part of any such
claim, suit, action or other proceeding. Such reimbursement shall include payment
for BCVRPD’s attorney’s fees and costs, including expert witness fees. BYB/SB
shall reimburse BCVRPD and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents,
and/or volunteers, for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them
in connection therewith or in enforcing the indemnity herein provided. Obligation to
indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the
BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.

XXXV. Inthe event of litigation between parties arising out or connected with this agreement,
the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to recover, in addition to any
other amounts, reasonable attorney’s fees and costs of such litigation.

XXXVI.  This agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement of the parties and
supersedes any and all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either
written or oral. This agreement may be amended only by written instrument signed
by both parties.

XXXVIL.  This agreement and any dispute hereunder shall be governed by and interpreted
according to the laws of the State of California. Venue shall be in Riverside County.
XXXVIIL.  All notices pertaining to this agreement shall be in writing and addressed as follows:
i.  Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
390 W Oak Valley Parkway
Beaumont CA 92223

ii.  BYB/SB Steve Wagner

9757 Kehl Canyon Rd.
Cherry Valley, CA 92223

~ Page 10 of

11



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
3.8.2

XXXIX.  This agreement is to be affective on January 1, 2022 and end on December 31, 2022.
It may be extended by mutual agreement. Cancellation by either party will require a
(90) day written notice.

The Parties acknowledge that each has all requisite power and authority to conduct its business
and to execute, deliver, and perform the agreement. Each party warrants that the individuals who
have signed this agreement have the legal power, right, and authority to make this agreement and
bind each respective party.

Duane Burk, General Manager (BCVRPD) Steve Wagner, President(BYB/SB)
Date Date
..... Page 11 of

11



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.3

FACILITY USE LICENSE AGREEMENT

This Facility Use License Agreement (the “Agreement”), dated January 1, 2022 for
purposes of reference, is entered into by and between the Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation
and Park District (“BCVRPD”’) and CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS (“CAST”).
BCVRPD and “CAST” may be referred to herein generically as the “Party” or collectively as the
“Parties™.

RECITALS

1. Whereas, BCVRPD owns and operates the BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB
COMMUNITY CENTER located at 306 E. 6" STREET BEAUMONT, CA, 92223
AND FRANCO GARDENS located at 390 W. Oak Valley Parkway.

2. Whereas, CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS desires to utilize BCVRPD
facilities between January 1, 2022 and December 31, 2022 for THEATRICAL
PRODUCTIONS.

3. Whereas, CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS represents that it has the skill,
ability and personnel to STAGE such PRODUCTIONS.

Now, therefore, it is agreed by and between the parties as follows:

TERMS

1. BCVRPD shall authorize CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS rental of the
BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB COMMUNITY CENTER, on SEE ATTACHED
2022 DATE REQUESTS for AUDITIONS AND REHEARSALS,
PERFORMANCES, & YOUTH SUMMER CAMP.

II. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS must get approval for any other usage
of BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB COMMUNITY CENTER or any other property
of the District for any other reason through the District office at regular rental prices.

III.  Building availability and ALL AUDITIONS, REHEARSALS, PERFORMANCES,
AND YOUTH SUMMER CAMP are subject to California Governor’s Orders AND
THE CALIFORNIA STATE COLORED TIER SYSTEM.

i.  BUILDING AVAILABILITY AND ALL AUDITIONS, REHEARSALS,
PERFORMANCES, AND YOUTH SUMMER CAMP FOR 2022 ARE NOT
GUARANTEED.

- Pagelof11 —



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.3

ii. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS is permitted to host
MEETINGS AND EVENTS. EACH EVENT must be limited to 25% room
capacity, OR in compliance with California Governor’s Orders or the colored
tier system, as they are updated.

iii.  In the case the ROOM CAPACITY exceeds the mandated requirement at the
time of use; CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS shall assign time
slots to users to maintain groups as to not exceed the specified capacity at said
time of use PER GOVERNOR’S ORDERS, as they are updated.

IV.  This agreement includes access to BEAUMONT WOMAN'S CLUB COMMUNITY
CENTER and surrounding parking (Excluding the Historical Society Museum).
Specialty equipment needed to operate the BEAUMONT WOMAN'S CLUB
COMMUNITY CENTER will not be the responsibility of BCVRPD.

1. Access to the parking area is by first request of event dates through the
Activities Coordinator or General Manager of the District.

V.  BCVRPD will give notice to CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS if there is
another event taking place at the BEAUMONT WOMAN'S CLUB COMMUNITY
CENTER that could interfere with any dates in their agreement.

VI. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAW, RULES, & REGULATIONS
PER STATE OF CALIFORNIA REGARDING COVID-19 REQUIREMENTS
i. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS shall comply with all local,
state, and federal laws and regulations related to the use of the facility and
public gatherings.

ii. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS agrees to abide by all applicable
local, federal, and state accessibility standards and regulations.

iii. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS further agrees that it is solely
responsible for reviewing and ensuring compliance with all applicable public
health rules, regulations, orders, and/or guidance in effect at the time of the
use of the facility including, but not limited to, physical distancing, limits on
the size of gatherings, use of appropriate sanitation practices, etc.

iv. BCVRPD reserves the right to immediately revoke CATCH A STAR
THEATRICAL PLAYERS right to use of the facility under this agreement
should CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS fail to comply with any
provision of this section.

VII.  BCVRPD and its employees are not responsible for any misplaced, broken or stolen
items that CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS chooses to store in or around
the facility.

i. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS must get prior approval for any

L. SO Page 2 of 11 ST EER L T E WL




Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.3

stored items on the district property.

ii. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS will provide an inventory list of
all items stored in BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB COMMUNITY
CENTER and the square footage needed to store the items. (Received: )

ii.  CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS will provide a set of keys or
combinations to the District to anything stored on the district property.
(Received: )

iv. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS will not move the grand piano
belonging to the Woman’s Club

VIII. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS agrees to abide by their BCVRPD
APPROVED COVID-19 CLEANING AND GATHERING PROTOCOL
PROCEDURE DOCUMENT. The new policy and procedures will be attached at the
back of this Facility Use License Agreement. (Received: )

IX.  Fees, payable to BCVRPD for the above, shall be as follows:
i.  The following fees are good through the dates of this agreement
ii.  ($63.53 Per Performance day)
ili.  $12.71 per Auditions/Rehearsal/Set building day.

iv.  20% Compensation per student (10-14), 25% Compensation per student (15 or
more), for Youth Summer Camp, and less than (10) CATCH A STAR
THEATRICAL PLAYERS agrees to cancel camp.

v.  Payable within (10) days after, the Finance Services Technician has invoiced
for the month and emails (castplayers00 @ gmail.com and
rjmeinhold35 @gmail.com).

vi. A late fee of $25.00 will be added if not paid within 15 days of payment due
date.

vii.  There will be a $35.00 fee payable in cash on all returned checks. This fee is
required in order to restore contract.

X. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS shall during scheduled use perform set-
up and take-down of all chairs, tables, and be responsible for the general cleanliness
of the building after use.

i. If CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS Requires additional help

Page 3 of 11 -_



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.3

from BCVRPD with set up or tear down of Performance equipment, chairs, or
tables there will be a fee of $50.00 per hour

ii.  Cleanliness of the halls and bathrooms shall be the responsibility of CATCH
A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS during and after all facility use.

1ii. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS will remove all trash to the
outside trash containers after each use.

iv.  CAST, Board Members, volunteers, or staff shall not adjust the Thermostat to
below (72) degrees for air conditioning. If the Thermostat is set outside of
these settings by CAST Board Members, Members, Staff, or Volunteers;
CAST will have to pay for damages for the air conditioner/heater.

v. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS shall not permit gatherings
beyond that of AUDITIONS AND REHEARSALS, PERFORMANCES, &
YOUTH SUMMER CAMP before or after building use.

vi. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS shall abide by healthy
distancing at a minimum distance of (6) feet apart for all users for the entirety
of use at THE BEAUMONT WOMAN'S CLUB.

vii. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS members, volunteers, and/or
patrons will be recommended to wear masks while participating in
AUDITIONS AND REHEARSALS, PERFORMANCES, & YOUTH
SUMMER CAMP.

viii. BEAUMONT WOMAN'’S CLUB, INC. agrees to CALIFORNIA STATE
GOVERNOR’S ORDERS and shall clean restroom facilities following each
use of the BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB with CDC approved COVID-19
viral cleaning products.

XI.  Any building upgrades or permanent fixtures must be approved by BCVRPD prior to
construction. Any licenses, fees, permits will be the responsibility of CATCH A
STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS and must meet all City/County/State legal
standards.

XII.  BCVRPD is routinely doing upgrades to our facilities. During this time CATCH A
STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS could have limited or no access during these
upgrades. There will be no reimbursement for loss of anticipated revenue.

XIII.  All fundraisers are subject to prior approval by the Board of Directors of BCVRPD.

XIV.  BCVRPD reserves the right to reassign CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS

= Page 4 of 11



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.3

to another facility if the BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB COMMUNITY CENTER
should become unavailable due to an emergency.

XV.  All keys shall be issued by BCVRPD. Keys must be returned to the District Office at
the end of the agreement. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS shall not
duplicate any keys. If a key is lost or stolen CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL
PLAYERS shall immediately report the loss to BCVRPD. CATCH A STAR
THEATRICAL PLAYERS will be charged the cost for the re-keying of the building
and for manufacture of new keys.

XVI.  CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS will provide the District a list of
anyone that has been issued keys and for what locations. (Received: )

XVII. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS shall not make any changes to lock(s)
on District property.

XVII.  Alarm codes shall be issued by BCVRPD. Alarm codes should only be shared with
members that are issued keys.

1. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS will be responsible for any
charges incurred by a false alarm to the BEAUMONT WOMAN’S CLUB
COMMUNITY CENTER from any CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL
PLAYERS volunteers or Board members entering the building for business.
XIX. FORCE MAJEURE

i.  Force Majeure Events: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this
agreement, the BCVRPD shall be excused from its obligations under this agreement
to the extent and whenever it shall be prevented from the performance of such
obligations by any Force Majeure Event. For purposes of this agreement, a “Force
Majeure Event” includes but is not limited to fires, floods, earthquakes, pandemic,
epidemic, civil disturbances, acts of terrorism, regulation of any public
authority, and other causes beyond their control. CATCH A STAR
THEATRICAL PLAYERS waives any right of recovery against BCVRPD
and CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS shall not charge results of
“acts of God” to BCVRPD, its officers, employees, or agents.

XX. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS will provide the District a list of
anyone that has been issued the assigned alarm code. (Received: )

XXI. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS shall promptly report any maintenance
issues encountered during its use of the buildings in writing to BCVRPD. BCVRPD
will address reported issues.

XXII. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS will be responsible for any damage to
the facility caused by CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS members,

Page50f11 ——




Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.3

volunteers, and/or patrons. BCVRPD will repair damages and bill the cost to
CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS.

XXIII.  BCVRPD reserves the right to enter and inspect the facility at any time for any
purpose during use of the facility. User shall follow all directives from District
representatives.

XXIV. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS members, volunteers, and patrons shall
not interfere with the regular use of the facility by any other group or person.
Excessive noise or other disruptive behavior is prohibited.

i. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS members, volunteers, and
patrons agree to cooperate fully with all other facility users and District
representative in a professional and courteous manner at all times.

XXV. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS agrees to hire and pay for security
guards at any performance where alcohol is present and/or served. The number of
security guards shall be no less that (1) per (50) people in attendance. CAST will
secure all applicable licenses associated with selling alcohol.

XXVI. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS shall maintain its own liability
insurance, naming BCVRPD as additional insured.

i.  Minimum Requirements: CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS shall,
at its own expense procure and maintain for the duration of the agreement
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which
may arise from or in connection with the performance of the agreement by
CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS, its agents, representatives,
employees, or subcontractors. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS
shall also require all of its subcontractors to procure and maintain the same
insurance for the duration of the agreement. Insurance dates must cover
January 1 through December 31 of each year. Such insurance shall meet at
least the following minimum levels of coverage:

i. Minimum Scope of Insurance: Coverage shall be at least as broad as
the latest version of the following:

1. General Liability: Insurance Services Office Commercial
General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001);

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Business Auto
Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto); and,

3. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’

Page 6 of 11



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

il

iil.

iv.

3.8.3

Compensation insurance as required by the State of California
and Employer’s Liability Insurance.

Minimum Limits of Insurance: NAME OF USER shall maintain
limits no less than:

L.

2.

General Liability: Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per
occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property
damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other
form with general aggregate limit is used including, but not
limited to form CG 2503, either the general aggregate limit
shall apply separately to this agreement/location or the general
aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit;

Automobile Liability: One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per
accident for bodily injury and property damage; and

Worker’s Compensation and Employers’ Liability: Workers’
Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State
of California. Employer’s Liability limits of One Million
Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury or
disease.

Insurance Endorsements: The insurance policies shall contain the
following provisions, or CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS
shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or approved by the
BCVRPD to add the following provisions to the insurance policies:

General Liability: The general liability policy shall be endorsed to
state that:

1.

The DISTRICT, its directors, officials, officers, employees,

agents, and volunteers shall be covered as additional insured
with respect to the activity or operations performed by or on
behalf of the CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS;

and,

The insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects
the BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers employees,
agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in a unbroken
chain of coverage excess of the CATCH A STAR
THEATRICAL PLAYERS scheduled underlying coverage.
Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the BCVRPD,
its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and

- Page 7 of 11 ,



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.3

volunteers shall be excess of the CATCH A STAR
THEATRICAL PLAYERS insurance and shall not be called
upon to contribute with it in any way.

v. Automobile Liability: The automobile liability policy shall be
endorsed to state that:

1. BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents,
and volunteers shall be covered as additional insured’s with
respect to the ownership operation, maintenance, use, loading
or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by
the CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS or for which
CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS is responsible;
and

2. The insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects
the BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken
chain of coverage excess of the CATCH A STAR
THEATRICAL PLAYERS scheduled underlying coverage.
Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by BCVRPD, its
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers
shall be excess of the CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL
PLAYERS insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute
with it in any way.

vi. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Coverage: The
insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the
BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and
volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the insurance policy
which arise from work performed by CATCH A STAR
THEATRICAL PLAYERS.

vii. All Coverages: Each insurance policy required by this agreement shall
be endorsed to state that:

I. Coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced or canceled
except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified
mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the BCVRPD;
and,

2. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the
policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect
coverage provided to the BCVRPD, its directors, officials,

,,,,,,,,,,, - EHETETEI Page 8 Of 11 P R RS B —



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.3

officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

viii. Separation of Insured’s; No Special Limitations: All insurance
required by this section shall contain standard separation of insured’s
provisions. In addition, such insurance shall not contain any special
limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the BCVRPD, its
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.

ix. Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions: Any deductibles or self-
insured retentions must be declared to and approved by BCVRPD.
CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS shall guarantee that, at
the option of the BCVRPD, either:

1. The insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-
insured retentions as respects the BCVRPD, its directors,
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers; or

2. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS shall procure a
bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation
costs, claims, and administrative and defense expenses.

X. Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers
with a current A:M. Best’s rating no less than A:VIIIL licensed to do
business in California, and satisfactory to the DISTRICT.

xi. Verification of Coverage: CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL
PLAYERS shall furnish DISTRICT with original certificates of
insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by the
agreement on forms.

xii. Satisfactory to the BCVRPD: The certificates and endorsements for
each insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that
insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All certificates and
endorsements must be received and approved by the BCVRRPD
before the activity commences. The BCVRPD reserves the right to
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at
any time.

xiili. Reporting of Claims: CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS
shall report to the BCVRPD, in addition to the insurer, any and all
insurance claims submitted by CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL
PLAYERS in connection with this agreement.

XXVII. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS shall indemnify, defend, and hold

———— Page9of11




Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.3

harmless (BCVRPD), its officers, employees, and agents from any and all losses,
costs, expenses, claims, liabilities, actions, or damages, including liability for injuries
to any person or persons or damage to property arising at any time out of or in any
way related to the CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS use or occupancy of
a facility or property controlled by the (BCVRPD), unless solely caused by the gross
negligence or willful misconduct of (BCVRPD), its officers, employees, or agents.

XXVIII. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS shall defend, with counsel of its
choosing and at CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS own cost, expense and
risk, any and all claims, suits, actions or other proceedings of every kind covered by
the section that may be brought or instituted against BCVRPD or its directors,
officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents. CATCH A STAR
THEATRICAL PLAYERS shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree that
may be rendered against BCVRPD or its directors, officials, officers, employees,
volunteers and agents as part of any such claim, suit, action or other proceeding.
Such reimbursement shall include payment for BCVRPD’s attorney’s fees and costs,
including expert witness fees. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS shall
reimburse BCVRPD and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or
volunteers, for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in
connection therewith or in enforcing the indemnity herein provided. Obligation to
indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the
BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.

XXIX.  Inthe event of litigation between parties arising out or connected with this agreement,
the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to recover, in addition to any
other amounts, reasonable attorney’s fees and costs of such litigation.

XXX.  This agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement of the parties and
supersedes any and all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either
written or oral. This agreement may be amended only by written instrument signed
by both parties.

XXXI.  This agreement and any dispute hereunder shall be governed by and interpreted
according to the laws of the State of California. Venue shall be in Riverside County.
XXXII.  All notices pertaining to this agreement shall be in writing and addressed as follows:

i.  Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
390 W Oak Valley Parkway
Beaumont CA 92223

i1. CATCH A STAR THEATRICAL PLAYERS

PO BOX 125
Beaumont CA 92223

Page 10 of

11



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.3

XXXIII.  This agreement is to be affective on January 1, 2022 and end on December 31, 2022.
It may be extended by mutual agreement. Cancellation by either party will require a
(90) day written notice.

The Parties acknowledge that each has all requisite power and authority to conduct its business
and to execute, deliver, and perform the agreement. Each party warrants that the individuals who
have signed this agreement have the legal power, right, and authority to make this agreement and
bind each respective party.

Duane Burk, General Manager, BCVRPD Richard J. Meinhold, Managing Director
(CAST Players)
Date e
~_ Page 11 of

11



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

Facility License Agreement Information

Facility User: (/3}72,'{? ﬁ Q?}C/L, \ﬂ( ,}’1724;./-6; // /ﬂf/&/—i(

Facility: W&M(’,,{/ '; é A%é

Period of use: January 1, 2022 - December 31, 2022

;’f) IQ /;3 ‘o’ﬁ Days and Times:
‘4(/ //‘/ ///(.d (/s "/ Mf.«‘ N é‘ﬁ:}%a//ﬂ Ty & //// é"i‘?'//)tz
Efﬂ:lcé/ ///2. Lol Q’ i '//)A{ 7/."4 (LB Gl Ee ~ /od// Al s e
&l }Gf 7{!«# Tt //f 4*"}3? /ﬂay . Lt f/ﬁ &/7(? 7/4/
'ﬁ;f //2(/ é /ZP/ /:4,._/ /M,q,’ /1«/ (f‘r?oj( //m'/ Ve //z’i)é‘féﬁ/k,
Wz«f [[26 ¢t 300 42” "725 //.,77 & - 7M o7 /o7 Fon S pay
fn'ﬁ/ [ [0 Ga# - 5/1,5; : /%’U //?l’ ¢ Ee> ’/9144(

(If more’space is needed please attach separafe sheet.y’

_{f& Jff”frtﬁl/“ J[Lfﬁffd Fleaiy e < r“’bt(/ (5 7(7/‘5‘12___

Facility User Representative:

Print Name: ,é¢ //‘;],1,;/ -7,% /e oo el Title: /Wﬁ/f;s?ﬁ/ )//2_:, (i

-
Address: /77 Dese T é;’,_«;, 7, L/ City: Lger Aen? zip: FeZT %
Phone: e Cen;( 7}:{'\5 27272

Email: /A//Lfg/&’%(/p(/ / f';d'f/’( Loay

Please Return completed form by October 29th, 2021



Page 2, Input for Facility License Agreement (Women's Club)

February

Mon, /31, 6-10 pm; Tues, 2/1, 6-10 pm; Wed, 2/2, 6-10 pm; Thy, 2/3, 6-10 pm; Sat, 2/5, 11 am-
6 pm; Mon, 2/7, 6 - 10 pm; Tue, 2/8, 6-10 pm; Wed, 2/9, 6-10 pm; Thu, 2/10, 6-10 pm; Sat, 2/12,
11 am-6 pm; Mon, 2/14, 6-10 pm; Tue, 2/15, 6-10 pm; Wed, 2/16, 6-10 pm; Thu, 2/17, 6-10 pm;
Sat, 2/19, 1-10 pm (performance); Sun, 2/20, 10 am-6 pm {performance); Wed, 2/23, 6-10 pm:
Fri, 2/25, 1-10 pm {performance); Sat, 2/26, 1-10 pm (performance); Sun 2/27, 10 am-8 pm
{nerformance)

March

Mon, 3/7, 6-9 pm; Mon, 3/14, 6-9 pm; Tue, 3/15, 6-9 pm; Mon 3/28, 6 -10 pm; Tue 3/29, 6 -10
pm; Wed 3/30, 6-10 pm; Thu 3/31, 6-10 pm

April

Mon, 4/4, 6-10 pm; Tue, 4/5, 6-10 pm; Thu, 4/7, 6-10 pm; Mon, 4/11, 6-10 pm; Tue, 4/12, 6-10
pm; Wed, 4/13, 6-10 pm; Thu, 4/14, 6-10 pm; Sat, 4/16, 9 am-5 pm (set); Sun 4/17, 9 am-5 pm
(set); Mon 4/18, 6-10 pm; Tue, 4/19, 6-10 pm; Wed, 4/20, 6-10 pm; Thu, 4/21, 6-10 pm; Sat,
4/23, 9 am-5 pm (set); Sun, 4/24, 9-5 pm (set); Mon, 4/25, 6-10 pm; Tue, 4/26, 6-10 pm; Wed,
4/27, 6-10 pm; Thu, 4/28, 6-10 pm

May

Mon, 5/2, 6-10 pm; Tue, 5/3, 6-10 pm; Wed, 5/4, 6-10 pm; Thu, 5/5, 6-10 pm; Mon, 5/9, 6-10
pm; Tue, 5/10, 6-10 pm; Wed, 5/11, 6-10 pm; Thu, 5/12, 6-10 pm; Fri, 5/13, 2-10 pm
(performance); Sat, 5/14, 2-10 pm (performance); Sun, 5/15, 10 am-6 pm {performance); Wed,
5/26, 6-10 pm; Fri, 5/28, 2-10 pm (performance); Sat, 5/29, 2-10 pm (performance); Sun, 5/30,
10 am-8 pm {performance)}

June

Juby

Mon, 7/4, 6-9 pm; Mon 7/11, 1-5 pm, Tue 7/12, 1-5 pm; Wed, 7/13, 1-5 pm; Thu, 7/14, 1-5 pm;
Fri 7/15, 1-5 pm; Mon, 7/18, 1-5 pm; Tue, 7/19, 1-5 pm; Wed, 7/20, 1-5 pm; Thu, 7/21, 1-5 pm;
Fri, 7/22, 1-5 pm; Mon 7/25, 1-5 pm; Tue 7/26, 1-5 pm; Wed 7/27, 1-5 pm; Thu 7/28, 1-5 pm Fri
7/29, 1-5 pm Sat, 7/30, 9-5 pm,



Page 3, input for Facility License Agreement (Women's Club)

August

Mon, 8/15, 6-10 pm; Tue, 8/16, 6-10 pm; Mon, 8/22, 6-10 pm; Tue, 8/23, 6-10 pm; Wed, 8/24,
6-10 pm; Thu, 8/25, 6-10 pm; Mon /29, 6-10 pm; Tue 8/30, 6-10 pm; Wed 8/31, 6-10 pm

September

Thu, 8/, 6-10 pm; Mon, 9/5, 6-10 pm; Tue, 9/6, 6-10 pm; Wed, 9/7, 6-10 pm; Thu, /8 6-10 pm;
Sat 9/10, 9 am-5 pm (set); Sun 9/11, 9 am-5 pm (set); Mon, 9/12, 6-10 pm; Tue, 9/13, 6-10 pm;
Wed, 9/14, 6-10 pm; Thu, 9/15, 6-10 pm; Mon, 8/19, 6-10 om; Tue, 9/20, 6-10 pm; Wed, 9/21,
6-10 pm, Thu, 9/22, 6-10 pm; Mon, 9/26, 6-10 pm, Tue, 9/27, 6-10 pm; Wed, 9/28, 6-10 pm;
Thu, 9/29, 6-10 pm

QOctober

Mon, 10/3, 6-10 pm; Tue, 10/4, 6-10 pm; Wed, 10/5, 6-10 pm; Thu, 10/6, 6-10 pm; Fri 10/7, 2-10
pm {performance); Sat, 10/8, 2 - 10 pm {performance); Sun 10/9, 11 am - 6 pm {performance};
Wed, 10/13, 6-10 pm; Sat, 10/15, 1-10 pm {performance), Sun, 10/16, 10 am-8 pm
(performance); Mon 10/17, 6-10 pm; Tue 10/18, 6-10 pm; Mon 10/24, 6-10 pm; Tue 10/25, 6-10
pm; Wed 10/26, 6-10 pm; Thu 10/27, 6-10 pm; Mon 10/31, 6-10 pm

November

Tue, 11/1, 6-10 pm; Wed 11/2, 6-10 pm; Thu 11/3, 6-10 pm; Mon 11/7, 6-10 pm; Tue 11/8, 6-10
pm; Wed 11/9, 6-10 pm; Thu 11/10, 6-10 pm; Sat 11/12, 9 am - 5 pm (set); Sun 11/13, 9 am-
Spm; Mon 11/14, 6-10 pm; Tue 11/15, 6-10 pm; Wed 11/16, 6-10 pm; Thu 11/17, 6-10 pm; Maon
11/21, 6-10 pm; Tue 11/22, 6-10 pm; Wed 11/23, 6-10 pm; Mon 11/28, 6-10 pm; Tue 11/29, 6-
10 pm: Wed 11/30, 6-10 pm

Cecember

Thu 12/1, 6-10 pm; Mon 12/5, 6-10 pm; Tue 12/6, 6-10 pm; Wed 12/7, 6-10 pm; Thu 12/8 6-10
pm; Sat 12/10, 2-10 pm (performance); Sun 12/11, 10 am-5 pm9 Performance; Wed 12/14, 6-10
pm; Sat 12/17, 2-10 pm {performance); Sun 12/18 10 am-8 pm {performance)}



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.4

FACILITY USE LICENSE AGREEMENT

This Facility Use License Agreement (the “Agreement”), dated January 1, 2022 for purposes of
reference, is entered into by and between the Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
(“BCVRPD”) and CHURCH FOR FAMILY. BCVRPD and CHURCH FOR FAMILY may be referred to
herein generically as the “Party” or collectively as the “Parties”.

RECITALS

1. Whereas, BCVRPD owns and operates the CHERRY VALLEY GRANGE COMMUNITY CENTER
located at 10478 BEAUMONT AVE, CHERRY VALLEY, CA, 92223,

2. Whereas, CHURCH FOR FAMILY desires to utilize BCVRPD facilities between January 1, 2022 and
December 31, 2022 for CHURCH SERVICES.

3. Whereas, CHURCH FOR FAMILY represents that it has the skill, ability and personnel to render such
SERVICES.

Now, therefore, it is agreed by and between the parties as follows:

TERMS

I. BCVRPD shall authorize CHURCH FOR FAMILY rental of the CHERRY VALLEY GRANGE
COMMUNITY CENTER, on ALL SUNDAYS FROM 8:00AM - 12:00PM AND SUNDAY
EVENINGS WHEN NOT RENTED BY BCVRPD for CHURCH SERVICES.

II.  Building availability and ALL CLUB MEETINGS and EVENTS are subject to California
Governor’s Orders AND THE CALIFORNIA STATE COLORED TIER SYSTEM.

i.  BUILDING AVAILABILITY AND MEETING DATES FOR 2022 ARE NOT
GUARANTEED.

ii. CHURCH FOR FAMILY must get approval for any other usage of CHERRY VALLEY
GRANGE COMMUNITY CENTER or any other property of the District for any other
reason through the District office at regular rental prices.

iii.  BCVRPD will give notice to CHURCH FOR FAMILY if there is any other event scheduled
in the building on Sundays after their morning services.

iv.  CHURCH FOR FAMILY is permitted to host CHURCH SERVICES, MEETINGS, AND
EVENTS. EACH EVENT must be limited to 25% room capacity, OR in compliance with
California Governor’s Orders or the colored tier system, as they are updated.

v.  In the case there are more than 25% ROOM CAPACITY, CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall be
required to assign time slots to users to maintain groups AT CAPACITY ALLOWED PER
GOVERNOR’S ORDERS, as they are updated.

Page 1 of 9



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
3.8.4

L. This agreement includes full access to CHERRY VALLEY GRANGE COMMUNITY CENTER
and surrounding parking. Specialty equipment needed to operate the CHERRY VALLEY GRANGE
COMMUNITY CENTER will not be the responsibility of BCVRPD.

i.  Access to the parking area is by first request of event dates through the Activities
Coordinator or General Manager of the park District.

IV.  BCVRPD will give notice to CHURCH FOR FAMILY if there is another event taking place at the
CHERRY VALLEY GRANGE COMMUNITY CENTER that could interfere with any dates in their
agreement.

V. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAW, RULES, & REGULATIONS PER STATE OF
CALIFORNIA REGARDING COVID-19 REQUIREMENTS
i.  CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall comply with all local, state, and federal laws and regulations
related to the use of the facility and public gatherings.

ii. CHURCH FOR FAMILY agrees to abide by all applicable local, federal, and state
accessibility standards and regulations.

iii. CHURCH FOR FAMILY further agrees that it is solely responsible for reviewing and
ensuring compliance with all applicable public health rules, regulations, orders, and/or
guidance in effect at the time of the use of the facility including, but not limited to, physical
distancing, limits on the size of gatherings, use of appropriate sanitation practices, etc.

iv.  BCVRPD reserves the right to immediately revoke CHURCH FOR FAMILY right to use of
the facility under this agreement should CHURCH FOR FAMILY fail to comply with any
provision of this section.

VL. BCVRPD and its employees are not responsible for any misplaced, broken or stolen items that
CHURCH FOR FAMILY chooses to store in or around the facility.

i.  CHURCH FOR FAMILY must get prior approval for any stored items on the district
property.

it. ~ CHURCH FOR FAMILY will provide an inventory list of all items stored in/or around
CHERRY VALLEY GRANGE COMMUNITY CENTER and the square footage needed to
store the items. (Received: )

iii.  CHURCH FOR FAMILY will provide a set of keys or combinations to the District to
anything stored on the district property. (Received: )

iv.  The Park District’s Facility AJHOC Committee has given permission to the CHURCH FOR
FAMILY to place a storage bin on the property next to the shed. CHURCH FOR FAMILY
will remove storage bin if/when the Church no longer resides at the CHERRY VALLEY
GRANGE COMMUNITY CENTER

v.  CHURCH FOR FAMILY has purchased (80) black stackable chairs for their use. The
District has permission to use the chairs if/when needed. The chairs will be donated to the
District and remain part of the CHERRY VALLEY GRANGE COMMUNITY CENTER
property if/when the Church no longer resides at the CHERRY VALLEY GRANGE
COMMUNITY CENTER.

Page 2 of 9 =



i.

il.

1ii.

v.

Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.4

Fees, payable to BCVRPD for the above, shall be as follows:

The following fees are good through the dates of this agreement
$346.50 per week of Sunday Services.

Payable within (10) days after, the Finance Services Technician has invoices for the month
and emails paulwnewell @ gmail.com.

A late fee of $25.00 will be added if not paid within 15 days of payment due date.

There will be a $35.00 fee payable in cash on all returned checks. This is required in order to
restore contract.

VIII. CHURCH FOR FAMILY, agrees to abide by their BCVRPD APPROVED COVID-19 CLEANING
AND GATHERING PROTOCOL PROCEDURE DOCUMENT. The new policy and procedures
will be attached at the back of this Facility Use License Agreement. (Received: )

IX. CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall during scheduled use perform set-up and take-down of all chairs,
tables, equipment, and be responsible for the general cleanliness of the building after use.

1

i

1.

1v.

V1.

Cleanliness of the halls and bathrooms shall be the responsibility of CHURCH FOR
FAMILY during and after all facility use.

CHURCH FOR FAMILY will remove all trash to the outside trash containers after each use.

CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall not permit gatherings beyond that of MEETINGS AND
EVENTS before or after building use.

CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall abide by healthy distancing at a minimum distance of (6) feet
apart for all users for the entirety of use at GRANGE.

CHURCH FOR FAMILY members, volunteers, and/or patrons will be recommended to wear
masks while participating in CHURCH SERVICES AND EVENTS.

CHURCH FOR FAMILY agrees to CALIFORNIA STATE GOVERNOR’S ORDERS and
shall clean restroom facilities following each use of the GRANGE with CDC approved
COVID-19 viral cleaning products.

X.  Any building upgrades or permanent fixtures must be approved by BCVRPD prior to construction.
Any licenses, fees, permits will be the responsibility of CHURCH FOR FAMILY and must meet all
City/County/State legal standards.

1.

il.

CHURCH FOR FAMILY has permission from the District Facility AUHOC Committee to
install permanent speakers in the OAK ROOM of the CHERRY VALLEY GRANGE
COMMUNITY CENTER. Speakers must be approved by the Facility AAHOC Committee
prior to installation.

Cost of any approved permanent fixtures will be the responsibility of CHURCH FOR
FAMILY and will be donated to the District and remain as part of the CHERRY VALLEY

Page 3 of 9



XL

XIIL.

XIII.

XIV.

XV.

XVI

XVIIL

XVIIL

XIX.

XX.

XXIL

XXII.

Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.4

GRANGE COMMUNITY CENTER property if/when the Church no longer resides at the
CHERRY VALLEY GRANGE COMMUNITY CENTER.

BCVRPD is routinely doing upgrades to our facilities. During this time CHURCH FOR FAMILY
could have limited or no access during these upgrades. There will be no reimbursement for loss of
anticipated revenue.

All fundraisers are subject to prior approval by the Board of Directors of BCVRPD.

BCVRPD reserves the right to reassign CHURCH FOR FAMILY to another facility if the CHERRY
VALLEY GRANGE COMMUNITY CENTER should become unavailable due to an emergency.

All keys shall be issued by BCVRPD. Keys must be returned to the District Office at the end of the
agreement. CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall not duplicate any keys. If a key is lost or stolen
CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall immediately report the loss to BCVRPD. CHURCH FOR FAMILY
will be charged the cost for re-keying of the building and for manufacture of new keys.

CHURCH FOR FAMILY will provide the District a list of anyone that has been issued keys and for
what locations. (Received: )

CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall not make any changes to lock(s) on District property.

Alarm codes shall be issued by BCVRPD. Alarm codes should only be shared with members that are
issued keys.

i.  CHURCH FOR FAMILY will be responsible for any charges incurred by a false alarm to the
CHERRY VALLEY GRANGE COMMUNITY CENTER from any CHURCH FOR
FAMILY members, volunteers and/or patrons entering the building for business.

CHURCH FOR FAMILY will provide the District a list of anyone that has been issued the assigned
alarm code. (Received: )

CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall promptly report any maintenance issues encountered during its use
of the buildings in writing to BCVRPD. BCVRPD will address reported issues.

CHURCH FOR FAMILY will be responsible for any damage to the facility caused by CHURCH
FOR FAMILY members, volunteers, and/or patrons. BCVRPD will repair any damages and bill the
cost to CHURCH FOR FAMILY.

BCVRPD reserves the right to enter and inspect the facility at any time for any purpose during use of
the facility. User shall follow all directives from District representatives.

CHURCH FOR FAMILY members, volunteers, and patrons shall not interfere with the regular use
of the facility by any other group or person. Excessive noise or other disruptive behavior is
prohibited.

1. CHURCH FOR FAMILY members, volunteers, and patrons agree to cooperate fully with all
other facility users and District representative in a professional and courteous manner at all
times.

Page 4 of 9 e



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.4

XXIII.  FORCE MAJEURE

1

Force Majeure Events: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this agreement, the
BCVRPD shall be excused from its obligations under this agreement to the extent and whenever it
shall be prevented from the performance of such obligations by any Force Majeure Event. For
purposes of this agreement, a “Force Majeure Event” includes but is not limited to fires, floods,
earthquakes, pandemic, epidemic, civil disturbances, acts of terrorism, regulation of any
public authority, and other causes beyond their control. CHURCH FOR FAMILY waives any
right of recovery against BCVRPD and CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall not charge results of
“acts of God” to BCVRPD, its officers, employees, or agents.

XXIV. CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall maintain its own liability insurance, naming BCVRPD as additional
insured.

Minimum Requirements: CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall, at its own expense procure and
maintain for the duration of the agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or
damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the
agreement by CHURCH FOR FAMILY, its agents, representatives, employees, or
subcontractors. CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall also require all of its subcontractors to
procure and maintain the same insurance for the duration of the agreement. Insurance dates
must cover January 1 through December 31 of each year. Such insurance shall meet at least
the following minimum levels of coverage:

i. Minimum Scope of Insurance: Coverage shall be at least as broad as the latest
version of the following:

1. General Liability: Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability
coverage (occurrence form CG 0001);

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form
number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto); and,

3. Workers” Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation
insurance as required by the State of California and Employer’s Liability
Insurance.

ii. Minimum Limits of Insurance: CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall maintain limits no
less than:

1. General Liability: Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per occurrence for
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. If Commercial General
Liability Insurance or other form with general aggregate limit is used
including, but not limited to form CG 2503, either the general aggregate limit
shall apply separately to this agreement/location or the general aggregate limit
shall be twice the required occurrence limit;

2. Automobile Liability: One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident for
bodily injury and property damage; and

Page5of 9 - S—



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
3.8.4

3. Worker’s Compensation and Employers’ Liability: Workers’ Compensation
limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of California. Employer’s
Liability limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident for bodily
injury or disease.

iii. Insurance Endorsements: The insurance policies shall contain the following
provisions, or CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall provide endorsements on forms
supplied or approved by the BCVRPD to add the following provisions to the
insurance policies:

iv. General Liability: The general liability policy shall be endorsed to state that:

1. The DISTRICT, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and
volunteers shall be covered as additional insured with respect to the activity or
operations performed by or on behalf of the CHURCH FOR FAMILY; and,

2. The insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the BCVRPD,
its directors, officials, officers employees, agents, and volunteers, or if excess,
shall stand in a unbroken chain of coverage excess of the CHURCH FOR
FAMILY scheduled underlying coverage. Any insurance or self-insurance
maintained by the BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the CHURCH FOR FAMILY
insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in anyway.

v. Automobile Liability: The automobile liability policy shall be endorsed to state that:

1. BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers
shall be covered as additional insured’s with respect to the ownership
operation, maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased,
hired or borrowed by the CHURCH FOR FAMILY or for which CHURCH
FOR FAMILY is responsible; and

2. The insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the BCVRPD,
its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or if
excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the CHURCH
FOR FAMILY scheduled underlying coverage. Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers,
employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the CHURCH FOR
FAMILY insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in
anyway.

vi. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Coverage: The insurer shall
agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the BCVRPD, its directors, officials,
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the
insurance policy which arise from work performed by CHURCH FOR FAMILY.

vii. All Coverages: Each insurance policy required by this agreement shall be endorsed
to state that:

S — Page 6 Of 9 —




XXV.

Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

viii.

1X.

X1.

Xil.

Xiii.

3.8.4

1. Coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced or canceled except after
thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested,
has been given to the BCVRPD; and,

2. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies,
including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to the
BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

Separation of Insured’s; No Special Limitations: All insurance required by this
section shall contain standard separation of insured’s provisions. In addition, such
insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of protection afforded
to the BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.

Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions: Any deductibles or self-insured
retentions must be declared to and approved by BCVRPD. CHURCH FOR FAMILY
shall guarantee that, at the option of the BCVRPD, either:

1. The insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured
retentions as respects the BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers,
employees, agents, and volunteers; or

2. CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of
losses and related investigation costs, claims, and administrative and defense
expenses.

. Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current

A:M. Best’s rating no less than A:VIII, licensed to do business in California, and
satisfactory to the DISTRICT.

Verification of Coverage: CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall furnish DISTRICT with
original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by the
agreement on forms.

Satisfactory to the BCVRPD: The certificates and endorsements for each insurance
policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its
behalf. All certificates and endorsements must be received and approved by the
BCVRRPD before the activity commences. The BCVRPD reserves the right to
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time.

Reporting of Claims: CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall report to the BCVRPD, in
addition to the insurer, any and all insurance claims submitted by CHURCH FOR
FAMILY in connection with this agreement.

CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless (BCVRPD), its officers,
employees, and agents from any and all losses, costs, expenses, claims, liabilities, actions, or
damages, including liability for injuries to any person or persons or damage to property arising at
any time out of or in any way related to the CHURCH FOR FAMILY use or occupancy of a facility
or property controlled by the (BCVRPD), unless solely caused by the gross negligence or willful
misconduct of (BCVRPD), its officers, employees, or agents.

Page 7 of 9




Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.4

CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall defend, with counsel of its choosing and at CHURCH FOR
FAMILY own cost, expense and risk, any and all claims, suits, actions or other proceedings of every
kind covered by the section that may be brought or instituted against BCVRPD or its directors,
officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents. CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall pay and satisfy
any judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against BCVRPD or its directors, officials,
officers, employees, volunteers and agents as part of any such claim, suit, action or other proceeding.
Such reimbursement shall include payment for BCVRPD’s attorney’s fees and costs, including
expert witness fees. CHURCH FOR FAMILY shall reimburse BCVRPD and its directors, officials,
officers, employees, agents, and/or volunteers, for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by
each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing the indemnity herein provided. Obligation to
indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the BCVRPD, its
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.

XXVII.  In the event of litigation between parties arising out or connected with this agreement, the prevailing
party in such litigation shall be entitled to recover, in addition to any other amounts, reasonable
attorney’s fees and costs of such litigation.

XXVIIL.  This agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement of the parties and supersedes any and
all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. This agreement may be
amended only by written instrument signed by both parties.

XXIX.  This agreement and any dispute hereunder shall be governed by and interpreted according to the
laws of the State of California. Venue shall be in Riverside County.
XXX.  All notices pertaining to this agreement shall be in writing and addressed as follows:
1. Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
390 W Oak Valley Parkway
Beaumont CA 92223

ii. CHURCH FOR FAMILY
c/o Pastor Paul
34811 Pleasant Grove St
Yucaipa CA 92399

XXXI.  This agreement is to be affective on January 1, 2022 and end on December 31, 2022. It may be
extended by mutual agreement. Cancellation by either party will require a (90) day written notice.

The Parties acknowledge that each has all requisite power and authority to conduct its business and to
execute, deliver, and perform the agreement. Each party warrants that the individuals who have signed
this agreement have the legal power, right, and authority to make this agreement and bind each
respective party.

Duane Burk, General Manager (BCVRPD) Paul Newell, Pastor (CHURCH FOR FAMILY)

Date Date

Page 8 of 9



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.5

FACILITY USE LICENSE AGREEMENT

This Facility Use License Agreement (the “Agreement”), dated January 1, 2022 for
purposes of reference, is entered into by and between the Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation
and Park District (“BCVRPD”) and ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC
RACEWAY. BCVRPD and “ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY”
may be referred to herein generically as the “Party” or collectively as the “Parties”.

RECITALS

1. Whereas, BCVRPD owns and operates the NOBLE CREEK REGIONAL PARK located
at 650 W. OAK VALLEY PARKWAY BEAUMONT, CA, 92223,

2. Whereas, ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY desires to utilize
BCVRPD facilities between JANUARY 1, 2022 and December 31, 2022 for RUN AN
RC RACEWAY TRACK FOR EVENTS AND PLAY.

3. Whereas, ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY represents that it
has the skill, ability and personnel to operate such an RC RACEWAY TRACK.

Now, therefore, it is agreed by and between the parties as follows:

TERMS

I.  BCVRPD shall authorize ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC
RACEWAY rental of the NOBLE CREEK REGIONAL PARK, on REGULAR
OPERATING HOURS: CLOSED MONDAY, TUESDAY, AND WEDNESDAY,
6PM-10PM THURSDAY AND FRIDAY, 10AM-6PM SATURDAY AND
SUNDAY to RUN EVENTS AND PLAY ON THE RC RACEWAY TRACK.
SPECIAL EVENT DATES INCLUDE JANUARY 8" JANUARY 21st-23",
FEBRUARY 12th, FEBRUARY 26", MARCH 19", APRIL 9TH, APRIL 23", MAY
14" MAY 28" JUNE 11", June 18", JULY 2™, JULY 9%, JULY 23", AUGUST 6",
AUGUTS 20", SEPTEMBER 10", SEPTEMBER 24", OCTOBER 8", OCTOBER
2123 NOVEMBER 12", NOVEMBER 26" and DECEMBER 10th

II.  Building/facility availability and ALL EVENTS are subject to California Governor’s
Orders AND THE CALIFORNIA STATE COLORED TIER SYSTEM.

i. BUILDING AVAILABILITY, FACILITY USE, AND MEETING DATES
FOR 2022 ARE NOT GUARANTEED.

ii. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY must get
approval for any other usage of NOBLE CREEK COMMUNITY PARK or
any other property of the District for any other reason through the District

Page 1 of 13




Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.85
office at regular rental prices.

iii. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY is permitted to
host RACES AND EVENTS. EACH EVENT must be limited to 25% room
capacity, OR in compliance with California Governor’s Orders or the colored
tier system, as they are updated.

iv.  In the case there are more than 25% ROOM CAPACITY, ANDREW
TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY shall be required to assign
time slots to users to maintain groups AT CAPACITY ALLOWED PER
GOVERNOR'’S ORDERS, as they are updated.

III. ~ This agreement includes access to NOBLE CREEK REGIONAL PARK and
surrounding parking, Specialty equipment needed to operate NOBLE CREEK
REGIONAL PARK will not be the responsibility of BCVRPD.

1. Access to the parking area is by first request of event dates through the
Activities Coordinator or General Manager of the District.

ii.  The dog park/tennis court parking lot spaces are not to be used by ANDREW
TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAYS patrons, employees, or
volunteers except appropriate Handicap placard vehicles.

iii.  During events in the Horse arena BCVRPD will designate parking for
ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY. The parking
north of the horse arena will be designated to the horse arena user(s) only.

iv.  The District has designated Board approved Parking fees, all patrons,
employees, and/or volunteers will be charged a $5.00 parking fee.

IV.  BCVRPD will give notice to ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC
RACEWAY if there is another event taking place at the NOBLE CREEK
REGIONAL PARK that could interfere with any dates in their agreement.

V. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAW, RULES, & REGULATIONS
PER STATE OF CALIFORNIA REGARDING COVID-19 REQUIREMENTS

i. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY shall comply
with all local, state, and federal laws and regulations related to the use of the
facility and public gatherings.

ii. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY agrees to abide
by all applicable local, federal, and state accessibility standards and
regulations.

iii. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY further agrees
that it is solely responsible for reviewing and ensuring compliance with all
applicable public health rules, regulations, orders, and/or guidance in effect at
the time of the use of the facility including, but not limited to, physical

— Page 2 of 13 —



1v.

Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.5

distancing, limits on the size of gatherings, use of appropriate sanitation
practices, etc.

BCVRPD reserves the right to immediately revoke ANDREW TROTTER,
THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY right to use of the facility under this
agreement should ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC
RACEWAY fail to comply with any provision of this section.

VI.  BCVRPD and its employees are not responsible for any misplaced, broken or stolen
items that ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY chooses to
store in or around the facility.

K

ii.

iil.

iv.

ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY must get prior
approval for any stored items on the district property.

ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY will provide an
inventory list of all items stored in NOBLE CREEK COMMUNITY PARK
and the square footage needed to store the items. (Received: )

ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY will provide a
set of keys or combinations to the District to anything stored on the district
property. (Received: )

ANDREW TROTTER shall lock the restrooms next to the RC TRACK at the
conclusion of their event.

ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY will not store

- any hazardous materials on BCVRPD property without prior approval from all

regulatory agencies. And agree to disclose and properly label any materials
approved.

VII.  Fees, payable to BCVRPD for the above, shall be as follows:

i

11.

i1

1v.

The following fees are good through the dates of this agreement
($330.00 Per Month)

Payable within (10) days after, the Finance Services Technician has invoiced
for the month and emails (racethunderalley @ gmail.com).

A late fee of $25.00 will be added if not paid within 15 days of payment due
date.

There will be a $35.00 fee payable in cash on all returned checks. This fee is
required in order to restore contract.

VIII.  ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY agrees to abide by their
BCVRPD APPROVED COVID-19 CLEANING AND GATHERING PROTOCOL

Page 3 of 13



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

385

PROCEDURE DOCUMENT. The new policy and procedures will be attached at the
back of this Facility Use License Agreement. (Received: )

IX. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY shall during scheduled
use perform set-up and take-down of all chairs, tables, and be responsible for the
general cleanliness of the building after use.

i.  ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY shall not permit
gatherings beyond that of RC RACES AND PRACTICES before or after
track use.

ii. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY shall abide by
healthy distancing at a minimum distance of (6) feet apart for all users for the
entirety of use at THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY.

iii. ~ All ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY members,
volunteers, and/or patrons will be required to wear masks while participating
in practices, races, and events at THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY.

iv.  ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY members,
volunteers, and/or patrons will be limited to gatherings of 10 total people OR
in compliance with CALIFORNIA STATE GOVERNOR’S ORDERS, as
they are updated; at any given time for each practice, race, or event.

v.  ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY agrees to
CALIFORNIA STATE GOVERNOR'’S ORDERS and shall clean restroom
facilities following each use of the THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY with
CDC approved COVID-19 viral cleaning products.

vi.  Cleanliness of the walkways and bathrooms shall be the responsibility of
ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY during and after
all facility use. The sidewalk south of RC RACEWAY TRACK will be swept
and clean after each event.

i. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY will be
billed for the labor to clean walkway in the event they are not cleaned
up after use.

vii.,  ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY will remove all
trash to the outside trash containers after each use.

viii. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY agrees to
inform BCVRPD ACTIVITIES COORDINATOR two weeks in advance
when additional trash cans are to be used. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER
ALLEY RC RACEWAY will make arrangements for the additional trash bins
needed. BCVRPD will allot space for additional trash bins.

= = Page 4 of 13



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.85

X. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless (BCVRPD), its officers, employees, and agents from any
and all losses, costs, expenses, claims, liabilities, actions, or damages, including
liability for injuries to any person or persons or damage to property arising at any
time out of or in any way related to the ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY
RC RACEWAY’s use or occupancy of a facility or property controlled by the
(BCVRPD), unless solely caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of
(BCVRPD), its officers, employees, or agents.

XI.  ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY agrees to CDC
Guidelines and shall clean restroom facilities each hour of use with CDC approved
COVID-19 viral cleaning products.

XII.  Any building upgrades or permanent fixtures must be approved by BCVRPD prior to
construction. Any licenses, fees, permits will be the responsibility of ANDREW
TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY and must meet all
City/County/State legal standards.

XIII.  BCVRPD is routinely doing upgrades to our facilities. During this time ANDREW
TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY could have limited or no access
during these upgrades. There will be no reimbursement for loss of anticipated
revenue.

XIV.  All fundraisers are subject to prior approval by the Board of Directors of BCVRPD.

XV.  BCVRPD reserves the right to reassign ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY
RC RACEWAY to another facility if the THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY
should become unavailable due to an emergency.

XVI.  All keys shall be issued by BCVRPD. Keys must be returned to the District Office at
the end of the agreement. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC
RACEWAY shall not duplicate any keys. If a key is lost or stolen ANDREW
TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY shall immediately report the loss
to BCVRPD. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY will be
charged the cost for the re-keying of the building and for manufacture of new keys.

i.  ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY must supply the
District one key to property in case of an emergency, the District will make
every effort to contact ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC
RACEWAY in the event that the property must be accessed. If the District has
to cut locks for entry ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC
RACEWAY will be responsible for any new locks and keys that need to be
made.

XVII. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY will provide the
District a list of anyone that has been issued keys and for what locations.




Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.5
(Received: )

XVIII.  ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY shall not make any
changes to lock(s) on District property.

XIX.  Alarm codes shall be issued by BCVRPD. Alarm codes should only be shared with
members that are issued keys. N/A

XX. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY will be responsible for
any charges incurred by a false alarm to the NOBLE CREEK REGIONAL PARK
from any ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY members,
volunteers, and/or patrons

XXI.  ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY will provide the
District a list of anyone that has been issued the assigned alarm code. N/A

XXII.  ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY shall promptly report
any maintenance issues encountered during its use of the buildings in writing to
BCVRPD. BCVRPD will address reported issues.

XXIII.  FORCE MAJEURE

Force Majeure Events: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this agreement,
BCVRPD shall be excused from its obligations under this agreement to the extent and
whenever it shall be prevented from the performance of such obligations by any Force
Majeure Event. For purposes of this agreement, a “Force Majeure Event” includes but is not
limited to fires, floods, earthquakes, pandemic, epidemic, civil disturbances, acts of
terrorism, regulation of any public authority, and other causes beyond their control.
The ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY waives any right
of recovery against BCVRPD and the ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY
RC RACEWAY) shall not charge results of “acts of God” to BCVRPD, its officers,
employees, or agents.

XXIV.  ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY will be responsible for
any damage to the facility caused by ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC
RACEWAY members, volunteers, and/or patrons. BCVRPD will repair damages and
bill the cost to ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY.

XXV. BCVRPD reserves the right to enter and inspect the facility at any time for any
purpose during use of the facility. User shall follow all directives from District
representatives.

XXVI.  ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY members, volunteers,
and patrons shall not interfere with the regular use of the facility by any other group
or person. Excessive noise or other disruptive behavior is prohibited.

i.  ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY members,
volunteers, and patrons agree to cooperate fully with all other facility users

. o Page 6 of 13



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

385
and District representative in a professional and courteous manner at all times.

XXVII. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY agrees he will not have
any vendors during their events. However, vendors can contact BCVRPD for the
opportunity to display their goods with District approval only.

XXVIIL. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY will have the
opportunities to place advertisement banners on RC RACEWAY TRACK inside
fences only. Any other locations will require prior approval of the General Manager.
The placement, removal and maintenance/appearance of the banners will be the sole
responsibility of ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY. Any
banner deemed inappropriate by the District Standards will require immediate
removal. If the banner is not removed in a timely manner the District will remove the
banner.

XXIX.  All participants wanting to camp on District property must call the District office and
pay required District RV fees, placement of camp sites will be by District approval
only. If illegal camping for RC Event occurs, ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER
ALLEY RC RACEWAY will be billed for all illegal camper(s).

XXX. Noble Creek Community Park is one of Riverside County’s Fire Camp Bases and
animal evacuation centers in the event of a natural disaster. The park can be shut
down to the public on very short notice. You will be required to leave the park due to
a sudden park closure. There will be no reimbursement for loss of anticipated
revenue.

XXXI.  ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY shall maintain its own
liability insurance, naming BCVRPD as additional insured.

1. Minimum Requirements: ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC
RACEWAY shall, at its own expense procure and maintain for the duration of
the agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the
agreement by ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY,
its agents, representatives, employees, or subcontractors. ANDREW
TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY shall also require all of its
subcontractors to procure and maintain the same insurance for the duration of
the agreement. Insurance dates must cover January 1 through December 31 of
each year. Such insurance shall meet at least the following minimum levels of
coverage:

i. Minimum Scope of Insurance: Coverage shall be at least as broad as
the latest version of the following:

1. General Liability: Insurance Services Office Commercial
General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001);

Page 7 of 13 —



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.5

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Business Auto
Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto); and,

3. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’
Compensation insurance as required by the State of California
and Employer’s Liability Insurance.

il. Minimum Limits of Insurance: ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER
ALLEY RC RACEWAY shall maintain limits no less than:

1. General Liability: Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per
occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property
damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other
form with general aggregate limit is used including, but not
limited to form CG 2503, either the general aggregate limit
shall apply separately to this agreement/location or the general
aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit;

2. Automobile Liability: One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per
accident for bodily injury and property damage; and

3. Worker’s Compensation and Employers’ Liability: Workers’
Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State
of California. Employer’s Liability limits of One Million
Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury or
disease.

iii. Insurance Endorsements: The insurance policies shall contain the
following provisions, or ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY
RC RACEWAY shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or
approved by the BCVRPD to add the following provisions to the
insurance policies:

iv. General Liability: The general liability policy shall be endorsed to
state that:

1. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY
shall procure and maintain, for the duration of the use period
contemplated herein, commercial general liability insurance
with coverage at least as broad as Insurance Services Office
Form CG 00 01, in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate, for bodily injury,
personal injury, and property damage. The policy must include
contractual liability that has not been amended. Any
endorsement restricting standard ISO “insured contract”
language will not be accepted. If alcohol is sold during the

. Page 8 of 13



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3:8.5
permitted activity, coverage must include full liquor liability

2. Such insurance shall name BCVRPD, its officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers as additional insureds prior to the use of
the facility. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC
RACEWAY shall file certificates of such insurance with the
BCVRPD, which shall be endorsed to provide thirty (30) days’
notice to BCVRPD of cancellation or any change of coverage
or limits. If a copy of the insurance certificate is not on file
prior to the event, BCVRPD may deny access to the facility.

3. All insurance policies shall be issued by an insurance company
currently authorized by the Insurance Commissioner to transact
business of insurance or is on the List of Approved Surplus
Line Insurers in the State of California, with an assigned
policyholders’ Rating of A- (or higher) and Financial Size
Category Class VII (or larger) in accordance with the latest
edition of Best’s Key Rating Guide, unless otherwise approved
by BCVRPD’s self-insurance pool.

4. Requirements of specific coverage features or limits contained
in this Section are not intended as a limitation on coverage,
limits or other requirements, or a waiver of any coverage
normally provided by any insurance. Specific reference to a
given coverage feature is for purposes of clarification only as it
pertains to a given issue and is not intended by any party or
insured to be all inclusive, or to the exclusion of other
coverage, or a waiver of any type. If the ANDREW
TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY maintains
higher limits than the minimums shown above, BCVRPD
requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits
maintained by the ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY
RC RACEWAY. Any available insurance proceeds in excess
of the specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage
shall be available to BCVRPD.

5. The insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects
the BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers employees,
agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in a unbroken
chain of coverage excess of the ANDREW TROTTER,
THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY scheduled underlying
coverage. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents,
and volunteers shall be excess of the ANDREW TROTTER,
THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY insurance and shall not




Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.5
be called upon to contribute with it in anyway.

v. Automobile Liability: The automobile liability policy shall be
endorsed to state that:

1. BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents,
and volunteers shall be covered as additional insured’s with
respect to the ownership operation, maintenance, use, loading
or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by
the ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC
RACEWAY or for which ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER
ALLEY RC RACEWAY is responsible; and

2. The insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects
the BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken
chain of coverage excess of the ANDREW TROTTER,
THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY scheduled underlying
coverage. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents,
and volunteers shall be excess of the ANDREW TROTTER,
THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY insurance and shall not
be called upon to contribute with it in anyway.

vi. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Coverage: The
insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the
BCVRPD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and
volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the insurance policy
which arise from work performed by ANDREW TROTTER,
THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY.

vii. All Coverages: Each insurance policy required by this agreement shall
be endorsed to state that:

1. Coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced or canceled
except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified
mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the BCVRPD;
and,

2. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the
policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect
coverage provided to the BCVRPD, its directors, officials,
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

viii. Separation of Insured’s; No Special Limitations: All insurance
required by this section shall contain standard separation of insured’s

Page 10 of

13



XXXII.

Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

X,

X1,

Xil.

X111,

385

provisions. In addition, such insurance shall not contain any special
limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the BCVRPD, its
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.

Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions: Any deductibles or self-
insured retentions must be declared to and approved by BCVRPD.
ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY shall
guarantee that, at the option of the BCVRPD, either:

1. The insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-
insured retentions as respects the BCVRPD, its directors,
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers; or

2. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY
shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and
related investigation costs, claims, and administrative and
defense expenses.

Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers
with a current A:M. Best’s rating no less than A:VIII, licensed to do
business in California, and satisfactory to the DISTRICT.

Verification of Coverage: ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER
ALLEY RC RACEWAY shall furnish DISTRICT with original
certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required
by the agreement on forms.

Satisfactory to the BCVRPD: The certificates and endorsements for
each insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that
insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All certificates and
endorsements must be received and approved by the BCVRRPD
before the activity commences. The BCVRPD reserves the right to
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at
any time.

Reporting of Claims: ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY
RC RACEWAY shall report to the BCVRPD, in addition to the
insurer, any and all insurance claims submitted by ANDREW
TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY in connection with
this agreement.

ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless (BCVRPD), its officers, employees, and agents from any
and all losses, costs, expenses, claims, liabilities, actions, or damages, including

liability for injuries to any person or persons or damage to property arising at any
time out of or in any way related to the ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY

~ Page 11 of

13



XXXIIL

XXXIV.
1.

XXXV.

XXXVL

Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
3.8.5

RC RACEWAY use or occupancy of a facility or property controlled by the
(BCVRPD), unless solely caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of
(BCVRPD), its officers, employees, or agents.

ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY shall defend, with
counsel of its choosing and at ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC
RACEWAY own cost, expense and risk, any and all claims, suits, actions or other
proceedings of every kind covered by the section that may be brought or instituted
against BCVRPD or its directors, officials, officers, employees, volunteers and
agents. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY shall pay and
satisfy any judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against BCVRPD or its
directors, officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents as part of any such
claim, suit, action or other proceeding. Such reimbursement shall include payment
for BCVRPD’s attorney’s fees and costs, including expert witness fees. ANDREW
TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY shall reimburse BCVRPD and its
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or volunteers, for any and all
legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in
enforcing the indemnity herein provided. Obligation to indemnify shall not be
restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the BCVRPD, its directors,
officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAW, RULES, & REGULATIONS
ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY shall comply with all local,
state, and federal laws and regulations related to the use of the facility and public

gatherings.

ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY agrees to abide by all
applicable local, federal, and state accessibility standards and regulations.

ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY further agrees that it is
solely responsible for reviewing and ensuring compliance with all applicable public
health rules, regulations, orders, and/or guidance in effect at the time of the use of the
facility including, but not limited to, physical distancing, limits on the size of gatherings,
use of appropriate sanitation practices, etc.

BCVRPD reserves the right to immediately revoke ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER
ALLEY RC RACEWAY’s right to use of the facility under this agreement should
ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY fail to comply with any
provision of this section.

In the event of litigation between parties arising out or connected with this agreement,
the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to recover, in addition to any
other amounts, reasonable attorney’s fees and costs of such litigation.

This agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement of the parties and
supersedes any and all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either
written or oral. This agreement may be amended only by written instrument signed
by both parties.

~ Page 12 of

13



Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District

3.8.5

XXXVIL  This agreement and any dispute hereunder shall be governed by and interpreted
according to the laws of the State of California. Venue shall be in Riverside County.
XXXVIIL.  All notices pertaining to this agreement shall be in writing and addressed as follows:
i.  Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District
390 W Oak Valley Parkway
Beaumont CA 92223

ii. ANDREW TROTTER, THUNDER ALLEY RC RACEWAY
¢/o Andrew Trotter
2851 S. La Cadena Dr. SP#251
Colton CA 92324

XXXIX.  This agreement is to be affective on January 1, 2022 and end on December 31, 2022.
It may be extended by mutual agreement. Cancellation by either party will require a
(90) day written notice.

The Parties acknowledge that each has all requisite power and authority to conduct its business
and to execute, deliver, and perform the agreement. Each party warrants that the individuals who
have signed this agreement have the legal power, right, and authority to make this agreement and
bind each respective party.

Duane Burk, General Manager, BCVRPD Andrew Trotter, Owner, (Thunder Alley RC
Raceway)
Date Date
~ Page 13 of

13



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY

RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Staff Report

Agenda Item No. 3.9
To: Board of Directors:

From: Nancy Law, Financial Services Technician/Office Manager
Via: Duane Burk, General Manager

Date: November 10th, 2021

Subject: Approval new four inch irrigation line and two inch domestic line. (NCRP)

Background and Analysis:

Water lines in Noble Creek Regional Park have been deteriorating for the past few years District staff
has been repairing the leaks throughout the park in this area for the past six years. In fiscal year
budget 2020/2021 the Board approved an expenditure to replace a portion of the deteriorated pipe.
Unfortunately, the District did not have any record of the location or type of material. Hence, this
made the project extremely difficult.

The project limits of the waterline replacement were from the toe of the dirt road through the grass
and concrete up to and through the quad and field one. As I stated the District had really no record
of the existing water or electrical system. As a result, this project became labor intensive and we
were not able to define a scope of work and relied on a design build for time and material.

Staff contacted Merlin Johnson construction to provide labor for the installation and the District
provided material. Moreover, due to the COVID pandemic materials increased in costs and were not
readily available.

This project started in the middle of September and ended at the end of October many direct buried
electrical line and water lines were uncovered and a new alignment was placed for the water lines.
Also, we had Land Engineering add the new installation to our Noble Creek Regional Park as built.

Recommendations:

Staff recommends that the Board review, comment and approve labor and material bills to Merlin
Johnson Construction in the amount of $186,309.56.

Fiscal Impact:

$186,309.56 staff requests funding from Capital Reserve.

Respectfully Submitted,

Financial Services Technician/Office Manager



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY

RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Department Report

Agenda Item No. 4
To: Chairman and Board of Directors
From: Nancy Law, Financial Services Technician/Office Manager

Date: November 10th, 2021

The Finance Committee met Monday, November 8th, 2021to review October 2021 Financial Reports
for Fiscal Year 2021-2022.

The Monthly Financial Report consisted of the Apportionment Schedule Spreadsheet and Historical
Graph, Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual, Trial Balance, as well as the Bank Account Balance
Spreadsheet and Warrant Registers which are also included in the Board Packet.

Property Tax Disbursement — The Financial Services Technician has not received deposits into the
Riverside County Fund as of November 3rd, 2021.

The Financial Services Technician has transferred into the Reserve fund the $5,000.00 monthly
contribution for October 2021, bringing our Reserve balance to $315,233.26, and transferred into
the Money Market account $7,500.00 monthly contributions for October 2021 brining our balance
to $90,003.75. November 6th, 2021 I will issue our first loan payment in the amount of $87,217.18.

Additional items:

e

o

Finance conducted on 10/4/2021 a Casual Rec Assistant Interview.

Finance worked Summer Concert Series on 10/16/2021.

Finance attended on 10/20/2021 Pumpkin Carve & Beers, Brats and Bogart Bash Meeting.
Finance worked Pumpkin Carve on 10/23/2021.

Finance attended CSDA Board Secretary Conference on 10/25/2021 - 10/27/2021 with
Ryann Flores, were I attended classes; 55 Ways to add Disney Magic to your Organization,
Recognizing Employee Contributions, Project5 Management and Project5 Leadership: you
need both, Recent Developments in the Law for Special District, Elevating the Role of
Executive Assistant into a Strategic Business Partner, Key Communication Tips, Data
Automation vs. Manual Tasks?, & How to Rock your Next Performance Evaluation.
Finance worked Beers, Brats and Bogart Bash on 10/30/2021

¥ Finance worked with Auditors to Finish FY 19/20 Audit.

3

%

e

b

&
.’0

3

*

Cd

7
*

Recommendations: This report is for informational purposes only.




BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY

RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Department Report

Agenda Item No. 4

To: Chairman and Board of Directors
From: Janet Covington, Human Resources Administrator/Clerk of the Board
Date: November 10, 2021

Employees:

We have 26 employees. Two casual recreation assistants were hired.

Reports:

Workers Compensation Cases/Incidents/Accidents — No workers compensation cases. Fifty-nine days since
our last employee accident.

CAPRI has rescheduled their District visitation for December 7, 2021.

The (roll forward) Actuarial Study of Retiree health liabilities has been completed. A full valuation will be
completed next year.

Training:
= Ryann Flores and Nancy Law attended the 2021 Board Secretary/Clerk Conference.
= Janet attended the first in a series of three CAPRI webinars. The topic was Workers Compensation.

Other:

» October employee of the month was celebrated. Alyssa Zaragoza received the award. November’s
celebration is scheduled for November 24 @ noon in the Copper room.

= Holiday party is scheduled for Friday, December 17, 2021 @ the Grange Community Center 5:00 —
9:00pm. Invitation attached.

= Thank you to Ryann Flores for completing the employee newsletter, attached.

= Duane Burk will be the guest speaker at the Calimesa Chamber Breakfast on February 8, 2022 @
8:00am

= All Directors E-mails have been verified to be working.

Fiscal Impact/Recommendations: This report is for informational purposes only.

Respectfully Submitted,

;M&?‘ C@ﬂ,@z&ﬂ

Janet Covington, Human Resources Administrator/Clerk of the Board



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY

RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Department Report

Agenda Item No. 4
To: Chairman and Board of Directors
From: Nancy Law, Financial Services Technician/Office Manager

Date: November 10th, 2021

The Finance Committee met Monday, November 8th, 2021to review October 2021 Financial Reports
for Fiscal Year 2021-2022.

The Monthly Financial Report consisted of the Apportionment Schedule Spreadsheet and Historical
Graph, Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual, Trial Balance, as well as the Bank Account Balance
Spreadsheet and Warrant Registers which are also included in the Board Packet.

Property Tax Disbursement — The Financial Services Technician has not received deposits into the
Riverside County Fund as of November 3rd, 2021.

The Financial Services Technician has transferred into the Reserve fund the $5,000.00 monthly
contribution for October 2021, bringing our Reserve balance to $315,233.26, and transferred into
the Money Market account $7,500.00 monthly contributions for October 2021 brining our balance
to 890,003.75. November 6th, 2021 I will issue our first loan payment in the amount of $87,217.18.

Additional items:

3

O
)

Finance conducted on 10/4/2021 a Casual Rec Assistant Interview.

Finance worked Summer Concert Series on 10/16/2021.

Finance attended on 10/20/2021 Pumpkin Carve & Beers, Brats and Bogart Bash Meeting.
Finance worked Pumpkin Carve on 10/23/2021.

Finance attended CSDA Board Secretary Conference on 10/25/2021 — 10/27/2021 with
Ryann Flores, were I attended classes; 55 Ways to add Disney Magic to your Organization,
Recognizing Employee Contributions, Project5 Management and Project5 Leadership: you
need both, Recent Developments in the Law for Special District, Elevating the Role of
Executive Assistant into a Strategic Business Partner, Key Communication Tips, Data
Automation vs. Manual Tasks?, & How to Rock your Next Performance Evaluation.
Finance worked Beers, Brats and Bogart Bash on 10/30/2021

Finance worked with Auditors to Finish FY 19/20 Audit.

*,

53

*

53

'

o
0.0

e

!

2

hS

X3

A

Recommendations: This report is for informational purposes only.

Respectfully Submitted,

Financial Serznéés Technician/Office Manager



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY

RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Department Report

Agenda ltem No. 4

To: Chairman and Board of Directors
From: Kyle Simpson, Activities Coordinator
Date: November 10th, 2021

Facility Users:

Facility Rentals have been ongoing

COVID-19 Testing Facility at the Woman’s Club will continue through December 31st, 2021.
There are currently 2 different skating groups renting out the hockey rink weekly

The Yoga Connection is at Noble Creek Community Center Monday through Wednesday
Heart and Soul Line Dancing is at Noble Creek Community Center on Mondays

Beaumont Library Story Time is at Noble Creek Community Center on Tuesdays

Tennis instruction is ongoing at the Tennis Courts Tuesdays and Saturdays

Square dancing classes have started at the Grange on Wednesdays

District Events:

Pumpkin Carve October 23rd 11:00am-2:00pm
Pumpkin Carve went well
There were a lot of kids there and we sold most of the Pumpkins
The games were a big success and it looked like everyone had a great time
Greenthumb donated Pumpkins for the event
Grocery outlet and Food 4 Less donated candy for the event
Stater bros donated some cakes for the event
Beer, Brats, and Bogart October 30th 12:00pm-4:00pm
This new event was a great success
| got compliments on Retroblast Band
People really liked the beer, Buenaveza, Coconut Porter, and Mango hefeweizen just about sold out
The Craft Lounge was a big help in the event
| want to thank the beer pourers for all of their hard work
It was nice to have an event to showcase Bogart
Winterfest December 3rd 5:00pm-9:00pm and December 4th 2:00pm-8:00pm
Vendor applications have been sent out
Snow hill contract has been started
Art Welch will be playing Santa
Beaumont Music Center, Dance Spectrum, and Heart and Soul Line will be performing



Community Events/Meetings/Networking

Nancy, Ryann, and | participated in the Bank of Hemet Trunk or Treat

We will be participating in the City of Beaumont Veterans Day Parade on 11/11/2021
I will be attending the Calimesa Chamber Breakfast on 11/9/21

| will be attending the Beaumont Chamber Breakfast on 11/12/21

| attended the CAPRI Workers’ Compensation webinar on 11/2/2021

Fiscal Impact/Recommendations: This report is for informational purposes only.

7w

Respectfully Submitted,
Kyle Simpson, Activities Coordinator



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY

RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Department Report

Agenda Item No. 4

To: Chairman and Board of Directors
From: Aaron Morris, Maintenance Foreman
Date: 11/10/2021

Report:

Good Evening Board,

| hope everyone is staying safe and healthy; | want to thank everyone for the ongoing support for my family.
As | prepare for my leave of absence, | would like to thank Duane and Staff in advanced for handling my duties
while | am away.

Here are a few items the Maintenance Department has been working on:
Work Items:

e Fields 2/3 are undergoing renovations, so far they have been Aerated, Renovated, over seeded, and both
fields had their backstop and outfield fencing repaired.

e Staff attended and received some training for sprinkler head installation by Hunter Irrigation.

e Staff assisted in setting up and tearing down the Beers, Brats, and Bogart Bash

e The new steel bridge has been set over the main stream near the pond.

e The pond was restocked on October 29" with 1000 pounds of Trout. 700 pounds of German Brown
Trout, and 300 pounds of Lightning Trout.

e Merlin Johnson completed the recent 2 inch and 4 inch water mainline installations and has patched up
all potholes from the construction.

e The new building in the Maintenance Yard has been plastered, dry walled, and painted inside.

e Staff has continued reducing the rodent population.

Fiscal Impact/Recommendations: This report is for informational purposes only.

Respectfully Submitted,

Aaron !Vloms%
Maintenance Foreman

..—



BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY

RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Department Report

To: Chairman and Board of Directors
From: Dodie Carlson, Athletic Coordinator
Date: November 1, 2021

Reports:

The fall adult ball season is under way. We have a packed house with 39 teams again this season. We
have 6 Monday women'’s, 7 Tuesday men’s, 14 Thursday Co-Ed, and 12 Sunday Co-Ed teams. So far we are on
track to finish by Christmas, even with the field closures and rain. We have been able to keep everything on
track..

We held the Oktoberfest Slow Pitch tournament on September 10™-11" we had 8 teams with 64
Sports taking the win. Our net profit was $ 665, although it was probably more, | know a lot of the winners
were not able to make it back by Oktoberfest, which is what their prizes were. The Spooky Spectacular was
held on 10-29-21 we finished with the 8 teams all in one night. 64 Sports were the winners again great ball
was had by all. The profits from this tournament were $ 833. So we will be able to take care of Winter Wish
and still have some for the BCVRPDIC

The calendar for October is semi full. We have had fields 1-4 closed for water line construction, so the
remaining fields are packed. We are almost completely open with all fields, which make’s everyone happy.

| would like to thank the Board of Directors, General Manager, and staff for their constant work on this
district. | am excited to see the improvements to the fields and facilities here at Noble Creek that we will be
working on this soon. We will be looking sharp when we can get back to filling these fields every weekend with
tournaments.
Other:

BYB will be wrapping up the fall ball season November 19, 2021. Spring sign ups will be starting
November 11, 2021 with a Black Friday special Thanksgiving weekend.
Fiscal Impact/Recommendations: This report is for informational purposes only.
Respectfully Submitted,

Dodi(and—

Dodie Carlson, Athletic Coordinator



